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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors
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Mr. Lu Zhiwei (Appointed on 30 August 2013)

Mr. Pak Wai Keung, Martin (Appointed on 17 April 2013 and
resigned on 1 June 2013)

AUDIT COMMITTEE
Mr. Lam Tin Faat (Chairman)
Mr. Chung Wai Man

Mr. Lu Zhiwei

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
Mr. Lu Zhiwei [Chairman)

Mr. Llam Tin Faat
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE
Mr. Chung Wai Man (Chairman)

Mr. Llam Tin Faat

Mr. Lu Zhiwei
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Corporate Profile
EEiEE

China Kingstone Mining Holdings Llimited (the “Company’) was
incorporated as an exempted company with limited liability in the
Cayman Islands under the Company law, Chapter 22 (law 3 of
1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman lIslands. The
shares of the Company are listed on the main board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Llimited (the “Stock Exchange’) since 18
March 2011,

The Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group’) were principally
engaged in the production and sales of marble and marble related
products in China. The Group is a mining operator, focusing on
beige marble blocks and processing of marble slabs, and owned
the largest beige marble mine, namely Zhangjiaba Mine, which is
located in Zhenjiang Village, Xiangshui County, Jiangyou City of
Sichuan Province, Ching, in terms of marble reserves, according to
the certification issued by China Stone Material Associafion (FFEl-A
M%&) in August 2010.

According to the competent person’s report dated 7 March 2011,
the Zhangjiaba Mine contains 44.2 million cubic meter of measured
and indicated marble resources. The block rate is expected to be
38% on the marble resources, which is equivalent to an estimated
16.8 million cubic mefer of proved and probable marble reserves.

TEREAEEERARAR(EARANRERS
BEEDE22ERENE(QOIFFEIFIEN - &
RERERD) RASHEESEIMRISERRE
[RARF - RRARMRMON201FIAIBHRERE
BARHMARRR (B ER LT -

AR REMBAR (SEIAEE )T EHETE
REXEAAMEREAHEBERNEE R
E-AKRERFINKBEAREARMITAAK
BEARMOBEBELEER  BAUNTEDIE
TTH™EKBETNRFKGREL - RETE
amtpeRr —T—FFNAELHNER TR
BRELEZEREEREAMEZANEL -

REBEEMR201NFIA7ENAERALRE @ K
KBEILE44.2B8 L 7R REA R HEE AR
AER - REABRNFTA RIEH[38% - A&t
HERI6.8AE L 7K1 FE KBRS &Y K3 A
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= °
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RESOURCES AND RESERVES

The

resources and reserves estimates for marble stones of

Zhangjiaba Mine in Sichuan Province as at 31 December 2013
under JORC Code (as defined in Chapter 18 of the Listing Rules)

are set out in the following table:

IR S Ak B
TREFIN2013F12 A31HREJORCER (E&H
R ETRAIE18E) 0l 4 3R R L A
BREARRMEE:

JORC Resource and Reserve Class JORCERRFEEHR Cubic Meter

Ay
Measured Resource HHER 15.56 million® &
Indicated Resource HETEER 28.08 million® &
Total Resource B E R 43.64 million® &
Proved Reserve EFEEER 591 milion® &
Probable Reserve BERE & IR 10.67 million B &
Total Reserve BiEE 16.58 millionB &

Note: The resources and reserves for marble stones of Zhangjiaba Mine were

6

estimated based on the independent compefent person’s report dated
on 7 March 2011 (as shown in the Company's Prospectus). The
increases and decreases due fo mining consumption and exploration
during the year were confirmed by internal experts.
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Chairman’s Statement
FEIRS

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board” or “Directors”) of
China Kingstone Mining Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (the “Group’), | am pleased to present the annual results
of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2013.

| accepted the invitation by the Board to take on the chairmanship
of the Company in April 2013. With the energetic and committed
newly appointed Board members and senior management, | am
confident that we can lead the Company info prosperity and
strengthen the Company's market presence.

RESUMPTION OF MINING OPERATIONS

For the first half of 2013, no exploration activities took place at the
Zhangjiaba mine due fo the overhaul of the Board in February
2013, adjustments in the mining technique (where the Group had fo
conduct improvement works on the pits of the mine] and staff
training for the new mining technique. Accordingly, the Group
carried out limited quarrying and exploitation works tfo test the
adoption of new technology, but no output of marble blocks and
only minimal amount of slag was produced from the Zhangjiaba
mine during that period. Production and sales of the Group have
resumed although with limited scale. The Group has been
strengthening the sales force and expanding the sales network
through  refailing, distributing and  cooperation  with  the large
property developers in the PRC.

For the second half of 2013, due to the heavy rainfall in Sichuan
in the summer period, which caused disastrous flooding and
breakdown in transportation system, the production of the Group
was intermittently suspended in June and July 2013 for safety
reasons. As at the 31 December 2013, the Company has invenfory
of marble blocks of 7757 m® and marble slabs of 32,259 m?,
occupying substantially all the storage capacity of the Group. Save
for climate conditions, with a view to expand sales given the
extensive inventories piled up in the storage, the Group only
reactivated the production of marble stone blocks in the Zhangjiaba
mine in August 2013 but with a limited scale of operation. Total
output of marble stone blocks amounted to 88 m® in 2013 (2012:
467 mP). During the second half of 2013, the Group has launched
intensive promotions and campaigns for its products through various
sales channels and networks, such as participation in exhibitions
and entering info various sales distribution confracts with reputable
consfruction materials companies and agents. For the year ended

EME AR :

AABRRPESABEERERARA (AR
ADREMNBAR (BB AEEDz2ERE (&
ZRIRNER]) MARZAKEERZE2013F12
ASIALLFEMFEERE -

AAR201BFARETESTEEm - RAKQA
ITE - HEEZERERRAEEERMHY
RETE  ANRE > RAEFEETELARR
RIRAER - BEARRRHHISHAL

PR AL R W A 7
REBEILABESSE2013F2AMNME - ©
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AEEREETERNABRRIE  BORA
AR BB ERBR - #RFFE LN ZHAE
VEEHKEARH RELEBRBBELE - &
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REEENEREN HRHEEEK -

7

|

F2013F T +F > RMIEFHEMAL - 5l
HKREGBEGTE  ARBR/REZE > 7£2013
FORR7AMESUEIEEE - 20135 12A318 -
RRRFEARBAFRM 7573 75K - KA
WF32259F K MEERAKBEREFRAAFE
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BHRREANEENRZEFE  £2013F8AE )
ERMEFERBMERFTBELUNAELRH
HE - REBARH2013FNEEHE RS
K (20124 : 46737 J5K) » 20135 T+ F » K&
EATRAHEERERBREMEZENERER
MEF IS NRHESREEEBENEE
MERRIEEEITITRANEELHER - &
ZF2013F12A31RIEFE - KEBARHRKREBEA
R B9 85 & 2 Bl 49/ A R#4,300,0007T (2012
F:ARMK15,700,0007T) & AR#2,500,0007T
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31 December 2013, sales of marble stone blocks and marble slabs
have been amounted to approximately RMB4.3 million (2012:
RMB15.7 million)] and RMB2.5 million (2012: RMB397000),
respectively. It is the plan of the Group to dispose of substantially
all of its existing inventories before bringing its production of marble
blocks and slabs to its full scale.

The Group recorded a loss of RMB256.3 million and basic loss per
share of RMBO.13 for the year ended 31 December 2013, as
compared to a loss of RMB576.4 million and basic loss per share
of RMBO0.29 for the vyear ended 31 2012. The
Company recognised a one-off impairment loss of RMB213.5 million
(2012: RMB512.7 million) on various assefs for the year ended 31
December 2013.

December

ENHANCING THE CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
During the year 2013,
implementing @ new management philosophy and format by

the Company was formulating  and

introduction of new executive directors and management who are all
experienced professionals in the fields of corporate governance,
finance, markefing, administration and mining operations. There is
clear division of labor among executive Directors and  senior
management in order fo implement the principle of optimizing the
management sfructure and streamlining working process. The new
Board and management team has conducted the overall business
review and the risk assessment. With the full support from all
Directors and management team, we are confident that the
Company can meet and deal with the dynamic and ever changing
business environment.

8 China Kingstone Mining Holdings Limited ~ Annual Report 2013
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PROSPECTS

Construction materials or decoration materials including marble
products are closely associated with the growth and prosperity of
the real estate market. While China’s real estate market is more
policy driven and materially affected by relevant economic policies
and currency policies in China, there are quite a number of
opposite and different views in the market. We acknowledge the
difficulty to predict the growth and future demand for the real estate
market in China, parficularly when the market is driven by a
number of political and economic factors in the current dynamics the
Company is operating. We choose to take a neutral view and
consider that the real estate market in China will remain stable in
2014 like in 2013 with mild increase in property price and demand
of high quality housings, which should drive the increase in the
demand for stone materials of the Group.

Llooking ahead, the Group believes that a sustainable development
of mining business is to achieve full coverage of supply chain of the
marble products. The Group will continue to consolidate the
production operations and extend the customer base. We believe
that the new Board and management are able to meet the future
challenges and we are confident in achieving the sustainable
growth and create returns for our shareholders.

APPRECIATION

| would like to take this opportunity to express my heartfelt grafitude
to all our shareholders, customers and other business partners for
their attention and support to the Group in the difficult times. |
would also like to thank our directors, management team and all
staff of the Group for their dedication and hard work fo the Group
for the past year.

Liv Hongyu
Chairman

28 February 2014
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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BUSINESS REVIEW

Production and Sales Volume

The production at Zhangjiaba mine was substantially suspended for
the period from November 2012 to July 2013. The production
capacity of the Group has been resuming gradually commencing
from August 2013. The summarized production and sales volume
are set out below:

o 25 [ul e

EERHE

% 5 WL B20124F 11 A B20134 78 — E &
E o AREMELE013F8ARESINE © B
BRHEEHERAIMT

Year ended 31 December

BZEI2ASIBLEE
2013 2012 Change
20135 20124 #H)
Production volume: EE:
Marble blocks mined (cubic meter) BREKRE AT (2 5K) 88 467 -81%
Marble slabs processed (square mefer) REARMMICFEAK) = 26,162 -100%
Sales volume: HE !
Marble blocks (cubic meter) RKIBAFE(ZFHK) 1,954 1,446 +35%
Marble slabs (square meter) KIBHIRM (FFK) 20,314 3,605 +463%
Marble slags ftonnes) KIBAHEE (W) 99,904 - N/A
Average selling prices: FHEE:
Marble blocks (RMB per cubic mefer) REBATE (AR 7 5K) 2,203 10,833 -80%
Marble slabs (RMB per square meter) RIEB AR (A BB/ FIK) 124 110 +12%
Marble slags (RMB per fonnes) RIBAEB (ALK 1) 8 - N/A

Exploration, Development and Production Activities

There was no further exploration activity at the Zhangjiaba mine
during the year. The Zhangjiaba mine located in Sichuan Province
of China, at inception, contains 44.2 million cubic meter of
measured and indicated marble resources, which represents 16.8
million cubic meter of proved and probable marble reserves based
on a block rate of 38%, according to the independent competent
person’s report dated on 7 March 2011 [as shown in the

Company's Prospectus).

The Zhangjiaba mine mainly divided info the east mining zone and
the west mining zone. The Group has substantially completed the
mining platform and went info production at the east mining zone.
During the year, the Zhangjiaba mine produced 88 cubic meter of
marble stone from the east mining zone. In second half of 2013,
the Group has commenced to carry outf the stripping of overburden
materials at the surface of the west mining zone. The process of
quarrying and sfripping produced approximately 100,000 tonnes of
the mining slags.

10 China Kingstone Mining Holdings Limited ~ Annual Report 2013
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During the vyear ended 31 December 2013, the aggregate

expenditure of the mining operation of the Group was
approximately RMBZ.0 million, which mainly included depreciation
on property, plant and equipment of approximately RMB6.3 million,
fuel consumption of approximately RMBO.2 million, staff cosfs of
approximately RMBO.2 million and repair and maintenance costs of

approximately RMBO.2 million.

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group has not
entered info new confracts and did not have any commitment
relafing fo infrasfructure projects, subconfracting arrangements and
purchase of equipment. As at 31 December 2013, the Group did

not have any material commitments in this regard.

During the year, there was no production of marble slabs as the
inventory of marble slabs is sufficient to meef the sales orders from
customers for the year.

Material Acquisitions and Disposals of Subsidiaries

In January 2013, the Group disposed of 100% equity inferest in a
subsidiary, Beichuan lida Mining Co. lid which owns the Tujisi mine
in Sichuan Province, at a cash consideration of RMB10.5 million.
Tujisi Mine is located in the same mineral vein as the Zhangjiaba
Mine and its mining condition is relafively poor compared to the
Zhangjiaba Mine. During the period up to the date of disposal,
there were no exploration, development and production activities at
Tujisi mine.

Future Development

The Group has been planning fo expand its business verfically by
establishing processing planfts which engage in the production of
light and heavy calcium carbonate products using the slags from the
Zhangjiaba Mine as one of the key production materials. These
calcium carbonate products can be applied in various industries
such as plastic, paper, rubber, paint, ink and adhesive industries. In
August 2013, the Group entered into an agreement of co-operation
intent with Jiangyou Municipal’s People’s Government of Sichuan
Province, the PRC in relation fo the project for processing of slags.
The approval for this expansion plan in processing plants has been
obtained from Development and Reform Bureau of Jiangyou City on
18 November 2013. The Company expects these processing plants
will generate additional revenue for the Group in year 2015. As at
31 December 2013, there are no material capital commitment in
respect of this expansion project.

HZE2013F12A31HILFE - AEBFRBEEEH

¥ BERRXBITELHARKS,300,0007T - #4
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200000t AR #EERREKRAHDARSE
200,0007T -°

BZE2013F12A31BILFE - NEE Y AT LH
B TMEIMNABEERRERRE - DA LHE
NIEERER AL - R2013F12A310 - N&EH
A UL I 4 AE {A] BB KR -
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue and Gross Profit

The Group's revenue decreased by RMBQ.0 million or 559% from
RMB16.1 million in 2012 to RMBZ.1 million in 2013. The Group
had the suspension of production of marble block and had mainly
Imp|emented od]usfments in the mining Technique (where the Group
had to conduct improvement works on the pits of the mine) and
staff training for the new mining technique during the first half of
2013. The decrease in sales was primarily due fo a decrease in
sales of marble block, resulting from a drop of selling price of
marble blocks by 80% as compared to that in 2012. Despite the
increase in the sales volume, sales of marble blocks decreased by
RMBI11.4 million from RMB15.7 million in 2012 to RMB4.3 million
in 2013.

Sales of marble slab significantly increased by 535.0% from
RMB397000 in 2012 to RMB2.5 million in 2013. The increases
was primarily due to the continuous efforts in promoting the marble
slabs by various sales channels, including in-house sales and
exhibition promotions, disfribution agents, cooperation consfruction
partners, fo increase ifs product image, branding, and penetration.

Gross profit decreased by RMBZ.2 million or 66.7% from RMB10.8
million in 2012 to RMB3.6 million in 2013 and the gross profit
margin decrease by 16 percentage points from 67% in 2012 to
51% in 2013. The decrease was primarily due to a decrease in

average selling price of the marble block as compared to that in

2012.

Selling and distribution expenses

Selling and distribution expenses increased by RMB1.7 million from
RMBO.7 million in 2012 to RMB2.4 million in 2013. The increase
was primarily due fo an increase in the cost of warehouse and
exhibition and promoting expenses.

Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses decreased by RMB27.2 million or 40.5%
from RMB67.1 million in 2012 to RMB39.9 million in 2013. The
decrease was primarily due o a decrease of RMBI15.7 million in
staff cost (including directors’ remuneration and  share option
expenses| and a decrease of RMB3.8 million in rental expenses for
office in Guangzhou.

12 China Kingstone Mining Holdings Limited ~ Annual Report 2013
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Loss for the period

The Group recorded a loss of RMB256.3 million for 2013 as
compared to a loss of RMB576.4 million in 2012, as a result of a
combined effect of i) a reduction of profit from sales of marble
blocks and slabs due tfo the suspension of the production af
Zhangjiaba mine in first half year of 2013 and a decrease on
average selling price of marble blocks; ii) an impairment losses of
RMBI115.0 million (2012: RMB512.7 million) arising from certain
trade receivables and prepayments, deposits and other receivables
were recognised during FY13; iii] an impairment loss of RMB88.2
million arising from equity inferest in an associate and loan fo the
associate; iv) impairment loss of goodwill of RMB3.0 million and
intangible assefs of RMB7.4 million were recognised in profit and
loss during the year; and V] a gain of RMB2.6 million on disposal
of a subsidiary which owns Tujisi mine.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

As at 31 December 2013, the Group's total equity interests was
RMB267.7  million (31 2012 RMB525.0 million),
representing a decrease of 49.0%. The decrease was mainly
attributable to a loss of RMB256.3 million incurred for the year.

December

As at 31 December 2013, the Group had cash and bank balances
of RMB30.3 million (31 December 2012: RMB28.2 million). Cash
and bank balances were mainly denominated in Hong Kong dollars
and Chinese Renminbi ["RMB”). The Group's working capital, or nef
RMB64.1 2012:
RMB254.1 million). The current rafio, represented by current assefs

divided by current liabilities, was 2.7 (31 December 2012: 8.9).

current assets, was million (31 December

As at 31 December 2013, the Group's interest bearing loan, which
was denominated in Hong Kong dollar, was RMB19.7  million
(2012: Nil) and af fixed interest rate. The Group does not currently
use any derivafives to manage interest rate risk. Gearing ratio,
representing fotal loan divided by total equity, was 0.07 (2012:
Nil).

As at 31 December 2013, the Group had available working
capifal facilities of RMB19.7 million (2012: Nil) with an independent
third party, all of which was used. With the level of its current
facilities and available cash and cash equivalents, the Group has
adequate financial resources fo meet the anficipated future liquidity
requirements and capital expenditure commitment.
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Capital Expenditure

The Group's capital expenditure was amounted to RMB4.6 million
during 2013, which was primarily related to the consfruction in
progress.

Contingent Liabilities
As at 31 December 2013, the Group had no material contingent
liabilities.

Exposure to Fluctuations in Exchange Rates

The Group principally operates its businesses in the PRC. The
GCroup is not exposed fo significant foreign exchange risk as most
of the Group's business fransactions, assets and liabilities are
principally denominated in RMB, which is the functional and
reporting currency of the Group, except cerfain administrative
expenses, denominated in Hong Kong dollar and United States
dollar, in the Hong Kong office. The Group has not entered into
any foreign exchange confract as hedging measures.

Human Resources

As at 31 December 2013, the Group had a total of 61 (31
December 2012: 59] employees in the Group. The total staff cost,
including directors’ emoluments, share options benefit and pension
scheme contribution, was approximately RMB12.0 million (2012:

RMB30.4 million) during the year ended 31 December 2013.

The Group's emolument policies are formulated on the performance
of individual employee and on the basis of the salary trends in
Hong Kong and the PRC, and will be reviewed regularly. Subject
to the Group's profitability, the Group may also distribute
discretionary bonus to its employees as an incentive for their
contribution fo the Group.
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management

SERGREREBEE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Liv Hongyu

Mr. Liv Hongyu ["Mr. Liv"), aged 48, is an executive director and
chairman of the Company since 30 April 2013. Mr. Liu holds a
bachelor degree in Architecture from Tsinghua University in  the
People’s Republic of China (the "PRC"). Mr. Lliu is currently a chief
engineer of Zhuhai Zhaohe Investment Company limited* (ZR/&JK
MTEBRAF). M. Lliv had studied in the department of
architecture in Tsinghua University during 1980s. Affer graduation,
he had worked in different companies and engaged in work
relating fo architecture and property development. He has more than
20 vyears of experience in the sector of architecture and real
estate.

Ms. Zhang Cuiwei

Ms. Zhang Cuiwei ("Ms. Zhang'), aged 44, is an executive
director of the Company since 30 April 2013. Ms. Zhang
graduated in Foreign languages and Lliterature from Jilin University of
the PRC. She is currently a deputy general manager of Zhuhai
Zhaohe Investment Company limited* (ER/GIKFNIEEBR A E]).
Since 1990s, Ms. Zhang has engaged in work in relation fo
corporate operation management and human resources. She s
good at corporate team management and building, and she leads
corporate feams to accomplish corporate organization, perfection of
corporate  management and regulatory system, and assists in
establishment of systems on appraisal and assessment, training
management and compensation. Ms. Zhang has about 20 years of
experience in corporate management, personnel and adminisfration

affairs.

Mr. Zhang Jianzhong

Mr. Zhang Jianzhong ("Mr. Zhang'), aged 56, is an executive
director of the Company since 30 August 2013. Mr. Zhang is an
associate professor, conferred by Ministry of Geology and Mineral
Resources of the People’s Republic of China, and holds a bachelor
degree in Engineering and law. Since 1991, Mr. Zhang has been
involved in management work relafing fo stone mining, processing
and marketing. From 1991 to May 2002, he worked in Wuhan
lingda Stone Materials Co., lid.* (B ZDEAM BRAE]), where
he had taken up posts such as deputy factory director, office head
and factory director. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Zhang
served as deputy general manager of Wuhan Zhongdida Assefs
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Management Co., Uid. (BVEFRMIAREELEBRAE]). M. Zhang
has extensive expertise in geology, and sophisticated experience in
stone mine exploration and development.

Mr. Zhu Hongjun

Mr. Zhu Hongjun ("Mr. Zhu'), aged 41, is an executive direcfor of
the Company since 17 April 2013. Mr. Zhu holds a bachelor
degree from China University of Geosciences (Wuhan). Mr. Zhu has
over 18 years of experience in mining industry in China and held
various positions in a number of mining companies and investment
companies as well as govemment offices in China. He currently
holds the qualification of Senior Engineer in China. Prior fo joining
the Company, Mr. Zhu was a vice president of Orient Group
Mining and Investment Holding Ltd.* (R 5 &£ B XK EERER
A@]), an enterprise in mainland China from January 2012 to
January 2013,

management of the company’s mining operation. Mr. Zhu was an

responsible for strategic development and

associate direcfor of the investment department and group chief
geologist of Orient Group Investment Holding Uid* (R 77 & B1& &
B MR AR from November 2009 to January 2012, responsible

for investment and assessment of mining projects.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Chung Wai Man

Mr. Chung Wai Man ("Mr. Chung"), aged 56, is an independent
non-executive direcfor of the Company. Mr. Chung holds a Diploma
in Business Management and a Certificate of Bank of China
Banking Course. He sfarted working in The Kwangtung Provincial
Bank in 1976, and his last position before leaving the bank in
1996 was a manager in charge of the Tai Po branch. Mr. Chung
is currently a non-executive director of U-Right International Holdings
Limited (stock code: 0627). He was an independent non-executive
director of United Gene High-Tech Group limited (sfock code:
0399) from 23 March 2007 to 13 May 2009 and clso an
independent-executive director of Fu Ji Food and Catering Services

Limited (stock code: 1175) from 1 June 2011 to 8 July 2013.
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Mr. Lam Tin Faat

Mr. Llam Tin Faat ("Mr. Llam"), aged 37, is an independent non-
executive director of the Company. Mr. lam holds a bachelor
degree of business administration from The Chinese University of
Hong Kong. He has more than 10 years of experience in financial
audit, accounting and financial management. He is a fellow of the
Institute  of Cerfified Public Accountants and  the
of Chartered Cerfified Accountants in the United
Kingdom and a member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in

Hong Kong
Association

England and Wales. Mr. lam is currently the independent non-
executive direcfor of Excel Technology International Holdings Limited
(stock code: 8048), the issued shares of which is listed on the
Stock Exchange, and the sole proprietor of TF lam & Company, o
CPA practice in Hong Kong, a director of Top Team Secretary
Limited and Hongwei Technologies Limited.

Mr. Lu Zhiwei

Mr. Lu Zhiwei ("Mr. L"), aged 59, is an independent non-executive
director of the Company since 30 August 2013. Mr. lu holds a
master postgraduate degree in industrial economics. Mr. Lu has over
20 vears of extensive experience in investment banking, trust and
investment business as well as brokerage business. Prior to joining
the Company, Mr. lu had served as vice president of Union Trust
Limited* (Bt ZE BB EHEREBR AT and is presently serving as
managing director of Sinovo Growth Capital Management Co.,
Wd> (FAZERIEREEEFRAEERF) M. L
independent director of Wuhan langold Real Estate Co., Lid.* (&
EEEEXERNOEBERAT) during the period from its listing on the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange in November 2009 to February 2013.

wdas an

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Pak Wai Keung, Martin

Mr. Pak Wai Keung, Martin ["Mr. Pak”), is a chief financial officer
and company secretary of the Company since 1 June 2013. Mr.
Pak is a fellow of the Hong Kong Institutfe of Certified Public
Accountants, an associate member of The Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and Administrators in the United Kingdom and The Hong
Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries. Mr. Pak had held various
positions in listed companies and accounting firms in Hong Kong,
and has accumulated over 20 years of experience in finance,
accounting and company secrefary. Prior to joining the Company,
Mr. Pak had held positions of chief financial officer and company
secretary at various listed companies in Hong Kong.
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Mr. Cheung Wai Kee

Mr. Cheung Wai Kee ["Mr. Cheung’), is a financial controller of the
Company since 1 July 2013. Mr. Cheung is an associate member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a
fellow of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants in the
United Kingdom. Mr. Cheung has more than 10 vyears of
financial accounting and  financial

experience in reporting,

management.
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Corporate Governance Report
ExERQHRE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company strives fo aftain and maintain high standards of
corporafe governance consistent with the needs and requirements of
its businesses and the best interest of all of its stakeholders. The
Board believes that high standards of corporate governance provide
a framework and solid foundation for the Group to safeguard the
interests of shareholders and other stokeholders and enhance the
shareholders value.

The Company has complied with the Corporate Governance Code
and Corporate Governance Report (the "CG Code”) as set out in
Appendix 14 of the Rules Goveming the Llisting of Securities on the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong limited (the “Listing Rules’) for the
year ended 31 December 2013 except for a deviation from code

provision A.2.1 of CG Code.

Under code provision A.2.1 of CG Code, the roles of chairman
and chief executive officer should be separate and should not be
performed by the same individual. The division of responsibilities
between the chairman and the chief executive officer should be
clearly established and set out in writing. From 1 January 2013 fo
7 February 2013, no chairman had been appointed by the
Company. The Company appointed Mr. Wang Dong as chairman
on 8 February 2013 and resigned on 28 March 2013. From 28
March 2013 to 29 April 2013, the Company had no chairman.
Mr. Liv Hongyu was appointed as chairman on 30 April 2013.
Following the cessation of Mr. Chen Jianhong as chief executive
directors of the Company [the "CEQ’) with effect from 29
November 2013, there is no officer carrying the tile of chief
executive officer. The duties of the CEO are underfaken by
execufive directors, namely Mr. Liu Hongyu, Ms. Zhang Cuiwei, Mr.
Zhu Hongjun and Mr. Zhang Jianzhong with clear division of labor
and segregafion of dufies to ensure independence and proper
checks and balances.
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DIRECTORS" SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has odopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the "“Model Code”) as sef
out in Appendix 10 of the Llisting Rules as its own code of conduct
regarding directors’ securities fransactions by the Directors. Having
made specific enquiries with all Directors of the Company, all
Directors confirmed that they have complied with the required
standards sef out in the Model Code and its own code of conduct
regarding directors’ securities fransaction throughout the year ended

31 December 2013.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

(] Composition of the Board
The Board has maintained a balance of skills and experience
appropriate for the business requirements and objectives of the
Group and for the exercise of independent judgment. The
Board currently comprises four executive Directors and three
independent non-executive Directors. Each Director of the
Company has been appointed on the sfrength of his/her
caliber, experience, professional quadlification and potential to
confribute to the proper guidance of the Group and ifs
businesses. The composition of the Board was set out below:

Executive Directors

Mr. liv Hongyu (Chairman) [Appointed on 30 April 2013)

Ms. Zhang Cuiwei (Appointed on 30 April 2013)
Mr. Zhu Hongjun [Appointed on 17 April 2013)

Mr. Zhang Jianzhong (Appointed on 30 August 2013)
Mr. Xiong Wenjun [Removed on 6 February 2013)

Non-executive Directors
Mr. Wang Dong (Chairman) (Appointed
on 6 February 2013 and resigned on 17 April 2013)
Mr. Chan Chi Yin (Appoinfed on & February 2013
and resigned on 17 April 2013)
Mr. lee Wa Llun, Warren (Appointed on &6 February 2013
and resigned on 30 April 2013)
Mr. Mak Ka Wing, Patrick
[Appointed as independent non-executive director
on 6 February 2013, re-designated to non-executive
director on 17 April 2013 and resigned
on 13 June 2013)

20 China Kingstone Mining Holdings Limited ~ Annual Report 2013
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(1

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Chung Wai Man (Appointed on & February 2013)
Mr. lam Tin Faat (Appointed on & February 2013)
Mr. Lu Zhiwei (Appointed on 30 August 2013)
Mr. Pak Wai Keung, Martin [Appointed
on 17 April 2013 and resigned on 1 June 2013)

December 2013, to the best
knowledge of the Company, there was no financial, business

During the year ended 3!
or family relationship among the members of the Board.

Pursuant to the articles of association of the Company [the
"Articles of Association”), any Director appointed by the Board
fo fill @ casual vacancy shall hold office until the first general
meeting of the Company affer his appoiniment and be subject
fo re-election at such meeting and any Director appointed by
the Board as an addition fo the existing Board shall hold
office only until the next following annual general meeting of
the Company and shall then be eligible for re-election. At
each annual general meeting, one-third of the Directors for the
fime being (or, if the number of Directors is not a multiple of
three, the number nearest to but not less than one-third) shall
retire from office by rotation provided that every Director shall
be subject to refirement af an annual general meeting at least
once every three years.

The biographies of the Directors are set ouf in “Profile of
Direcfors and Senior Management” on pages 15 to 18 of this
annual report.

Independent non-executive Directors

The Company received from each of its independent non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation of independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Llisting Rules. The Board has
reviewed the independence of the independent non-executive
Directors and considered that all of them are independent
with the definition of the Listing Rules.
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(1)

22

According to Rule 3.10(1) of the Listing Rules, the board must
comprise at least three independent non-executive directors.
Following the resignation of an independent non-executive
director of the Company, Mr. Pak Wai Keung, Marfin on 1
June 2013, the number of independent non-executive directors
of the Company fell below the minimum number required
under Rule 3.10(1) of the Listing Rules. The Company
appointed Mr. lu Zhiwei as an independent non-executive
direcfor fo fill the casual vacancy on 30 August 2013.
Following the appointment of Mr. Lu Zhiwei, the Company has
complied with Rule 3.10(1) of the Listing Rules.

The Company complied with the requirements under Rules
3.10(2) and 3.10A of the listing Rules during the year ended
31 December 2013.

Attendance of Directors at the board meeting and

general meeting

The Directors can attend meeting in person or through other
means of electronic communication in accordance with the
Articles of Association. The company secrefary of the
Company (the “Company Secretary”] will assist the chairman
of the Board and/or executive Direcfor to prepare the agenda
of the meeting and each Director may request to include any
matters in the agenda for the regular Board meetfings. The
Company Secretary is responsible for distributing detailed
documents to the Directors prior to the meetings of the Board,
fo ensure that the Directors are able fo make informed
decisions regarding the matters to be discussed in the
meetings so that they may receive accurate, timely and clear
information. Prior nofice convening the board meefing was
dispatched to the Directors. All Directors may seek the advice
and services of the Company Secretary who regularly updates
the Board on governance and regulatory matters. All directors
will also be provided with sufficient resources to discharge
their duties, and upon reasonable request, the Directors will be
able fo seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances, aft the Company’s expense. The Company
Secretary is also responsible for ensuring the procedures of the
Board meetings are observed and providing the Board with
opinions on matters in relation to the comp|ionce with the
procedures of the Board meetings. All minutes of Board
meefings were recorded in sufficient detail, including matters
considered and decisions reached by the Board and are open
for inspection by Directors.
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(V)

The Articles of Association contain provisions requiring
Directors fo absfain from vofing and nof to be counted in the
quorum at meetings for approving fransactions in which such
Directors or any of their associates have a material interest.

There were 29 board meetings and 4 general meefings held
during the year ended 31 December 2013. The attendance of
each Director at the board meetings and general meeting is
set out below:

MBERAMNIEG REEFRILE
REEFHREMARENBBEAREEEARE
TR HNEZE L BMRERRRIBIAR
EANE

B Z2013F12A31B L EER - ARFIE
RBITOREZTEEARARBRARE - &
EZHFEFTE IR RBERRENREH
B

Attendance/Number of Meetings

HE BITEERE
Director Board meeting  General meeting
= Exeesd REXE
Mr. Liv Hongyu RIARMEE 15/16 1/1
Ms. Zhang Cuiwei REH LT 15/16 1/1
Mr. Zhu Hongjun RAERE 10/18 1/1
Mr. Zhang Jianzhong R EASLAE 5/8 0/0
Mr. Xiong VWenjun REX kA 4/4 0/1
Mr. Wang Dong FREAE /7 2/2
Mr. Chan Chi Yin PRESE £ 4 o/7 2/2
Mr. lee Wa Lun, Warren TEMGLE 6/9 0/2
Mr. Mak Ka Wing, Patrick WRELE 11/14 0/2
Mr. Chung Wai Man EHERLE 23/25 3/3
Mr. Llam Tin Faat KRB L HE 23/25 3/3
Mr. Pak Wai Keung, Martin AE®RELE 6/7 0/0
Mr. Llu Zhiwei EEEE 7/8 0/0

The Board and Management

The Board is responsible for the overall management of the
Group, which includes leadership and control of the Company
and oversees the Group's businesses, strategic decisions,
infernal control, risk management and performances. The
principal functions of the Board is fo (1] convene general
meefings and report the Board's work at general meetings; (2)
implement the resolutions passed by the shareholders in
general meetings; (3) consider and approve strategies,
financial objectives, annual budget, invesiment proposals of the
Group; (4] formulate the proposals for profit distributions; (5)
assume the responsibilities of corporate governance of the
Croup; and (6) exercise other powers, functions and duties
conferred by the shareholders in general meeting. It is the
responsibi\ity of the Board to determine the appropriafe
corporate governance practices applicable to the Company’s
circumstances and fo ensure processes and procedures are in
place to achieve the Company's corporate governance
objectives.

V) ESeREEE

EFXZgREAEEEREE  BREEN
ERARABAREEANSE 2 X515 - KA
RE - ABERE  EREEEKRR -ES
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The management team is delegated with the authority and
responsibility by the Board for the day-fo-day management of
the Group and is accountable to the Board. The management
tfeam has overall responsibility for formulating the business
strategies and development plan of the Group and is also
responsible for the supervision and execution of the plans of
the Group. The delegated functions and work tasks are
periodically reviewed.

(V) Continuous professional development of Directors
The Directors, on an ongoing basis, will receive amendments
to or updates on relevant laws, rules and regulations. The
Company has arranged for the Directors fo aftend fraining
session in October 2013, which places an emphasis on the
roles, functions and duties of a listed company director and
the updates on relevant laws and regulations. The Company
has also provided reading materials to all Directors to develop
and refresh their professional knowledge.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
The roles of the Chairman and the CEO are clearly defined and
segregated fo ensure independence and proper checks and
balances. The Chairman focuses on the business sfrategy and
direction of the Company and has executive responsibility, provides
leadership for the Board and ensures proper and effective
functioning of the Board in discharging of ifs responsibilities. The
CEO is accountable to the Board for the overall implementation of
the Company's strategies and the co-ordinafion of overall business
operations.

Following the cessation of Mr. Chen Jianhong as chief executive
officer of the Company (the "CEQ"] with effect from 29 November
2013, there is no officer carrying the fifle of chief execufive officer.
Following the review of the Company’s management structure by the
Boord in order to implement the principle of optimizing the
management structure and streamlining working process, the Board
considered that it is not necessary fo oppoint a CEO in the
foreseeable future. The Board considered that there is clear division
of labor among executive directors of the Company, who are
undertaking the duties that should have been performed and taken
by the CEO; therefore, in the opinion of the Board, the roles of
Chairman and the CEO have been/will confinue to be properly
segregated in the absence of an officer carrying the titlle of CEO.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Each of the non-execufive Directors [the “NEDs’] and independent

non-executive Direcfors (the "INEDs") was appointed for a term of

three years, subject fo re-election by rofation at least once every

three years. The re-election of each of these INEDs who has served

on the Board for more than nine years is subject to a separate

resolution to be approved by shareholders.

BOARD COMMITTEES

(1)

Audit Committee

The audit committee (the "Audit Committee”) of the Company
has been established by the Board with specific written terms
of reference and all members of the Audit Committee are
INEDs,

appropriate professional qualification or accounting or related

one of whom, namely Mr. lam Tin Faat, has

financial under Rule

3.10(2).

management expertise as  required

According to Rule 3.21
commitlee must comprise @ minimum of three members.

of the Llisting Rules, the audit

Following the resignation of an independent non-executive
director of the Company, Mr. Pak Wai Keung, Marfin on 1
June 2013, the number of members of the audit committee of
the Company fell below the minimum number required under
Rule 3.21 of the listing Rules. The Company appointed Mr. Lu
Zhiwei as the member of audit committee on 30 August
2013. Following the appointment or Mr. Lu Zhiwei, the
Company has complied with Rule 3.21 of the Llisting Rules.

AT EF

BFNTEFR(FRTEZD RBIUIFNTES
(MBI ERTEZDZEFHR=F  HRSFA
ROB=FHRE-R BECIREFSHEBE
NENBLFATEFTNERAARRBIB —
BBRFBRAAE -

EFEEZEG

() BEHZEE
EFRERVAARABAZAG(BHE

RERTEEREGE BiHE

—BEUFHITEEMRELREAARA
E0RGEMRENBEEERERI A
HABYHEEEXNE -
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The composition of the Audit Committee and attendance of B ZEgMNAEANRESFZEGNELR
the members of the Audit Committee at the audit committee BENZESSINREEINMNT
meefing are sef out below:
Attendance/

Members of Audit Committee Tenure Number of meeting
EIEBEENE £ HE BOTEBERE
Chairman
£33
Mr. Llam Tin Faat Appointed on 8 February 2013 3743
MR BT E R2013F2A8HEZE
Ms. Deng Guiping Removed on 6 February 2013 2/2
BEFzt R20135F2A6R £ B
Member
o8-
Mr. Chung Wai Man Appointed on 8 February 2013 3/3
BREREE R2013F2H8REE(E
Mr. Lu Zhiwei Appointed on 30 August 2013 1/1

SEEE 20138 A30R & (£
Mr. Pak Wai Keung, Martin Appointed on 17 April 2013 and 0/0

resigned on 1 June 2013

RE®RLE R2013FARV/ B EZ ERK2013FOR1HEF(E
Mr. Liv Yuguan Removed on 6 February 2013 2/2
Bl EREE 201352 A6A £ B
Mr. Llei Zhaochun Removed on 6 February 2013 2/2
BRESLE 20132 A6R £ B
Mr. Mak Ka Wing, Patrick Appomfed on 8 Februory 2013 1/1

and resigned on 17 April 2013

BREEE M20135F2 A8 B E R E M N 2013F4F17HEHE

Pursuant to the terms of reference of the Audit Committee, the
primary duties of the audit committee of the Company are
mainly to make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment, re-appointment and removal of external audifor,
the review of the financial statements and material advice in
respect of financial reporting and the oversight of internal
control procedures of the Group. Details of the authority and
responsibilities of the Audit Committee are available on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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During the year ended 31 December 2013, the work MREZ2013F12A31BILFE - B LB

performed by the Audit Committee is summarized below: SRETETEGMT

a.  Recommendation of removal and appoiniment of the a HMEEREZEERARIINEETAIME
external auditors of the Company to the Board; EgRfEH:

b.  Review of annual results for the year ended 31 December b. BHBZE2013F12A3IBILFEFE
2013 and interim results for the six months ended 30 FERBE20135F6H30R 1L/~ @ A
June 2013 before the submission to the Board: FHIEERREEESS

c.  Meeting with the external auditors of the Company to c. HARRRINEEG DG EIAR R ERT
discuss the nature and scope of the audit and the area HERBELEIER:
of concerns;

d. Investigation on matters in respect of the qualified opinion d  HEINBEBHAEZERNBGHT - #HE
in the auditors’ report, with assistance of external FRETHREIREBEZEANET
forensic investigation expert;

e.  Review of the Group's financial confrols, internal confrol e. BHEASEEPBKIES - REES &R
and risk management systems. RE TR R o

() Remuneration Committee (I FMEES

The remuneration committee (the “Remuneration Committee”) of EEeEORNYARRTMHEZES(HMNE

the Company has been established by the Board with specific Bgl) REFETEHREELE  HFHE

=
written terms of reference and all members of the BEe>BREYABIYIFNTES -

Remuneration Committee are INEDs.
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The composition of the Remuneration Commitlee and TNEEeMEKATHEEENELE
atfendance of the members of the Remuneration Committee at TMEESLHMREEI T

the remuneration commitiee meeting are set out below:

Members of Attendance/

Remuneration Committee Tenure Number of meeting

FMEESENE E HE BOTEBERE

Chairman

£33

Mr. Lu Zhiwei Appointed on 30 August 2013 1/1

GERE R2013F8HA30RE & £

Mr. Pak Wai Keung, Martin Appointed on 17 April 2013 and 0/0
resigned on 1 June 2013

AR\ ELE R2013F4RV7BEZ EMN2013FO6A1HEHE

Mr. Mak Ka Wing, Patrick Appointed on 8 February 2013 and 2/2
resigned on 17 April 2013

BREEE R2013F2 A8HE R E M N20135F4H17B Bt (£

Mr. Liv Yuquan Removed on 6 February 2013 0/0

B EREHE MR20135F2A6R £ B

Member

o8-

Mr. Llam Tin Faat Appointed on 8 February 2013 4/4

MRERE R2013F2H8REE(E

Mr. Chung Wai Man Appointed on 8 February 2013 4/4

BRREL R2013F2A8HEZ

Ms. Deng Guiping Removed on 6 February 2013 0/0

BEFrt R2013F2 A6 H % 8

Mr. Llei Zhaochun Removed on 6 February 2013 0/0

BRERE 20132 A6R £ B

Pursuant to the terms of reference of the Remuneration
Committee, the primary duties of the Remuneration Committee

REFMZESNBELE  FTHEES
MEBRRBE N AKRE2BEFTLINE
BEEABNERBHFMBRRLIRBRESS

are mainly fo make recommendations fo the Board on the
overall remuneration policy and structure relating to  all
Directors and the senior management of the Group, review
performance-based remuneration and ensure none of the
Directors determine their own remuneration. Defails of the
authority and responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee
are available on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange.
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(i)

2013, the work

performed by the Remuneration Committee is summarized

During the year ended 31 December

below:
a. Review of the remuneration of the members of Board
committees;

b.  Consideration and approval of the remuneration package
of the newly appointed Directors.

The Remuneration Committee has delegated responsibility fo
defermine the remuneration packages on individual executive
Directors and senior management, in compliance with B.1.2 (c)

[i) of CG Code.

Nomination Committee

The nomination committee (the “Nomination Committee”) of the
Company has been established by the Board with specific
written terms of reference and all members of the Nomination
Committee are INEDs.

(i

MRELZ2013F12A31BILFE - HTME B
TR TR 2T

a. EHNEFZEEXEWHHN:
b. ZELHMEMZEEENHMEE -

THEETaEECTENBTESERSR
EEAEMNFMNGE  HEBEFELEER
ST AR EEB.1.2(c)(iME °

REEESE
EEgCRUARRRAZER(REE
Bel) RAFEEEBRESRE RHZ
EERKEORBIUIFNITES -

=
=
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The composition of the Nomination Committee and attendance REALTEEeMEKNIREZZESKELTE
of the members of the Nomination Committee at the REZESSHMNEHNOT

nomination committee meeting are set out below:

Members of Attendance/

Nomination Committee Tenure Number of meeting

REZEERE E HE BOTEBERE

Chairman

£33

Mr. Chung Wai Man Appointed on 8 February 2013 3743

BRERAL R2013F2A8HEZE

Mr. Llei Zhaochun Removed on 6 February 2013 0/0

BEERE 201352 A6 R & 5

Member

o8-

Mr. Llam Tin Faat Appointed on 8 February 2013 3/3

MRBERE R2013F2H8REE(E

Mr. Lu Zhiwei Appointed on 30 August 2013 0/0
EREE 201358 A30HE £ (£

Mr. Pak Wai Keung, Martin Appointed on 17 April 2013 and 1/1

resigned on 1 June 2013
SNEL Pl M2013F 4817 A ZERKR2013FOAHEE
Mr. Mak Ka Wing, Patrick Appointed on 8 February 2013 and 1/1
resigned on 17 April 2013

BRESLE 201352 A8AE L E R MK2013F4R 17 & £

Mr. Liu Yuguan Removed on 6 February 2013 0/0

BEREE 20134268 % 5

Ms. Deng Guiping Removed on 6 February 2013 0/0

ATt 201352 A6 R % 5

Pursuant to the terms of reference of the Nomination RiEREZZESNREZERE - Tm%é,\ =

Committee, the primary duties of the Remuneration Committee NEIEREREMNVEABREERAE

are mainly fo make recommendations fo the Board on TEFGKNENALT ZREREHNZME

identifying individuals suitably qualified to become the Board RERETFENESGREEBRRS -

members, considering the reappointment of the Directors and REZECGNENNETNFBAIREAR

succession planning for the Directors. Details of the authority A MBS PR uAE R -

and responsibilities of the Nomination Committee are
available on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange.
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During the year ended 31 December 2013, the work

(V)

performed by the Nomination Committee is summarized
below:

a. Identification and selection of candidates with suitable
professional, experience and expertise for directorship;

b.  Review and making recommendation to the Board on
matters relating to appointment of the Directors;

Corporate Governance Function

The Board is principally responsible for the corporate
governance functions of the Company. During the year ended
31 December 2013, the work for corporafe governance
performed by the Board is summarized below:

a.  Development and review of the Company's policies and
practices on corporate governance;

b.  Review and monitoring the training and continuous
professional development of the Directors and senior
management of the Group;

c.  Review and monitoring the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;

d.  Development, review and monitoring the code of conduct
and

employees and the Directors;

corporate governance policy applicable to

e.  Review of the Company's compliance with the CG Code
and disclosure in the corporate governance report.

(V)

REBE2013F12A3IBIEFE  REEE

SETHIESANT:

a. PErRBESEER BEEREAR
ATHEESBS

b. BHELANERZTEZTNEERES
EREER -

EEERBAE

EXZgIZ2REARFANGEEE

SR BEE ©

RBZE2013F12R3IRILFE - BEFER
TR EERITEMMNAT

TEEEREZRARLA

%XJ:l &T/\/\ETZL‘Z\\—JE}]JJ—_% B /El Eﬁ(%&
HR

BRkEEAEEEENSNERE
MIBIIRSEEXER:

RET MEBARRMNBREER - A
TRZEAEREERTE:

BR - RIMEBEERANEER
MITRTRIREEERRE &
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DIRECTORS” RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Board acknowledges its responsibility to prepare the Group's
financial statements for each financial period, which give a frue and
fair view of the stafe of affairs of the Group and of the results and
cash flows for that period. The Company deploys appropriate and
sufficient resources to prepare audited accounts. In preparing the
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2013, the
Board has selected suitable accounting policies and opplied them
consistently, made judgments and estimates that are prudent, fair
and reasonable and prepared the financial statements on a going
concern basis. The Directors are responsible for taking all
reasonable and necessary steps to safeguard the assets of the
Group and to prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

Ernst & Young, which had acted as the auditors of the Company,
was removed in the extraordinary meefing on 20 February 2013.
During the year ended 31 December 2013, there is no fee paid or
payable for Emst & Young.

The Company appointed ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA Limited (formerly
known as ANDA CPA Llimited) as the auditors of the Company on
15 March 2013. During the year ended 31 December 2013, the
remuneration paid or payable to ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA Llimited

and their network firms is set out below:

Services rendered

5l B Rk R A H AT

EXeMRERS MR AREREARET KR
ZNEBEME REEAAMRBEAEENEH N
ARZHRNEERBESRE - ARAHFER
ENFRERARRERFRE - ERREE
203F12ABLEFENUBREAK  EFE
EEEBEAEMNSHHRLEM —BULER - 1F
HEE AAAEMHERMAET  LRIFEEL
EEEREVBRER -EFRERN—YUAE
RVEZBARBAEEEE  ARBLIE
MR EMT AR -

sl b
LRERARABHMORKGHMEBH - 1
201342 A20 A MR FBIA & L B A AT
FEEIMAS o MEE20134E12A31 BILERE -
mEMKBARKEAMEBAOER -

ARFR2013FIANSREREFERESFHME
BHRERAR (FIEI L EGMEHLMERA
Al RARABMERAD - REVE2013412/31H
LHFE BN ENTERESHMETME
PRAT R EBERTOH ST 0T

Fee paid/payable

R BB ENRENER
RMB'000

ARETT

Audit of financial statements B e 536
Agreed-upon procedures of interim review HWEPHENIZF 134
Review of infernal confrol system EHREEH RS 276
Other non-audit services H i IE | 5T AR5 47
Q93
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INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for maintaining sound and effective
infernal control systems, which covers financial reporting, operations,
compliance and risk management of the Company, in order to
safeguard the Group's assets and shareholders' interests, and review
and monitor the effectiveness of the Company’s infernal control and
risk management systems on a regular basis so as to ensure that
internal  control and  risk management systems in place are
adequate. The Company also has an on-going process for
identifying, evaluating, and managing the significant risks to the
achievement of its objective.

The Audit Committee reviews the internal controls that are significant
to the Group on an on-going basis. The Audit Committee considers
the adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience and
training of staff of the Group's accounting and financial reporting
function.

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Company has
engaged an external advisor to review its internal confrol sysfem
and make recommendations to the Board any improvements on the
existing infernal control procedures. The review was conducted with
reference to Internal Control — Integrated Framework published by
the Commitlee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission [the "COSQ") and Corporate Governance Code and
the Corporate Governance Report as set out in Appendix 14 under
the Listing Rules an d other relevant listing Rules. It was concluded
that the Group has adequate and effective financial reporting
procedures and systems of internal control.

The Board considered that, for the year ended 31 December
2013, the infernal confrol system and procedures of the Group,
covering all material controls including financial, operational and
compliance controls and risk management functions were reasonably
effective and adequate.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Pak Wai Keung, Martin was oppointed as the Company
Secretary on 1 June 2013 and confirmed that he has taken no less
than 15 hours of relevant professional training for the year ended
31 December 2013.
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SHAREHOLDERS” RIGHTS

(1)

(1)

(1)

34

Shareholders convene an extraordinary general

meeting

Pursuant fo the Arficles of Association, any one or more
registered shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the
requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the
Company carrying the voting right at general meetings of the
Company (the "Requisitionists”) shall, at all times, have the
right, by written requisition to the Board or the Company
Secrefary deposited at Unit 6812-13, The Center, 99 Queen'’s
Road Central, Hong Kong, fo require an extraordinary general
meefing fo be called by the Board for the transaction of any
business specified in such requisition and such meeting shall
be held within two months after the deposit of such
requisition. If, within 21 days of such deposit, the Board fails
fo proceed to convene such meetfing, the Requisifionists
themselves may do so in the same manner, all reasonable
expenses incurred by Requisitionists as a result of the failure of
the Board shall be reimbursed to the Requisitionists by the
Company.

Shareholders put enquiries to the Board
Shareholders  should their their
shareholdings to the Company’s share registrar, Computershare

send enquiries  about
Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, at Shops 1712-1716,
17th  Floor, 183 Queen’s Road East,

Wanchai, Hong Kong.

Hopewell Centre,

Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board at the
general meeting of the Company.

Shareholders put forward proposals at
shareholders’ meetings

There are no provisions under the Company's arficles of
associafion or the Companies law, Cap 22 [law 3 of 1961,
as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands regarding
procedures for Shareholders to put forward proposals at
general meefings other than a proposal of a person for
election as director. Shareholders may follow the procedures
sef out above to convene an extraordinary general meetfing for
any business specified in such writlen requisition.
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INVESTOR AND SHAREHOLDER RELATIONS

(1)

(1

Constitutional documents

The Company confirmed that there has been no significant
change in the Company’s memorandum and arficles of
associations during the year ended 31 December 2013.

Communication with shareholders

The Board recognizes the importance of maintaining clear,
fimely and effective communication with the shareholders and
that
communication with the investors is the key to esfablish

the investors. The Board also recognizes effective
investor's confidence and to attract new investors. Therefore,
the Group is committed fo maintaining a high degree of
fransparency fo ensure that the investors and the shareholders
receive accurate, clear, comprehensive and timely information
of the Group by the pub|icoﬂon of annual report, inferim
reports, announcements and circulars. The Company also
publishes all such documents on the Company’s website at
www.kingstonemining.com. The Directors and the Board
committee members are available fo answer questions at

annual general meetfing of the Company.
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The Board hereby presents its report and the audited consolidated
financial statement of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2013.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of the Group are the mining, processing and frading of the
marble stones and marble-related products. During the vyear, there
were no significant changes in the nature of the Group's principal

activities.

The principal activities of the Company’s major subsidiaries are sef
out in note 21 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2013
are sef out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on page 53 of this annual report.

The Directors do not recommended the payment of a dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2013 (2012: Nil).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, p\onf and equipment of the
Group during the year ended 31 December 2013 are sef out in
note 17 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in issued share capital of the Company
during the year ended 31 December 2013 are sef out in nofe 35
to the consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of
Association or the laws of the Cayman Islands which would oblige
the Company to offer new shares on pro rata basis to existing
shareholders.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY
Details of the movements in reserves of the Group during the year
ended 31

statements of changes in equity on page 56 of this annual report.

December 2013 are set out in the consolidated

As at 31 December 2013, the Company's reserves available for
distribution to shareholders in accordance with the Articles of
Association are RMB101.0 million (31 December 2012: RMB361.7

million).

BORROWINGS

Details of the borrowings of the Group are set out in nofe 31 to
the consolidated financial statements.

DONATIONS
The Group did not make any donations during the year.

SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2013 are set out on
page 132 of this annual report.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 December 2013, sales to the Group's five
largest customers in aggregate represented 85% (2012: 100%) of
fotal sales of the Group and sales fo the single largest customer
accounted for approximately 37% (2012: 50%) of fofal sales of the
Group.

For the year ended 31 December 2013, purchases of materials
from the Group five largest suppliers accounted for approximately
9% (2012: 100%) of total purchases of the Group and purchases
from the single largest supplier accounted for approximately 30%

(2012: 82%) of total purchase of the Group.

For the year ended 31 December 2013, none of the Directors or
any of their associates or any shareholders who, to the knowledge
of the Directors, owns more than 5% of the Company’s issued
capifal, had any inferest in the five largest customers or suppliers.
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DIRECTORS
The Directors during the year and up tfo the dafe of this report

were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Liv Hongyu (Chairman) (Appointed on 30 April 2013)
Ms. Zhang Cuiwei (Appointed on 30 April 2013)

Mr. Zhu Hongjun (Appointed on 17 April 2013)

Mr. Zhang Jianzhong (Appointed on 30 August 2013)
Mr. Xiong Wenijun [Removed on 6 February 2013)

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Wang Dong (Appointed on & February 2013 and
resigned on 17 April 2013)

Mr. Chan Chi Yin (Appointed on & February 2013 and
resigned on 17 April 2013)

Mr. lee Wa Lun, Warren (Appoinfed on & february 2013 and
resigned on 30 April 2013)

Mr. Mak Ka Wing, Patrick (Appointed as independent
non-executive director on 6 february 2013, re-designated fo
non-executive director on 17 April 2013 and resigned
on 13 June 2013)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Chung Wai Man [Appointed on & February 2013)

Mr. lam Tin Faat (Appointed on 6 February 2013)

Mr. Lu Zhiwei (Appointed on 30 August 2013)

Mr. Pak Wai Keung, Martin [Appointed on 17 April 2013 and
resigned on 1 June 2013)

Notes:

(1) At the extroordinary general meeting held on ¢ February 2013 on the
requisiion of a confrolling shareholder of the Company, VWongs
Investment Development Holdings Group Llimited (In liquidation), Mr.
Xiong Weijun was removed as an executive Direcfor and each of Mr.
Liv Yuquan and Ms. Deng Guiping was removed as an independent
non-execufive Director. Each of Mr. Chan Chi Yin, Mr. Wang Dong and
Mr. lee Wa lun, Warren was appointed as a non-executive Direcfor
and each of Mr. Mak Ka Wing, Patrick, Mr. Chung Wai Man and Mr.
lam Tin Faat was appointed as an independent non-executive Director.

[2) At the annual general meeting held on 19 June 2013, each of Mr.
Zhu Hongjun, Mr. Liv Hongyu, Ms. Zhang Cuiwei and Mr. Pak Wai
Keung Martin will refire from office of Directors at the Annual
General Meeting. Mr. Zhu Hongjun, Mr. Liu Hongyu, Ms. Zhang
Cuiwei and Mr. Pak Wai Keung Martin, the refiring Directors, were
resolved to be re-elected as Directors af this annual general meeting.

38 China Kingstone Mining Holdings Limited ~ Annual Report 2013

HH
RENRBEARSEAMMESS -

HBITES

BIAIR S & (E/E)(R2013F4H30H #E Z F)

RBE A+ (RO0IZFAFI0E EE (F)
KA B (R2013EAF17H EZE 1F)
RIERLA(R20I13F8H30H EZ (F)
BE ST S 4 (R20I3E2 H6H ## EE%)

FHITEE

F R % (R2013E2 H6H #EZ 1T
W R201344 4178 B F)

Bk 4% B 4 4 (201342 A6 H # Z (F
W R20135F 48178 B F)

I e 58 4 (R201342 A6 H B ZE (F
W R20139F4H30H 8 (F)

BRI (R2013E2 A6 H EZE (F
BEUIFNTEE  R20I13F4A17H
FEFEBHBITEE
W R20134F 65136 B (F)

BUFATES

BIER K4 (R201382A6A#ZE(F)
MR B & (R2013F2H6H #EZE (F)
B EBEE(R2013F8H30H # Z (F)
AR L (R20I3F4A17HEZE

I R2013F 6 A 1H B (£)

B 2 ¢

(M

(2)

AN B EYE AR AL B Wongs Investment Development
Holdings Group limited (& # ) 12 HH 89 25k 3
2013F2ROBBITR RTINS - & LR
TEEWRBRATERRY  BEREERBE
FREIWERBUFRTEERL - REE L
o IREERFTEREEZBREZERIES
TEE MERKLE  BHRLE RMKE
EHEAZEREERBIYFNTES -

M2013FOAIARTHRRBAF ARG L - K4
ERA - BIARNELE  REBRZLILRARRE
EERRRBEFASETESRY - REES
KRAFERE BAREE  REBLEIRAR
BELERZBRBEFASLEZIRETERE
=o



Report of the Directors EE SR E

In accordance with Article 84(1) of the Artficles of Association, one-
third of the Direcfors for the time being shall refire from office by
rofation provided that every Director shall be subject fo refirement af
an annual general meeting at least once every three years.
Accordingly, Mr. Chung Wai Man and Mr. lam Tin Faat shall refire
from office and being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.

Mr. Zhang Jianzhong and Mr. lu Zhiwei were appointed as an
execufive Director and independent non-executive Director by the
Board on 30 August 2013, respectively. Pursuant to Arficle 83(3) of
the Arficles of Association, they shall hold office only until the first
annual general meeting of the Company after their appointment
and be subject to re-election at such meeting.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-
execufive Directors, a confirmation of his/her independence pursuant
fo Rule 3.13 of the Llisting Rules. The Company considers all the
independent non-executive Directors to be independent.

DIRECTORS” SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the Directors has entered into a service contract or letter of
appointment with the Company for a term of three years from the
date of his/her appointment. Such service confract or letter of
appointment can be ferminated by either party serving at least one
month’s notice prior to the expiry of the term.

None of the Directors [including any Director who may be
proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting)
has entered info any service agreement with the Company which is
not determinable by the Group within one year without payment of
compensation (other than statutory compensation).

REMUNERATION OF THE DIRECTORS

The remuneration of each Director is approved at general meeting.
Other

Committee and the

emoluments  will be determined by the Remuneration
Board with the duties,

responsibilities, performance of the Directors and the results of the

reference to

Group. The remuneration of all Directors is subject to regular review
and monitoring by the Remuneration Committee to ensure that the
levels of their remunerafion and compensation are appropriate.

Details of the remuneration of the Directors are set out in note 12
to the consolidated financial statements.
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DIRECTORS” AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
BIOGRAPHIES

The biographical defails of the Directors and senior management
are set out on pages 15 to 18 of this annual report.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The Group's emolument policies are formulated on the performance
of individual employee and on the basis of the salary frends in
Hong Kong and China, and will be reviewed regularly. Subject to
the profitability of the Group, the Group may also distribute
discretionary bonus to its employees as an incentive for their
contribution to the Group. The Group has adopted a share opfion
scheme for its employees.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident
Fund refirement benefits scheme ("“MPF Scheme’) under the Hong
Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, for those
employees who are eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme in
Hong Kong. The Group also participates in a defined contribution
refirement scheme organized by PRC government, under which the
Group is required to contribute a specific percentage of the payroll
of its employees to the refirement scheme. Save as disclosed
above, the Group has not operated any other retirement benefits
schemes for the Group's employees.

DIRECTORS” INTERESTS IN SHARES

As at 31 December 2013, none of Directors or the chief executive
of the Company or their respective associates had any interests or
short positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or ifs associated corporations |within the meaning of Part
XV of the Securities of Futures Ordinance (the “"SFO”) which have
been nofified to the Company and the Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong (the "Stock Exchange’) pursuant to Division 7 and 8 of Part
XV of the SFO, including interests and short positions which the
Directors and the chief executive of the Company are taken and
deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO, or which are
required fo be and are recorded in the register required o be kept
under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise nofified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

At no time had the Company or any of its holding company or
subsidiaries been participated in any arrangements fo enable the
Directors or chief executive (including their spouse and children
under 18 years of age] to acquire any inferests and short positions
of shares or underlying shares or debentures of the Company or

lI'U China Kingstone Mining Holdings Limited ~ Annual Report 2013
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any of its associated corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of
the SFO).

DIRECTORS” RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR

DEBENTURES

At no time during the year ended 31 December 2013 were rights
fo acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or
debentures of the Company granted to any of the Directors or their
respecfive spouses or minor children, or were any such rights
exercised by them; or was the Company, its holding company, or
any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party to any
arrangement fo enable the Directors to acquires such rights in any

other body corporate.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS” INTERESTS IN
SECURITIES

As at 31 December 2013, substantial shareholders’ interests or short
position in the shares and underlying shares of the Company, being
interests of 5% or more, as recorded in the register of substantial
shareholders maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 336
of the SFO were as follows:
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Percentage of the
issued share

Number of long/ capital of the

Name Capacity underlying shares Short position Company
HARATE BT
wE LB 5% HEROEE & KA BEED
Mr. Huang Xianyou Interest in controlled 1,226,926,277 long position 62.99%
corporoﬂon (note 1)
HEELEAE AZ AR E = g
(B 3ED)
Wongs Investment Development Beneficial Owner 1,226,926,277 long position 62 99%

Holdings Group Llimited (note 1, 2)
(In liquidation)
Ex#EAEAMIE - 2)

Wongs Investment Development

Holdings Group Limited (& £ /)
Notes:

1. The entire share capital of Wongs Investment Development Holdings
Group Limited (In liquidation), a company incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands with limited liability, was held by Mr. Huang Xianyou.
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2. On 19 June 2013, the High Court of Hong Kong made an order that
Mr. lam Hok Chung Rainier and Mr. Jong Yat Kit, both of Messrs
PricewaterhouseCoopers be appointed as the joint and several
liquidators of Wongs Investment Development Holdings Group Llimited
(In liquidation) (the “liquidators”), hence Mr. Llai Kar, Derek and M.
Darach E. Haughey, both of Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu,
ceased fo be the liquidators.

Save as disclosed above, none of the existing Directors is aware of
that any person [not being Directors or chief executive of the
Company) had an inferest or short position in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register of
substantial shareholders maintained by the Company pursuant to
Section 336 of the SFO.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Pre-IPO share option scheme

The Company has adopted a pre-IPO share option scheme on 24
January 2011 (the “Pre-lPO Option Scheme’) for the purpose of
giving the ifs employees, advisers, consultants and business partners
an opportunity fo have a persono| stake in the Company and he|p
motivate them to optimize their future performance and efficiency to
the Company and/or to reward them for their past confributions, to
atfract and refain or otherwise maintain on-going relationships with
such employees, advisers, consultants and business partners who are
significant to and/or whose contributions are or will be beneficial to
the performance, growth or success of the Company.

The share options under the Pre-IPO share option scheme (the “Pre-
IPO Options’) to subscribe for an aggregate of 40,000,000 shares
of the Company were conditionally granted to two parficipants by
the Company on 24 January 2011. The exercise price was HK$0.6
per PrellPO Option, being a discount of 73.33% to the global
offering price of the share of the Company.

Al Pre-IPO  Options

commencing from the end of twelve months after the Listing Date

may be exercised during the period

lie. 18 March 2012) to the date falling five years from the Listing
Date (i.e. 17 March 2016).

No further Pre-IPO Options can be granted after the date of listing
of the Company's shares on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange (the “listing Date”).
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Details of outstanding and movement of the Pre-IPO Options during
the year ended 31 December 2013 are as follows:

RBE2013F12ANRIEFE - RITEHNEX

ARAEEMBERELEESHNFBLT:

As at Exercised/ As at

Exercise 1 January Llapsed during 31 December

Date of grant price 2013 the year 2013

R2013F RER R2013F

RiHAH TREME 1A T/ A% 12A31R
24 January 2011 201141 A 241 HK$0.60

0.6078 7T 40,000,000 — 40,000,000

Options vested at end of year R F K& E 5B IR E 40,000,000 40,000,000

Weighted average exercise IHEFH T EE HK$0.60 HK$0.60

price 0.607% 7T 0.607% 7T

Weighted average remaining  HN#E T F 4 & 495 3.21 vyears 2.21 vyears

confractual life 3214 2214

Note:

1. The share option grantees were the former director and employee of
the Company.

2. On 24 May 2012, the Board passed a resolution that these Pre-IPO
Options shall continue to be exercisable until the expiry of the option
period regardless of that the grantees ceased to be director or
employee of the Company.

2011 Share Option Scheme

Apart from PrellPO  Option Scheme, the Company has also
adopted a share optfion scheme on 24 January 2011 (the "2011
Option Scheme”). A summary of 2011 Option Scheme is set out
below:

Purpose

The purpose of 2011 Option Scheme is fo give the eligible persons
an opportunity to have a personal stake in the Company and help
motivate them to optimize their future performance and efficiency to
the Group and/or to reward them for their past contributions, to
attract and retain or otherwise maintain on-going relationships with
such eligible persons who are significant to and/or whose
confributions are or will be beneficial to the performance, growth or
success of the Group, and addifionally in the case of executives, to
enable the Group to atfract and refain individuals with experience
and ability and/or to reward them for their past contributions.
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Farticipants of the scheme

The Board may grant opfions to any person being a director or
proposed director (including an independent non-executive director),
employee (fullime or part fime), shareholder (direct or indirect),
supplier, customer, consultant, business or joint-venture pariner,
fronchise, contractor, agent or representative, and adviser, of any

member of the Company, and their associates.

Maximum number of shares available for issve

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon exercise
of all options to be granted under the 2011 Option Scheme and
any other schemes of the Group shall not in aggregate exceed 10%
of the shares in issue of the Company as at the date of the Listing
Date. Subject to the terms as provided in the 2011 Option
Scheme, the Company may seek approval from its shareholders in
general meeting to refresh the 10% limit (not exceeding 10% of the
shares in issue of the Company as at the date of approval by the
shareholders of the Company in general meefing] and grant options
beyond such 10% limit, but the total number of shares which may
be issued upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet
to be exercised under 2011 Option Scheme and any other
schemes of the Group must not exceed 30% of the number of
shares in issue from fime fo fime.

Maximum entilement of each participant

No option may be granted to any one eligible person such that the
fotal number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of
options granted and fo be granted to that person in any 12-month
period exceeds 1% of the number of shares in issue of the
Company from time to time. The Company may seek approval from
its shareholders in general meeting to grant options to the eligible
person exceeding 1% of the shares in issue of the Company in 12
month period up to and including the date of such further grant.

Period of the share fo be taken up under an option

An offer of the grant of an opfion shall remain open for
acceptance by the eligible person concemed for a period of 28
days from the date of offer upon payment of HK$1.0 for each
grant of options.

Minimum holding period of an option
Subject fo the ferms and conditions in the 2011 Option Scheme, the
Board may defermine there is no minimum period for which an

be held before

performance farget which needs to be achieved by the grantee

option  must it can be exercised and no

before the option can be exercised.
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Subscription price

The subscription price in respect of any particular opfion shall be
such price as the Board may in its absolute discretion determine at
the time of grant of the relevant option but the subscription price
shall not be less than whichever is highest of (1) the nominal value
of the shares; (2) the closing price of the shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange'’s daily quotations sheet on the offer date; and (3)
the average closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange's daily quotations sheets for the five business days (as
defined in the listing Rules) immediately preceding the date of offer.

life of 2011 Option Scheme
The 2011 Share Option Scheme will be valid and effective for a
period of 10 vyears from the date of adoption.

Ranking of Shares

The shares to be allotted upon the exercise of an option will be
subject to all the provisions of the Articles of Association and the
laws of the Cayman Islands from time to time and shall rank pari
passu in all respects with the then existing fully paid shares in issue
on the allotment date or, if that date falls on a day when the
register of members of the Company is closed, the first dafe of the
re-opening of the register of members, and accordingly will entitle
the holders to participate in all dividends or other distributions paid
or made on or after the allotment date or, if that date falls on a
day when the register of members of the Company is closed, the
first day of the re-opening of the register of members, other than
any dividend or other distribution previously declared or
recommended or resolved to be paid or made if the record date
therefore shall be before the allotment date. Share issued upon the
exercise of an option shall not carry rights until the registration of
the grantee (or any other person) as the holder thereof.
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Details of outstanding and movement of share options under 2011
Option Scheme [the “2011 Options”) during the year ended 31

December 2013 are as follows:

REZE 2013128318 IEFE - 2011 FREMRREST
BT ARITRBARE (201N FRBAE]D R &5
BT :

Exercise As at  Exercised/Lapsed As at
Date of grant price 1 January 2013 during the year 31 December 2013
& A H TEE R2013F1H1E RERTE X¥ R20135F12831H
4 November 2011 HK$1.38
2011411 H4R 1.38% 7T 7,800,000 - 7,800,000
Options vested at end of year
AR5 B R AR 7,800,000 7,800,000
Weighted average exercise price HK$1.38 HK$1.38
nwEFHITEE 1.38% 7T 1.387# 7T
Weighted average remaining contractual life 8.85 years 7.85 years
INHE T 15 F #h & K 2 8.85%F 7.85%
Note: Bt 5%

1. The grantees were the former director and employee of the Company.

2. On 24 May 2012, the Board passed a resolution that these options
shall continue to vest and be exercisable until the expiry of the option
period regardless of these grantees ceased to be director or
employee of the Company.

3. The options were divided info three tranches in proportion of 50%,
25% and 25% exercisable from 4 November 2011, 4 November
2012 and 4 November 2013 to 3 November 2021, respectively.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

Other than the service contracts with executive Direcfors and chief
executive officer and letter of appointment with independent non-
executive Directors, no confracts concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of any business
of the Company were entered or existed during the year ended 31

December 2013.
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DIRECTORS” INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

disclosed heading

no confract of significance in

Save as under the section "Continuing

Connected Transactions”  below,
relafion fo the business of the Group, fo which the Company, its
holding companies, ifs subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a
party and in which a Director had a material inferest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time

during the year ended 31 December 2013

No contfract of significance for the provision of services to the
Company or any of its subsidiaries by a confrolling shareholder of
the Company or any of its subsidiaries subsisted at the end of year
or at any fime during the year ended 31 December 2013

DIRECTORS” INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

None of the Directors is or was inferested in any business apart
from the Group's business that competes or competed or is or was
likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the Group's
business at any fime during the year ended 31 December 2013
and up to and including the date of this annual report.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

A framework engagement and annual retainer lefter (the “Framework
Engagement’) was entered info by the Company and Messrs.
Patrick Mak and Tse (the “law Firm”), an associate of Mr. Mak Ka
Wing, Patrick, who was a director of the Company within the
preceding 12 months, in relation to the provision of the legal
services by the law Firm fo the Company, further details of which
are included in the Company's announcement dated 6 May 2013.
As  such,

Engagement constfitutes a continuing connected transaction of the

the fransaction contemplated under the Framework

Company under the Listing Rules.

ARREBERKEMIT(RMTDRERESE

EMBBEA MERKELERIZEARNEEE
ARBER)FUERZERFEER KM (1E
REE|) ARBRARZETRAANREREZR
% BEE—SHBHEHRARRBHAH20135F5H
CHBIAMA « FHitt - RIFETRA - ERZE
THRETHXZERARANFEBERS -

Consideration for

Date of the year ended
Connected person engagement Terms Services 31 December 2013
B Z2013F12A31
BEAL ZEAH F BR # BEFENRKE
RMB'000
ARETT
Mak Ka Wing, Pafrick 6 May 2013 3 years commencing from legal services 515
6 May 2013 to 5 May 2016
(both days inclusive)
BRESLE 20135 5H6H B20135F5H6RA R E20165F5H EERE

SH(BHEEMA) A=

Mr. Mck Ka Wing, Pafrick, who has material interest in the
Framework Engagement, had abstained from voting on the relevant
resolution of the Board for approving the Framework Engagement.

The Board considers that the terms of the Framework Engagement
are on normal commercial terms, fair and reasonable and that the
fransactions contemplated under the Framework Engagement are in
the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group and in the
interests of the Company and its shareholders as a whole.

Pursuant fo Rule 14A.38 of the listing Rules, the Board engaged the
auditor of the Company to perform certain factual findings
procedures in respect of the continuing connected fransactions in
accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagement
3000 "Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of
Historical Financial Information” and with reference to Practice Note
740 “"Auditor’s Lefter on Continuing Connected Transactions under
the Hong Kong Llisting Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. The auditor has reported the factual
findings on these procedures to the Board and confirmed that for
the year ended 31 December 2013, the confinuing connected

l|'8 China Kingstone Mining Holdings Limited ~ Annual Report 2013

BRREE(NIERZETHEEARRZ)RE
EEeREERZBZABRZRNERE -

EXeRR ERZBZERTAE —REERK
FoBRAFRE  MERZETRETZIRSE
AEBENHER-—RER  LTAARAKLE
P RA BB A a5

R ETHRANEIIAI8G EESZBALE
FERTANIZ BB R TEERIE30005% (X R
EITIFERAEMBEMEEROZETLE
W2REE SRS RM 2 B HHAE74057
[BAR & B _ LR RIFT 5 48 B & X B HE AT BD
IS BRERSNTETEERERF
EMCHZEREFNESEeRETERHTES
R UHERBBZE2013F12A3BILFE - #E
EXZNEARREFTGLEAM A (I)REE



Report of the Directors EE SR &

transactions (i) are properly approved by the board of Directors of
the Company; [ii] have been entered info in accordance with the
terms of the agreements governing the transactions; and (i) have
not exceeded the cap amounts for the year ended 31 December
2013 as sef out in the Announcement.

DEED OF NON-COMPETITION

Reference is made fo the announcements of the Company dated 11
October 2012. 25 October 2012, 26 April 2013 and 28 June
2013
Wongs  Investment  Development Holdings Group limited, the

in relation to, inter alia, the winding-up proceedings of
confrolling shareholder of the Company. On 14 February 2014, the
Company received a letter from the liquidators ("liquidators’) of
Wongs Investment Development Holdings Group Limited, pursuant fo
which the liquidators confirmed that Wongs Investment Development
Holdings Group Limited has not been carrying on or participating
in any business due fo its continuing winding-up proceedings. On
the other hand, the Company has vef fo receive from Mr. Huang
Xianyou the confirmation of compliance with the non competition
undertaking under the Non-Competition Deed. In view of the
above, the independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the
status of compliance and are of the view that Wongs Investment
Development Holdings Group Llimited has complied with s
undertaking under the Deed of Non-Competition but would nof
provide their views in relation to whether Mr. Huang Xianyou has

complied with his undertaking under the Deed of Non-Competition.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in
Appendix 10 of the Llisting Rules as its own code of conduct for
dealing in securities of the Company by the directors. Having made
specific enquiry to all the Directors, they confirmed that they have
complied with the required sfandard of dealings as set out in the

Model Code throughout the year ended 31 December 2013

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Details of the Company's corporate governance practices are set ouf
in the Corporate Governance Report of this annual report.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company nor any of ifs subsidiaries has purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company's listed securities during the

year ended 31 December 2013
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed from 20
June 2014 1o 24 June 2014 (both days inclusive), during which time
no share fransfers will be registered. In order to be eligible to
attend the 2013 annual general meeting of the Company,
instruments of transfer accompanied by share certificates and other
appropriate documents must be lodged with the Company's share
registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Invesfor Services limited, af
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s
Road East, Wan Chai, Hong Kong, no later than 4:30 p.m. on 19
June 2014.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT
18 March 2011

main board of the Stock Exchange. Based on publicly available

The shares of the Company were listed on on the
information and to the best of the Directors’ knowledge, information
and belief, the Company has maintained sufficient public float
during the year and up fo the date of this report of directors under
the Listing rules.

AUDITORS

The financial statements have been audited by ZHONGHUI ANDA
CPA limited who refire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
appointment in the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee, which consists of three members, namely Mr.
lam Tin Faaf, Mr. Chung Wai Man and Mr. Llu Zhiwei, all of
whom are independent non-executive Directors, has reviewed the
Group's consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2013, including the accounting principles and practices
adopted by the Group and discussed with auditors in relation to the
internal control and financial reporting matters of the Group.

On behalf of the Board
Liu Hongyu
Chairman

28 February, 2014
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Independent Auditor’s Report
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ZHONGHUI
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
CHINA KINGSTONE MINING HOLDINGS LIMITED
TESAREZRAERAT
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China
Kingstone Mining Holdings Limited (the "Company’) and its
subsidiaries [together, the "Group') set out on pages 53 fo 131,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as
at 31 December 2013, and the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of
changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the
vear then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS” RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
these consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the International Accounting Standards Board and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the Directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is fo express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility fowards or accept liability to any other person
for the confents of this report. We conducted our audit in accordance
with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
fo obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statfements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material

misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
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fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the audifor considers
infernal control relevant to the entity's preparation of consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but nof for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity's internal confrol.  An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating
the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our qualified audit opinion.

BASIS FOR QUALIFIED OPINION

Opening balances and corresponding figures

Our audit opinion on the consolidated financial statements of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2012, which forms the
basis for the corresponding figures presented in the current year's
consolidated financial statements, was disclaimed because of the
significance of the possible effect of the limitations on the scope of
our audif, details of which are set out in our audit report dated 28
March 2013. Up to the dafe of this report, we had obtained
safisfactory audit evidences fo clear the limitafion relating to the
property, plant and equipment. In relation to other assets of which
the limitations remain unrectified, the Group has recorded
impairment loss amounted to RMB213,502,000 for the year ended
31 December 2013. We have not been provided with sufficient
audit evidence whether the impairment loss should be recorded in
the current year or prior years. However, we are satisfied that these
assefs are fairly stated as at 31 December 2013.

QUALIFIED OPINION

In our opinion, except for the possible effects of the matter as
described in the basis for qualified opinion paragroph, the
consolidated financial statements give a frue and fair view of the
stafe of the Group's affairs as at 31 December 2013, and of the
Group's results and cash flows for the vyear then ended in
accordance with International  Financial Reporting  Standards  and
have been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA Llimited
Certified Public Accountants

Sze Llin Tang

Practising Certificate Number PO3614
Hong Kong, 28 February 2014
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Consolidated Statement of
Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
molEakHEibZONEE

For the year ended 31 December 2013 #H ZE2013F12A31HIEFE

2013 2012
20134 20124
Notes RMB’'000 RMB'0O00
B 5 AR T ARETTT
REVENUE PN 7 7124 16,062
Cost of sales Fi=R=—D' N (3,513) (5,2806)
Gross profit EF 3,611 10,776
Other income and gains HAb g A R = 8 2,786 30,570
Selling and distribution costs $HE K o 88 A AR (2,382) (741)
Administrative expenses TR X (39,867) (67117)
Impairments of various assefs ZIBE ERE Q (213,502) (512,726)
Written-off of property, plant and WEME - BENRE
equipment (1,797) (23,591)
Finance costs B 75 B AR 10 (263) (5,387)
LOSS BEFORE TAX BRBATE B 11 (251,414) (568,216)
Income tax expense Frgfifx 13 (4,891) (8,153)
LOSS FOR THE YEAR EATRBEEAEGLFEESE
ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS
OF THE COMPANY (256,305) (576,369)
Other comprehensive income/(loss): HEfth ZE Wz (FIE) :
ltems that may be reclassified to  AIREEHF S EEZHEBWIEE
profit or loss:
Exchange differences on translation of P2 & JF A Bl 2 75 B A4 &Y
non-PRC operations EHER (1,028) 2,130
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE LOSS FOR AAFEEAEBEEEEZE
THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE TO EiE4E
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY (257,333) (574,239)
LOSS PER SHARE (RMB cents) SREBARES) 15
— Basic and diluted — AR (13.16) (29.46)

The notes on pages 60 to 131 are an infegral part of these

consolidated financial statements.

Details of dividend to equity holders of the Company are set out in

note 16.

e

16 e

FOOEBAEZMEBAGZRAP BT RR Z— 8

AR~ ) M 75 A AR BB B0 S B BB A
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

ASEIE ) R

As at 31 December 2013 12013412 A31H

2013 2012
2013% 20124
Notes RMB’000 RMB'O00
= AR T AR T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BB RRE 17 172,796 180,145
Intangible assets | EE 18 54,076 69953
Prepaid land lease payments BN EKRA 19 2,362 2,395
Payments in advance BRI 20 = -
Goodwill ?ﬁég 22 — 2,966
Investment in an associate AR S NRIHIRE 23 — 16,242
Available-forsale financial asset —W—‘Eﬂjg & E 24 - -
Deferred tax assets RIETRIEE & 34 179 6,510
229,413 278,211
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Inventories FE 25 5,241 0389
Trade receivables B EIW KA 26 50,179 100,841
Prepayments, deposits and other BNHE R REM
receivables JE W 5K I8 27 16,377 67817
loans to an associate M & RNRIE X 23 — 80,000
Cash and cash equivalents HeERREEEY 28 30,315 28,159
102,112 286,206
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBARE
Trade payables B RN HKIA 29 1,393 1,695
Other payables and accruals /H\ﬁﬂﬂgﬁzﬁ’\lﬁ&}@*‘l’ﬁﬂ% 30 36,665 27170
Amount due to an associate XS ENCIE L] 23 — 3,217
38,058 32,082
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEFHE 64,054 254,124
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT HEERRBEE
LIABILITIES 293,467 532,335
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position % 8 81 ¥ iRiRE

As at 31 December 2013 720134128318

2013 2012
2013% 20124
Notes RMB’000 RMB'O00
N2 AR T AR T
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES kRBEE
Interest-bearing loan FEER 31 19,698 —
Provision for rehabitation BRREE 32 2,428 =
Deferred income % IE WA 33 194 194
Deferred tax liabilities RIEFIBEEE 34 3,462 7123
25,782 7317
NET ASSETS BEEFE 267,685 525,018
EQUITY =
Equity attributable to owners of the AT HE A LR
Company
Issued capital BT A 35 164,106 164,106
Reserves i 36 103,579 360,912
Total equity BmrER 267,685 525,018

The notes on pages 60 to 131 are an integral part of these FOORIZNE Z W iE B AL E I | Ez 2 — &
consolidated financial statements. e

The consolidated financial sfatements on pages 53 to 131 were  ZB53EI13NE 4R & B 15 W &= 2 R20145F2 A28
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 28 HEZEFEH ERKETE  WHTINEER

February 2014 and are signed on its behalf by: REE:
Director Director
BE BE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

""'_L

)

For the year ended 31 December 2013 # Z2013F12A31B IEFE

Foreign Retained
Share currency profits/
Issued Share Capital ~ Contributed option franslation (accumulated
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve reserve losses) Total equity
g REFE/
BRITRE ROEE E4RHE LSRG BRERE AERE (RFER) BRER
RMB'OOO  RMB'OOO  RMB'000 RMB'O0O  RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'O00  RMB'000
ARBTT ARSTT ARBTL ARBTRT ARBTT ARBTR ARETT ARETR
At 1 January 2012 R2012461818 168,086 867035 - 14,480 49,843 [6,911) 25,071 1117604
Loss for the year FEEBE - - - - - - (576,369) (576,369
Other comprehensive gain: Hip2EKE:
Exchange difference on translation of RGP REBELN
non-PRC operations EHRZER - - - - = 2,130 = 2,130
Total comprehensive gain/[loss) 2ENE/ (BB EE - - - - - 2,130 (576,369 (574,239)
Redemption of shares B8 B it 1 [3980) (250064 - - - - - [29,044)
Forfeiture of share options RS B B - - - - [356) - - (356)
Equity-setfled share option arrangements 12 4 45 8 B R i 2 1F - - - - 11,053 - - 11,053
Total transactions with owners BREARSHESE [3980]  (25,064) - - 10,697 - - (18,347
At 31 December 2012 20124 12A318 164,106 841971 - 14,480 60,540 (4,781 [551,298) 525,018
At 1 January 2013 M2013F1A1H 164,106 841971 = 14,480 60,540 (4,781) (551,298) 525,018
Loss for the year FEER = = = = = = (256,305)  (256,305)
Other comprehensive loss: Hip2EEE:
Exchange difference on translation of REEFPRAEBELD
non-PRC operations EREZE = = = = = (1,028) - (1,028)
Total comprehensive loss 2EBEEE = = = = = (1,028)  (256,305) (257,333)
At 31 December 2013 M2013F12A318 164,106 841971 = 14,480 60,540 (5,809) (807,603) 267,685

The Group's retained profits/accumulated losses included an amount
of RMB4,831,000 (2012: RMB4,831,000) reserved by the
subsidiaries in the People’s Republic of China (the "PRC") in
accordance with the relevant PRC regulations. The PRC laws and
regulations require companies registered in the PRC to provide for
cerfain sfafufory reserves, which are fo be appropriated from the net
profit (after offsefting accumulated losses from prior years) as
reported in their respective statutory financial statements, before profit
distributions o equity holder. All statutory reserves are created for
specific purposes. PRC company is required to appropriate 10% of
statutory net profits to statutory surplus reserves, upon distribution of
itfs posttax profifs of the current year. A company may discontinue the
confribution when the aggregate sum of the statutory surplus reserve
is more than 50% of its registered capital. The statutory surplus
reserves shall only be used to make up losses of the company, to
expand the company’s production operations, or fo increase the
capital of the company. In addition, a company may make further
confribution to the discretional surplus reserve using ifs postfax profifs
in accordance with the resolutions of the board of directors.

The notes on pages 60 to 131 are an integral part of these
consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

ml'ﬁ Iq @ m E %(

For the year ended 31 December 2013 #; £ 201

3FI2A3IRIEFE

2013 2012
20134 20124
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
B 5% AR®TR ARBTT
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING R&EFEHFEREARE
ACTIVITIES
Loss before tax B 7 AT E 18 (251,414) (568,216)
Adjustments for: HATRIBELFAE:
Depreciation of items of property, ME BELRRBEBINE
plant and equipment 17 8,783 10,676
less: Depreciation capitalized W EBEAREITE |4 (3,117) (3,412)
5,666 7,264
Amortisation of infangible assets BB E 18 3 7
Amortisation of prepaid land lease  TE{ 1 #b 7 & 51 18 # 84
payments 19 33 28
loss on disposal of items of HEME BERKEHEB
property, plant and equipment 18 = 74
Written-off of property, plant and MEEME - BERRE
equipment 1,797 23,591
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HEMREAR K 38 (2,576) -
Impairments of prepayments, TR FIE - Re R EMER
deposits and other receivables RIE R E 9 61,016 494,726
Impairment on investment in an REEE AR Z RERE
associate Q 16,242 —
Impairment of loans to an A Bt & A A B FORE
associate Q 72,000 —
Impairment on goodwill & RE 9 2,966 —
Impairment on intangible assets BIEERE Q? 7,400 -
Impairment of trade receivables B 5 MWK IERE Q 53,878 18,000
Provision for rehabitation 1B R 2,428 —
Stock loss FEER 856 933
Interest on bank,/other loans R/ HEMERFE 10 263 5,387
Foreign exchange loss M H R 968 507
Equity-setiled share option expenses — #& #x 4% & s IR 4 [ 2 - 10,697
Interest income F B W A (43) (30,152)
(28,517) (37144)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows &S

For the year ended 31 December 2013 & £2013F12A31H LLFE

SREHEER

2013 2012
20134 20124
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
Bt 5 AR®TR ARET T
Change in prepayments, deposits and TE FUIE « 12 & & H {th fE UK
other receivables RIEEE) (1,578) (65,990
Change in inventories f‘fg 3,292 (1,038)
Change in trade receivables B o REWRIEE ) (3,215) (11,183)
Change in amount due fo an FE T & R R FRIB &
associate — 1,000
Change in trade payables B REMNRIEE (302) 412
Change in other payables and Hib B HIAN BT ERE
accruals 5962 (1,040)
Cash used in operations K EEBMAR S (24,358) (114,983)
Income tax paid BTSN (410) (24,947)
Net cash flows used in operating RKREZBHFARESRETHE
activities (24,768) (139930)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING REEZBHFEBHESRE
ACTIVITIES
Purchase of items of property, plant BE#H¥ - BMERZEIER
and equipment (1,142) (8,484)
Proceeds from disposal of items of  HE¥IZ - F}%&?&ﬁlﬁﬁ
property, plant and equipment Fr {8 513 = 351
Payment for prepaid land lease iﬁfﬁiﬁiﬂﬂ%ﬂg%ﬂg
payments — (60)
Termination of pledged deposits iﬁta%ﬁ#ﬁfa = 107,196
Refund from entrustment loans @é%fﬁm — 310,000
Refund from structured deposits O 45 18 1 77 5K = 170,247
Payments in advance ?Ei\ﬁ%f\ = (451,726)
Proceeds from disposal of a & B8 A R P 1S 5RR
subsidiary 38 10,500 —
Interest received REEAIPSE 43 43,097
Net cash flows generated from RETDHMEBREREFH
investing activities 9,401 170,621
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows &8

SREHRER

For the year ended 31 December 2013 & ZE2013F12A31H L F[E
2013 2012
20134 20124
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
B 5% AR®TR ARBTT
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING HBEEZBFRESEERE
ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from interestbearing loan  FFEEFATE KB 19,698 =
Repayment of interestbearing bank  EEFERITE R
loans — (97,000
Redemption of shares & 3] f% 19 — (29,044)
Interest on bank loans RITERFE (263) (5,387)
Net cash flows generated from/ MEEBHRE(FTA)
(used in) financing activities BEeEREFHE 19,435 (131,431)
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN ReRBREEEDF
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS  #in (il 4) 4,068 (100,740)
Cash and cash equivalents af FUReRELFEY
beginning of year 28,159 127,285
Net foreign exchange difference ME N = BORER (1,912) 1,614
Cash and cash equivalents at end of FRBRERESEEY
year 30,315 28,159
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH BRe R B EEBUE B I
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances We RiR1T& 8 28 30,315 28,159
The notes on pages 60 to 131 are an integral part of these FOORIBNBE 2T BAGZE WK HmEK 2 —
consolidated financial statements. o
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Rl 3% ¥k 2% Bl 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2013 # Z2013F12A31B IEFE

1.

GENERAL INFORMATION

China Kingstone Mining Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries [together the "Group’) were principally
engaged in the production and sale of marble and marble
related products mainly in China.

The Company was incorporated as an exempted company
with limited  liability in the Cayman Islands under the
Company law, Chapter 22 (law 3 of 1961, as consolidated
and revised] of the Cayman lIslands. The registered office
address of the Company is Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive,
PO. Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman Islands.

The ultimate holding company of the Company is VWongs
Investment Development Holdings Group Limited (In liquidation),
which is incorporated in the British Virgin Islands.

The Company has ifs shares listing on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Llimited (the “Stock Exchange’) since 18 March
2011 and the trading in the shares of the Company has been
suspended since 17 September 2012.

The financial statements are presented in Chinese Renminbi
(“RMB"), unless otherwise stated.

These financial statements have been approved for issue by

the board of directors on 28 February 2014.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B ¥% R % Bfi 5

For the year ended 31 December 2013 #H ZE2013F12A31HIEFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of

2.

these consolidated financial statements are set out below.

These policies have been consistently applied to all the years

presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1

2.2

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of China Kingstone
Mining Holdings Llimited have been prepared in
accordance with Infernational Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRSs), which include all applicable individual International
Financial Reporting  Standards,  International ~ Accounting
Standards  ("IAS") and inferpretations, and applicable
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinances and applicable disclosure requirements of the
Rules Governing the Llisting of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited [the “Listing Rules).

The consolidated financial statements  have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, as
modified by the revaluation of certain financial assets,

which are carried at fair value.

The preparation of financial stafements in conformity with
IFRSs requires the use of cerfain criical accounting esfimates.
It also requires management fo exercise ifs judgement in the
process of applying the Groups accounting policies. The
areas involving a higher degree of judgment or complexity,
or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to
the consolidated financial statements are disclosed in note 4
fo these consolidated financial statements.

Consolidation

The consolidated financial = statements include the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
made up to 31 December. Subsidiaries are entities over
which the Group has confrol. The Group controls an
entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the entity and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power over the
entity. The Group has power over an entity when the
Group has existing rights that give it the current ability fo
direct the relevant activities, i.e. acfivities that significantly

affect the entity’s returns.

2.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B8 ¥% R % Bfi ¥

For the year ended 31 December 2013 & £2013F12A31H LLFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.2

2.3

Consolidation (Coninued)
When

potential voting rights as well as potential voting rights

assessing control, the Group considers ifs
held by other parties, to determine whether it has
control. A potential voting right is considered only if the
holder has the practical ability to exercise that right.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the Group. They are de-
consolidated from the date the control ceases.

The gain or loss on the disposal of a subsidiary that
results in a loss of control represents the difference
between (i) the fair value of the consideration of the sale
plus the fair value of any investment retained in that
subsidiary and [i] the Company's share of the net assets
of that subsidiary plus any remaining goodwill relating to
that subsidiary and any related accumulated foreign

currency franslation reserve.

Infragroup transactions, balances and unrealised profits are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
fransaction provides evidence of an impairment of the assef
transferred. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been
changed where necessary fo ensure consistency with the
policies adopted by the Group.

Business combination and goodwill

The acquisition method is used to account for the
acquisition of a subsidiary in a business combination.
The cost of acquisition is measured at the acquisition-
date fair value of the assets given, equity instruments
issued, liabilities incurred and contingent consideration.
Acquisition-related costs are recognised as expenses in
the periods in which the costs are incurred and the
services are received. |dentifiable assefs and liabilities of
the subsidiary in the acquisition are measured at their
acquisition-date fair values.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B ¥% R % Bfi 5

For the year ended 31 December 2013 #H ZE2013F12A31HIEFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.3

2.4

Business combination and goodwill (Continved)
The excess of the cost of acquisifion over the Company's
share of the net fair value of the subsidiary's identifiable
assefs and liobilities is recorded as goodwill. Any excess
of the Company’s share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assefs and liabilities over the cost of acquisition
is recognised in consolidated profit or loss as a gain on
bargain purchase which is affributed to the Company.

Goodwill is tested annually for impairment or more
frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate
that it might be impaired. Goodwill is measured at cost
The method of

measuring impairment losses of goodwill is the same as

less accumulated impairment losses.

that of other assefs as stated in the accounting policy
below. Impairment losses of goodwill are recognised in
consolidated profit or loss and are not subsequently
reversed. Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units
that are expecfed to benefit from the synergies of the
acquisition for the purpose of impairment fesfing.

The non-controlling interests in the subsidiary are inifially
the
share of the net

measured af non-controlling shareholders’

proportionate fair value of the
subsidiary’s identifiable assets and liabilities at  the

acquisition date.

Associates

Associates are entities over which the Group has
significant influence. Significant influence is the power fo
participate in the financial and operating policy
decisions of an entity but is not control or joint control
over those policies. The existence and effect of potential
vofing rights that are currently exercisable or convertible,
including potential voting rights held by other enfifies, are
considered when assessing whether the Group has
significant influence. In assessing whether a potential
voting right confributes to significant influence, the
holder's intention and financial ability to exercise or
convert that right is not considered.

2.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B8 ¥% R % Bfi ¥

For the year ended 31 December 2013 #H Z2013F12A318 L FE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.
POLICIES (Continved)
2.4 Associates (Continved)

R & A BOR M2 )

2.4 BE QT

Investment in an associate is accounted for in the
consolidated financial statements by the equity method
and is initially recognised at cost. Identifiable assets and
liabilities of the associate in an acquisition are measured
at their fair values at the acquisition date. The excess of
the cost of acquisition over the Group's share of the net
fair value of the associate’s identifiable assets and
liabilities is recorded as goodwill. The goodwill is
included in the carrying amount of the investment and is
tested for impairment together with the investment at the
end of each reporting period when there is objective
evidence that the investment is impaired. Any excess of
the Group's share of the net fair value of the identifiable
assefs and liabilities over the cost of acquisition is
recognised in consolidated profit or loss.

The Group’s share of an associate’s post-acquisition
profits or losses is recognised in consolidated profit or
loss, and ifs share of the post-acquisition movements in
reserves is recognised in the consolidated reserves. The
cumulative  post-acquisition  movements are adjusted
against the carrying amount of the investment. When the
Croup's share of losses in an associate equals or
exceeds ifs inferest in the associate, including any other
unsecured receivables, the Group does not recognise
further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made
payments on behalf of the associate. If the associate
subsequently reports  profits, the Group resumes
recognising ifs share of those profits only after its share
of the profits equals the share of losses not recognised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B ¥% R % Bfi 5

For the year ended 31 December 2013 & ZE2013F12A31H L F[E

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continved)
2.5 Foreign currency translation

(a)

(6]

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each
of the Group's entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates (the “functional currency”).
The consolidated financial statements are presented
in Renminbi, which is the Company’s presentation
currency and the functional currency of the
principal operating subsidiaries of the Group.

Transactions and balances in each entity’s financial
statements

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into
the functional currency on initial recognition using
the exchange rates prevailing on the transaction
dates. Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign
currencies are franslated at the exchange rafes af
the end of each reporting period. Gains and
losses resulting from this franslation policy are
recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B8 ¥% R % Bfi ¥

For the year ended 31 December 2013 #H Z2013F12A318 L FE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
2.5 Foreign currency translation (Continved)

(c)

Translation on consolidation

The results and financial position of all the Group
entities that have a functional currency different
from the Company's presentation currency are
translated info the Company's presentation currency
as follows:

i)  Assets and liabilities for each statement of
financial position presented are translated at
the closing rate af the date of that statement
of financial position;

[il  Income and expenses for each statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive
income are franslated af average exchange
rafes (unless this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect of the
rafes prevoi\ing on the fransaction dates, in
which case income and expenses are

franslated af the exchange rates on  the

transaction dates); and

lii)  All

recognised in the foreign currency translation

resulting exchange differences are
reserve.

On  consolidation, exchange differences arising

from the translation of the net investment in foreign

entities and of borrowings are recognised in the

When a

exchange

foreign currency translation reserve.
sold,

differences are recognised in consolidated profit or

foreign operation s such

loss as part of the gain or loss on disposal.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assefs
and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated ot
the closing rate.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B ¥% R % Bfi 5

For the year ended 31 December 2013 & ZE2013F12A31H L F[E
2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.

POLICIES (Continued)
2.6 Property, plant and equipment

HOR & Wl BORBE 2 )

26 ME-HBERKE

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated aft cost less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses. The cost of an
item of property, plant and equipment comprises its
purchase price and any directly aftributable costs of
bringing the asset to ifs working condition and locafion
for its intended use.

Subsequent cosfs are included in the asset's carrying
amount or recognised as a separate assef, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are
recognised in profit or loss during the period in which
they are incurred.

Depreciation is provided fo write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment, other than mining
infrastructure, over their estimated useful lives and after
taking into account of their estimated residual value,
using the straightline method. The estimated useful lives
of property, plant and equipment are as follows:

Buildings 1020 vears
Plant and machinery 5-15 vears
Office equipment 5 vyears

leasehold improvement Over the lease term

Motor vehicles -10 years

Depreciation of mining infrastructure is calculated using
the Units of Production ("UOP") method to write off the
cost of the assefs proportionately to the extraction of the
proved and probable mineral reserves.

The residual values, useful lives and depreciation method
are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at the end of
each reporting period.

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant assef,
and is recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B8 ¥% R % Bfi ¥

For the year ended 31 December 2013 # Z2013F12A31B IEFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.6

2.7

Property, plant and equipment (Continved|

Consfruction in progress represents items of property,
plant and equipment under construction, which is stated
at cost less any impairment losses, and is nof
depreciated. Cost comprises the direct cosfs of
construction and capitalised borrowing costs on related
borrowed funds during the period of construction.
Construction in progress is reclassified to the appropriate
category of property, plant and equipment when

completed and ready for use.

Stripping costs

Stripping costs incurred in the development phase of a
mine, before the production phase commences, are
capitalised as part of ‘Mining Infrastructure’ and are
subsequently amortised over its useful life using a UOP
basis.

Stripping costfs incurred during the production phase are
generally considered to create two benefits, being either
the production of inventory or improved access to the
ore fo be mined in the future. Where the benefits are
realised in the form of invenfory produced in the period,
the production stripping costs are accounted for as part
of the cost of producing those inventories.

Where the benefits are realised in the form of improved
access to ore to be mined in the future, the costs are
recognised as a stripping activity asset and is accounted
for as an addition to, or an enhancement of the
Infrastructure’ in the statement of financial

‘Mining

position if the following criteria are met:
a)  Future economic benefits are probable

bl The component of the ore body for which access
will be improved can be accurately identified

c]  The cosfs associated with the improved access can
be reliably measured

Other production sfripping cosfs are charged to the profit
or loss as operating costs as they are incurred.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B ¥% R % Bfi 5

For the year ended 31 December 2013 & ZE2013F12A31H L F[E

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.
POLICIES (continved)
2.7 Stripping costs (Coninued)

HRETFHBREE
2.7 HEBRAE @

The stripping activity asset is initially measured at cosf,
which is the accumulation of costs directly incurred to
perform the stripping activity that improves access to the
identified component of ore, plus an allocation of
directly atfributable overhead costs.

If the costs of the inventory produced and the stripping
activity assef are not separately identifiable, a relevant
production measure is used to allocate the production
stripping cosfs between the inventory produced and the
stripping  activity assef. This production measure s
calculated for the identified component of the ore body
and is used as a benchmark fo identify the extent fo
which the additional activity of creating a future benefit
has taken place. The Group uses the expected volume
of waste extracted compared with the actual volume for
a given volume of ore production of each component.

The stripping activity asset is subsequently depreciated
using the UOP basis over the life of the identified
component of the ore body that became more
accessible as a result of the siripping activity. The
stripping  activity asset is then carried af cost less
depreciation and any impairment losses.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B8 ¥% R % Bfi ¥

For the year ended 31 December 2013 # Z2013F12A31B IEFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.8

29

Mining rights
Mining rights are stated at cost less accumulated
amortization and any impairment losses. Mining rights
include the cost of acquiring mining licenses, exploration
and evaluation costs fransferred from exploration rights
and assets upon defermination that an  exploration
property is capable of commercial production, and the
cost of acquiring interests in the mining reserves of
existing mining properties. The mining rights are
amortised over the estimated useful lives of the mines, in
accordance with the production plans of the enfities
concemed and the proved and probable reserves of the
mines using the UOP method. Mining rights are written
off to profit or loss if the mining property is

abandoned.

Leases

The Group as lessee

Operating leases

leases that do not substantially transfer to the Group all
the risks and rewards of ownership of assets are
accounted for as operafing leases. lease payments [nef
of any incentives received from the lessor] are
recognised as an expense on a straightline basis over
the lease term.

2.10Inventories

Inventories are stated af the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is defermined using the weighted
average basis. The cost of finished goods and work in
progress comprises raw materials, direct labour and an
appropriate  proportion
expenditure, and where appropriate, subcontracting

of all production overhead
charges. Net realisable value is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business, less the
estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs
necessary fo make the sale.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B ¥% R % Bfi 5

For the year ended 31 December 2013 #H ZE2013F12A31HIEFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.
POLICIES (Continued)
2.11 Recognition and derecognition of financial

HOR & A BOR B )

NEMTACHERBRALERR

instruments

Financial assefs and financial liabilities are recognised in
the statement of financial position when the Group
becomes a party to the confractual provisions of the
instruments.

Financial ossets are derecognised when the confractual
rights fo receive cash flows from the assets expire; the
Group transfers substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the assets; or the Group neither transfers
nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the assets but has not retained control on
the assets. On derecognition of a financial asset, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received and the cumulative
gain or loss that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged,
cancelled or expired. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised
and the consideration paid is recognised in profit or
loss.

2.12Trade and other receivables

Trade and ofher receivables are non-derivative financial
assefs with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market and are recognised inifially
at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less allowance
for impairment.  An allowance for impairment of trade
and other receivables is established when there is
objective evidence that the Group will not be able to
collect all amounts due according to the original terms
of receivables. The amount of the allowance is the
difference between the carrying amount of the
receivables and the present value of estimated future
cash flows, discounted at the effective interest rate
computed at initial recognition. The amount of the
allowance is recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B8 ¥% R % Bfi ¥

For the year ended 31 December 2013 #H Z2013F12A318 L FE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.
POLICIES (Continued
2.12Trade and other receivables (Continued)

HOR & wE BRI )

2B R HMEWRIE @)

Impairment losses are reversed in subsequent periods
and recognised in profit or loss when an increase in the
recoverable amount of the receivables can be related
objectively fo an event occurring affer the impairment
was recognised, subject to the resfriction that the
carrying amount of the receivables at the dafe the
impairment is reversed shall not exceed what the
amortised cost would have been had the impairment not
been recognised.

2.13 Available-for-sale financial assets

Availableforsale  financial assets are non-derivative
financial assefs not classified as trade and other
receivables, held-fo-maturity investments or financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss. Availableforsale
financial assets are subsequently measured af fair value.
Gains or losses arising from changes in fair value of
these investments are recognised in other comprehensive
income, until the investments are disposed of or there is
objective evidence that the investiments are impaired, af
which time the cumulative gains or losses previously
recognised in other comprehensive income are
recognised in profit or loss. Interest calculated using the
effective interest method is recognised in profit or loss.

Investments in equity instruments that do not have a
quoted market price in an active market and whose fair
value cannot be reliably measured and derivatives that
are linked to and must be sefiled by delivery of such
unquoted equity instruments, are measured af cost less
impairment losses.

Impairment losses recognised in profit or loss for equity
investments classified as available-forsale financial assets
are not subsequently reversed through profit or loss.
Impairment losses recognised in profit or loss for debt
instruments classified as availableforsale financial assets
are subsequently reversed and recognised in profit or
loss if an increase in the fair value of the instruments
can be objectively related to an event occurring after the
recognition of the impairment loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B ¥% R % Bfi 5

For the year ended 31 December 2013 #H ZE2013F12A31HIEFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.
POLICIES (Continued)
2.14Cash and cash equivalents

HOR & A BOR B )

QUBRERBEEEY

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents represent cash at bank and on hand,
demand deposits with  banks and other financial
insfitutions, and shortterm highly liquid investments which
are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and
subject fo an insignificant risk of change in value. Bank
overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an
integral part of the Group's cash management are also
included as a component of cash and cash equivalents.

2.15Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified
according to the substance of the contractual
arrangements enfered info and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument under HKFRSs.
An equity instrument is any confract that evidences a
residual inferest in the assets of the Group affer
deducting all of its liabilities. The accounting policies
adopted  for specific financial liabilities and  equity
instruments are set out below.

2.16Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair volue, net of
fransaction cosfs incurred, and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer seftlement of
the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting
period.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B8 ¥% R % Bfi ¥

For the year ended 31 December 2013 # £20135F12A31HILFE
2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. B R &# B EME @
POLICIES (Continued)

2.17Trade and other payables 2175 Rk H A B4 RRIE

Trade and other payables are stated initially at their fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective inferest method unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are
stated at cost.

2.18 Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded
at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

2.19 Government grants

Government grants are recognised atf their fair value
where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will
be received and all aftaching conditions will be
complied with. When the grant relates to an expense
item, it is recognised as income over the periods
necessary fo mafch the grant on a systfematic basis fo
the cosfs that it is infended to compensate. Where the
grant relates to an asset, the fair value is credited to a
deferred income account and is released to profit or loss
over the expected useful life of the relevant assef by
equal annual installments.

2.20Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable and is recognised
when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow
fo the Group and the amount of revenue can be
measured reliably.

(a)  Revenues from the sales of goods are recognised
on the transfer of significant risks and rewards of
ownership, which generally coincides with the time
when the goods are delivered and the fitle has
passed to the customers.

(b)  Interest income is recognised on a fime-proportion
basis using the effective interest method.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B ¥% R % Bfi 5

For the year ended 31 December 2013 & ZE2013F12A31H L F[E
2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
2.21 Employee benefits

(a)

(b]

(c)

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long
service leave are recognised when they accrue to
employees. A provision is made for the estimated
liability for annual leave and long service leave as
a result of services rendered by employees up to
the end of the reporting period.

Employee enfitlements to sick leave and maternity
leave are not recognised until the time of leave.

Pension obligations

The Group contributes to defined contribution
refirement schemes which are available 1o all
employees. Contributions fo the schemes by the
Croup and employees are calculated as a
percentage of employees’ basic salaries. The
retirement benefit scheme cost charged to profit or
loss represents contributions payable by the Group
to the funds.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of
the dates when the Group can no longer withdraw
the offer of those benefits and when the Group
recognises resfructuring costs and involves the
payment of termination benefits.

2.22Share-based payments

The Group issues equity-setiled share-based payments to

certain employees. Equity-sefiled share-based payments

are measured at fair value (excluding the effect of non

market-based vesting conditions| of the equity instruments

at the date of grant. The fair value defermined at the

grant date of the equity-sefiled share-based payments is

expensed on a straightline basis over the vesting period,

bosed on the Group’s estimate of shares that will

eventually vest and adjusted for the effect of non

market-based vesting conditions.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B8 ¥% R % Bfi ¥

For the year ended 31 December 2013 # Z2013F12A31B IEFE

2.

76

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
2.23Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly atiributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assefs that necessarily take a substantial period of time
fo gef ready for their infended use or sale, are
capifalised as part of the cost of those assets, until such
fime os the assefs are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale. Investment income earned on the
temporary investment of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from
the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

To the extent that funds are borrowed generally and
used for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset, the
amount of borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation is
determined by applying a capitalisation rate to the
expenditures on that assef. The capitalisation rate is the
weighted average of the borrowing costs applicable to
the borrowings of the Group that are outstanding during
the period, other than borrowings made specifically for
the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset.

All other borrowing cosfs are recognised in the profit or
loss in the period in which they are incurred.

2.24Taxation

Income tax represents the sum of the current tax and
deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from profit recognised in
profit or loss because it excludes items of income or
expense that are foxable or deductible in other years
and it further excludes items that are never taxable or
deductible.  The Group's liability for current tax s
calculated using tax rafes that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B ¥% R % Bfi 5

For the year ended 31 December 2013 & ZE2013F12A31H L F[E

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.
POLICIES (Continued)
2.24Taxation (Continued)

HOR & S BOR B )

2.24F E ()

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial
statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences and deferred tax assetfs are recognised fo the
extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be
available against which deductible temporary
differences, unused tax losses or unused tax credits can
be utilised. Such assefs and liabilities are not recognised
it the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from
the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination] of other assets and liabilites in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabiliies are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries and associates, except where the Group is
able to confrol the reversal of the temporary difference
and it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assefs is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced fo the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset
to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tox rafes that are
expected to apply in the period when the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end
of the reporting period. Deferred tax is recognised in
profit or loss, except when it relates to items recognised
in other comprehensive income or direcﬂ\/ in equity, in
which case the deferred tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B8 ¥% R % Bfi ¥

For the year ended 31 December 2013 #H Z2013F12A318 L FE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.
POLICIES (Continved)
2.24Taxation (Confinued)

R & A BOR M2 )

2.24F E ()

The measurement of deferred tax assefs and liabilities
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, fo recover or sefile the carrying amount
of its assefs and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current fax liabilities and when they relate to

EXRBAEERABZFERBRA
SEEFRHRERREOFEEEE
ERREZREEMRGRZHHR
8o

EERBEERRTERAAGBENE
BIMREERABEAGAENER
8 MR FEFT S B8 M R — T 5 14 A

RAEERAFBREENHAHIAE
EREBZERT  HAEHEEHE -

income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and
the Group infends fo seffle ifs current tax assefs and
liabilities on a net basis.

22AE AL
REATRERSEABENEAR

2.25Related parties

A related party is a person or entfity that is relafed fo

the Group. B -

[a)] A person or a close member of that person’s family (a) THEBLATAZL @ Blsz ALTsiZ A
is related to the Group if that person: T ABREANEERREE:
(il has control or joint control over the Group; (i) FEHIRHEREHARER
(il has significant influence over the Group; or ) HEAKEEEERFE: 3K
(i) is a member of the key management personnel lii) BAARRBHARFERF

of the Company or of a parent of the WEIE2EEEKE -

Company.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B ¥% R % Bfi 5

For the year ended 31 December 2013 & ZE2013F12A31H L F[E

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continved)
2.25Related parties (Continved)

(b)

An entity is related to the Group (reporting entity)

if any of the following conditions applies:

(i

(i)

(i)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

The entity and the Company are members of
the some group (which means that each
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is
related to the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of
the other enfity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which the
other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other enfity is an associate of the
third entity.

The entity is a postemployment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group. If
the Group is itself such a plan, the
sponsoring employers are also related fo the

Group.

The entity is controlled or ioinﬂy controlled b\/
a person identified in (a).

A person identified in (alli] has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
the key management personnel of the entity
[or of a parent of the entity).

HOR & A BOR B )

225 A @)
b) WFFET I MR - Eﬂ:‘ﬂ‘é@
HAEEGREER)EEE
(i) EREAQNGBR—
EZWE watﬁ
N EPNEIDACIEY 0P
AT&&EF‘?EFE &) o

_I.iﬁ

i) —HBEEAS —ERAK

BRARAELE (S
EEXE\QTZE@Eﬁ
AﬂZEﬁ%M“T&

i) WMHEE

(iv) —FIEHE

L
D ar =

ﬂimﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁaﬂ %J ° Tﬁ
AEBEARGEEZTE
he it ﬁﬁﬂﬂﬁﬁiﬁﬁﬁﬁs‘%
B AR E

(vi] B B8 (a) BT R R A 4
X LRES] o

|:|

(vii) R ()| FTEk R A T8 &
BEKRZ %7712%&?;“3%
(RZBEENETRAR)E
EEENE -

I]

TPESAREERBERAA 2013F #H 79



Notes to the Financial Statements B8 ¥% R % Bfi ¥

For the year ended 31 December 2013 #H Z2013F12A318 L FE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.
POLICIES (Continued)
2.26Segment reporting

HOR & wE BRI )

2267 FER &

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the financial statements, are identified
from the financial information provided regularly to the
Group's most senior execufive management for the
purpose of allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of the Group's various lines of business in
different geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and are
similar in respect of the nature of products and services,
the nature of productions processes, the type or class of
customers, the methods used to distribute the products or
provide the services, and the nature of the regulatory
environment.  Operating segments which are not
individually material may be aggregated if they share a
majority of these criferia.

2.27Impairment of assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets
except goodwill, deferred tox assefs, inventories and
receivables to defermine whether there is any indication
that those assefs have suffered an impairment loss. If any
such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the
asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of any
impairment loss. Where it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group
estimates the recoverable amount of the cash generating
unit to which the asset belongs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B ¥% R % Bfi 5

For the year ended 31 December 2013 & ZE2013F12A31H L F[E

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.
POLICIES (Continved)
2.27Impairment of assets (Confinued)

HOR & A BOR B )

227 EE B EE)

If the recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating
unit is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset or cash-generating unit is
reduced to ifs recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless the
relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which
case the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation
decrease.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset or cash-generating unit is
increased fo the revised estimate of ifs recoverable
amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
defermined (net of amortisation or depreciation] had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset or cash-
generating unit in prior vyears. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or
loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued
amount, in which case the reversal of the impairment
loss is freated as a revaluation increase.

2.28Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing
or amount when the Group has a present legal or
constructive  obligation arising as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an oufflow of economic
benefits will be required to seftle the obligafion and a
reliable estimate can be made. Where the time value of
money is material, provisions are stated at the present
value of the expenditures expected to setfle the
obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow is
remofe. Possible obligations, whose existence will only
be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of
one or more future events are also disclosed as
contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow is
remote.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B8 ¥% R % Bfi ¥

For the year ended 31 December 2013 # Z2013F12A31B IEFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. B R &# B EME @

POLICIES [Continued)

2.29Events after the reporting period
Events after the reporting period that provide additional
information about the Group's position at the end of the
reporting period or those that indicate the going
concern assumption is not appropriate are adjusting
events and are reflected in the financial statements.
Events affer the reporting period that are not adjusting

to the financial

events are disclosed in the notes

statements when material.

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS

In the current year, the Group has adopted all the new and
revised International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) that
are relevant fo its operafions and effective for its accounting
year beginning on 1 January 2013. The adopfion of these
new and revised IFRSs did not result in significant changes to
the Group's accounting policies, presentation of the Group's
financial statements and amounts reported for the current year
and prior years except as stated below.

a. Amendments to IAS 1 “Presentation of

Financial Statements”
Amendments to IAS 1
Other Comprehensive Income infroduce new ferminology

titled Presentation of ltems of

for statement of comprehensive income and income
statement. Under the amendments to IAS 1, a statement
of comprehensive income is renamed as a statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income and an
income sfatement is renamed as a statement of profit or
loss. The amendments fo IAS 1 retain the option fo
present profit or loss and other comprehensive income in
either a single stafement or in two separate but

consecutive statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B ¥% R % Bfi 5

For the year ended 31 December 2013 #H ZE2013F12A31HIEFE

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

3.

a.

Amendments to IAS 1 “Presentation of

Financial Statements” (Coniinved)

The amendments to IAS 1 require additional disclosures
fo be made in the other comprehensive income section
such that items of other comprehensive income are
grouped info two categories: (a) items that will not be
reclassified subsequently to profit or loss; and (b) items
that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
when specific conditions are met. Income tax on items
of other comprehensive income is required to be
allocated on the same basis.

The amendments have been applied refrospectively, and
hence the presentation of items of other comprehensive
income has been modified to reflect the change. Other
than the above mentioned presentation changes, the
application of the amendments to IAS 1 does not result
in any impact on profit or loss, other comprehensive
income and fofal comprehensive income.

IFRS 13 “Fair Value Measurement”

IFRS 13 “Fair Value Measurement” establishes a single
source of guidance for all fair value measurements
required or permitted by IFRSs. It clarifies the definition
of fair value as an exit price, which is defined as a
price af which an orderly fransaction fo sell the asset or
transfer the liability would take place between market
participants at the measurement date under market
conditions, and enhances disclosures about fair value
measurements.

The adoption of IFRS 13 only affects disclosures on fair
value measurements in the consolidated financial
statements. IFRS 13 has been applied prospectively.

The carrying amounts of the Group's financial assefs and
financial licbilities as reflected in the consolidated
statement of financial position approximate their
respective fair values.

3.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B8 ¥% R % Bfi ¥

For the year ended 31 December 2013 # Z2013F12A31B IEFE

3.

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS (Continued)

The Group has not applied the new and revised IFRSs that
have been issued but are not yet effective. The Group has
already commenced an assessment of the impact of these
new and revised IFRSs but is not yet in a position to state
whether these new and revised IFRSs would have a material
impact on ifs results of operations and financial position.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENT AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group's accounting policies, which
are described in note 2 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Directors are required to make judgments,
estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of
assefs and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based
on historical experience and other factors that are considered
fo be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B ¥% R % Bfi 5

For the year ended 31 December 2013 #H ZE2013F12A31HIEFE

4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENT AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The followings are the key assumptions conceming the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncerfainty af the end of
the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.

fa)  Impairment of goodwill
The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at
least on an annual basis. This requires an esfimation of
the value in use of the cash-generating units fo which the
goodwill is allocated. Estimating the value in use
requires the Group fo make an estimate of the expected
future cash flows from the cash generating units and also
fo choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate
the present value of those cash flows. The impairment
test results in the recognition of an impairment loss of
goodwill of RMB2966,000 for the year ended 31
December 2013. The carrying amount of goodwill at 31
December 2013 and 2012 was RMB Nil and
RMB2,966,000 respectively. The defails are described

in note 22 to the consolidated financial statements.

Goodwill on acquisition of an associate of
RMB5,539,000 which was included in investment in an
associate was fully impaired as at 31 December 2013.
The details are described in note 23 to the consolidated
financial statements.

(b]  Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

The Group determines the estimated useful lives, residual
values and related depreciation charges for the Group's
property, plant and equipment. This estimate is based on
the historical experience of the actual useful lives and
residual values of property, plant and equipment of
similar nature and functions. The Group will revise the
depreciafion charge where useful lives and residual
values are different to those previously estimated, or it
will write-off or write-down  technically obsolefe or non-
strafegic assets that have been abandoned or sold.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B8 ¥% R % Bfi ¥

For the year ended 31 December 2013 # Z2013F12A31B IEFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENT AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Contint

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

4.

fc)

(d)

Impairment of non-financial assets (other than goodwill)
The Group assesses each cash-generating unit annually
fo defermine whether any indication of impairment exisfs.

When an

estimate of the recoverable amount is made, which is

indicator of impairment exists, a formal
considered to be the higher of the fair value less cosfs
of disposal and value in use. The carrying amount of the
property,
infrastructure,

plant and equipment, including mining

and mining rights, are reviewed for
impairment when evenfs or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable in accordance with the accounting policy as
disclosed in the relevant part of this section. Estimating
the value in use requires the Group fo estimate future
cash flows from the cash generating units and to choose
a suitable discount rate in order fo calculate the present
value of those cash flows. The carrying amounts of
property, plant and equipment as at 31 December
2013 and 2012 were RMB172,796,000 and
RMB180,145,000 respectively. The carrying amounts of
mining rights as af 31 December 2013 and 2012 were

RMB54,076,000 and RMB69,953,000 respectively.

Mine reserves

Engineering estimates of the Group's mine reserves are
mherenﬂ\/ imprecise and represent on|y approximate
amounts because of the significant judgments involved in
developing such information. There are authoritative
guidelines regarding the engineering criteria that have to
reserves can be

be met before estimated mine

designated as “proved” and “probable”. Proved and
probable mine reserve estimates are updated at regular
intervals taking info account recent production and
technical information about each mine. In addition, as
prices and cost levels change from year to year, the
estimate of proved and probable mine reserves also
changes. This change is considered a change in
estimate for accounting purposes and is reflected on a
prospective basis in both depreciation and amortization
rafes calculated on a UOP basis and the time period for
discounting the rehabilitation provision. Changes in the
estimate of mine reserves are also faken into account in

impairment assessments of non-current assefs.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B ¥% R % Bfi 5

For the year ended 31 December 2013 #H ZE2013F12A31HIEFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENT AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continved)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

4.

fe)

(1

Impairment of receivables, deposits and prepayments
Impairment of receivables, deposits and prepayments is
made based on an assessment of the recoverability of
receivables, deposits and prepayments. The assessment
of impairment of receivables, deposits and prepayments
involves the use of estimates and judgments. An estimate
for doubtful debts is made when collection of the full
amount is no longer probable, as supported by
objective evidence using available contemporary and
historical information to evaluate the exposure. Bad debts
are writtlen off as incurred. Where the actual outcome or
expectation in the future is different from the original
estimates, such differences will affect the carrying
amount of receivables, deposits and prepayments and
thus the impairment loss in the period in which such
estimate is changed.

Impairment loss recognised in respect of inferests in an
associafte

Inferests in an associate are reviewed for impairment
whenever evenfs or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. Value-
in-use calculations are used for assessing the recoverable
amount of these interests. These calculations require use
of judgments and esfimates.
Management judgment is required for assessing
impairment partficularly in assessing: (i) whether an event
has occurred that may indicate that the related carrying
value of inferests may not be recoverable; and {ii)
whether the carrying value of the interests can be
supported by the recoverable amount. Changing the
estimations used by management in assessing impairment
could materially affect the recoverable amount used in
the impairment test and as a result affect the Group's
consolidated financial position and results of operations.
At the end of the reporting period, the carrying value of
interests in associates RMBNIil (2012

RMB16,242,000).
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Notes to the Financial Statements B8 ¥% R % Bfi ¥

For the year ended 31 December 2013 # Z2013F12A31B IEFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENT AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

4.

9/

h)

Net realisable valve of inventories

Net realizable value of inventories is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business, less
estimated cost to be incurred to completion and
disposal. These estimates are based on the current
market condition and the hisforical experience of selling
products of similar nature. Management reassesses these
estimates at the end of each reporting period to ensure
inventories are shown at the lower of cost and net
realizable value.

FPossible outcome of outstanding litigations

Certain subsidiaries of the Company are or have been
involved in litigations in respect of claims against these
subsidiaries. The Direcfors determine the provision for
litigations  based on their best estimates and legal
advices. However, with the litigations still ongoing up to
the approval dafe of these financial statements, it is not
possible fo ascertain with any degree of reasonable
cerfainty the oufcome of those litigations and the
existence or otherwise of any compensation payable
should the related defense become unsuccessful, and the
completeness of any other lawsuits and claims arose.
There is a material uncerfainty as to whether the above
actions can be successfully defended and accordingly,
there may be a potential significant impact on the
financial performance and position of the Group.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B ¥% R % Bfi 5

For the year ended 31 December 2013 #H ZE2013F12A31HIEFE

4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENT AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
(il Provisions for rehabilitation
The Group is required to make payments for resforation
and rehabilitation of certain land after the sites have
been mined. Provision for restoration, rehabilitation and
environmental cost is required when the Group has a
present obligafion (legal or constructive] as a result of
past event, it is probable that the Group will be
required fo setile that obligafion, and a reliable estimate
can be made of the amount of the obligation. Provision
is measured in accordance with the relevant rules and
regulations applicable in the PRC at the end of the
reporting period, and using the cash flows estimated fo
setle the present obligation. lts carrying amount is the
present value of those cash flows (where the effect of
the time value of money is material). The carrying
amount of provision for rehabilitation as at 31 December

2013 is RMB2,428,000 (2012: RMBNIil).

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages ifs capifal to ensure that entities in the
Group will be able to confinue as a going concern while
maximising the return to shareholders through the opfimisation
of the debt and equity balance.

During the reporting period, the capital structure of the Group
consist of debt which includes interestbearing loans and equity
aftributable to owners of the Company, comprising issued
share capital and reserves. The Directors review the capital
structure on a regular basis. As part of this review, the
Directors consider the cost of capital and the associated risks,
and take appropriate actions to adjust the Group's capital
structure. The Group's overall strategy remains unchanged from
prior periods.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B8 ¥% R % Bfi ¥

For the year ended 31 December 2013 # Z2013F12A31B IEFE

6.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES

The financial assets of the Group mainly include cash and
bank balances, trade receivables and other receivables.
Financial liabilities of the Group mainly include advances from
customers, trade payables, other payables and interestbearing
loans.

Risk management is carried out by the finance department
which is led by the Group's executive directors. The Group's
finance deportment identifies and evaluates financial risks in
close co-operation with the Group's operating units. The main
risks arising from the Group's financial instruments are liquidity
risk, interest rate risk, credit risk and foreign currency risk.

The Group's financial risk management policy seeks to ensure
that adequate resources are available to manage the above
risks and to create value for its shareholders. The board
regularly reviews these risks and they are summarised below.

(a) Foreign currency risk

The Group has minimal exposure fo foreign currency risk
as most of its business transactions, assets and liabilities
are principally denominated in the functional currencies
of the Group entities. The Group currently does not have
a foreign currency hedging policy in respect of foreign
currency fransactions, assets and liabilities. The Group
will monitor its foreign currency exposure closely and will
consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure
should the need arise.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B ¥% R % Bfi 5

For the year ended 31 December 2013 #H ZE2013F12A31HIEFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

(b)

Interest rate risk

The Group's exposure to interest rafe risk relates primarily
to the Group's interestbearing loans. The inferest rates
and terms of repayment of interestbearing loans are
disclosed in note 31 to the consolidated financial
statements. The Group manages its interest rate exposure
from all of its interestbearing borrowings through the use

of fixed rates.

In addition, the Group does not consider that it has any
significant exposure to the risk of changes in market
interest rates from its bank deposits as a reasonably
possible change of 25 basis points in the interest rates
would have no material

impact on the Group's

consolidated profit or loss for the years ended 31

December 2013 and 2012

Credit risk

Substantial amounts of the Group's cash and cash
equivalents are held in major reputable financial
insfitutions located in the PRC and Hong Kong, which
management believes are of high credit quality. The
credit risk of the Group's other financial assefs, which
comprise frade receivables and other receivables arises
from default of the counterparty, with a maximum
exposure equal to the carrying amounts of these
instruments. The Group has no other financial assets

which carry significant exposure to credit risk.

The Group sells most of the products to a small number
of customers in the property development industry, and
marble distributors. As a result, it faces a high level of
concentration of credit risk. The Group manages this risk
by offering standardised credit terms to ifs customers of
marble products for an approved credit term of 30
days. The Group maintains shrict control over ifs
outstanding receivables and senior management regularly

and

customers who are granted a long credit term fo pledge

reviews the overdue balances, requires major
their properties fo secure their receivables to the Group.
In addition, the Group's exposure to credit risk is also
influenced by the individual characteristics of each
customer and default risk of the industry in which

customers operate.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B8 ¥% R % Bfi ¥

For the year ended 31 December 2013 # Z2013F12A31B IEFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

(d)

Liquidity risk

The Group monitors its exposure fo a shortage of funds
by considering the maturity of both its financial liabilities
and financial assets and projected cash flows from
operations. The Group's objective is to maintain a
balance between continuity of funding and flexibility
through the use of inferestbearing loans and its own
funding sources.

The Group's financial liabilities have contractual maturities
as follows:

2013
2013%

6.

Maturity Analysis —
undiscounted cash outflows

HMARDAT —
ARBRERHE
Between
On less than 1 1 and 2
demand year years
REX
HE FRIE 122%
RMB'O00  RMB'O00  RMB'000

5 5 I e A B H R A BUSR )

(d REBEEER
AEEBEREEECHEBERERE
ENHRNBENELEFERERE -
ERHARIMESERAR - A&
EHEEREBERTEERREA
EMESIR  BRHASHELAE
E R T -

AEENTRABEATAORIAZ
B HARAIR

2012
2012%
Maturity Analysis —
undiscounted cash outflows

HEMRaN —
ABRAERHE
Between
On less than 1 1 and 2
Total  demand year years Total
RER
@t HE FRIFE 122F @t
RMB'OOO  RMB'OOO  RMB'O00O  RMB'000  RMB'000

ARBTT AREBTT ARBTE AREBTT ARBTE ARETL ARBTE ARETL

Trade payable 5 ENFA - 1,393 1,393 - 1,695 - 1,695
Other payable H A AT AR 1,500 22991 24,491 1,500 21,510 - 23,010
Inferest bearing loan and 58 & RF S5
inferest payment - 20955 22,652 25607 - - - -
1,500 27339 22,652 51,491 1,500 23,205 - 24,705
Fair value (e) DAME
Fair value estimates are made at a specific point in time AREGEAIR S ERBEL 1R

relevant market information and
These

involve

and are based on

information about the financial instruments.

estimates are subjective in nature and
uncertainties and matters of significant judgment and
therefore cannot be determined with precision. Changes

in assumptions could significantly affect the estimates.

The carrying amounts of the Group's financial assefs and
the consolidated
their

financial liabilities as reflected in

statement of financial position approximate

respective fair values.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B ¥% R % Bfi 5

For the year ended 31 December 2013 #H ZE2013F12A31HIEFE

7.

REVENUE AND OPERATING SEGMENT 7. WA B R 43 R R
INFORMATION
Revenue represents the net invoiced value of goods sold, net WACEERNFEZE MBREST
of trade discounts and refurns and various types of MR B AR Z BB AN INE (R#ER) -
government surcharges, where applicable.
The Group's revenue and contribution to profit were mainly REBOHBAREFENEREIZRE A
derived from its sale of marble and marble related products, EBARAKEAHEBERMEES  EWREKEE
which is regarded as a single reportable segment in a E-AH&E0  BAHRAAEENSR
manner consistent with the way in which information is EREREEMMEERERKRETGA
reported infernally fo the Group's senior management for BRI N REEERNEE
purposes of resource dllocation and performance assessment. BEAMKRPE - At BREEEBIKRE
In addition, the principal assefs employed by the Group are h - RBZEDIDEDHT -
located in the PRC. Accordingly, no segment analysis is
presented other than entitywide disclosures.
Entity-wide disclosures EEERKE
Information about products B B2 i 49 & Y
The following table sefs forth the total revenue from external TREJFAREME D RBINBEFE
customers by product and the percentage of total revenue BN RAE R AN B DL
during the vear:
2013 2012
20134 20124
RMB’000 % RMB'000 %
AR®T % ARETT %
Marble blocks KIE A FE 4,304 60.4% 15,665 Q7.5%
Marble slabs R AR 2,521 35.4% 397 2.5%
Marble slags REBAEE 299 4.2% — 0.0%
7,124 100.0% 16,062 100.0%
Information about major customers BHEEEZESHEM

Revenue from major customers, each of whom accounted for
10% or more of the total revenue is set out below:

KEXTBEP (BHFSEHAKRANI0N% A
B)WAEZIT

2013 2012

20134 20124

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR TR AR T

Customer A EFA 2,621 —
Customer B =FB 2,145 —
Customer C BFEC — 8,012
Customer D ZFD — 7692

a 93
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Notes to the Financial Statements B8 ¥% R % Bfi ¥

For the year ended 31 December 2013 # Z2013F12A31B IEFE

8. OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 8. H AW A KWk £
2013 2012
20134 20124
RMB'000 RMB'O00
AR T ARBT T
Interest income 2 A 43 30,152
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE — B ARz s 2,576 ==
Miscellaneous HIE 167 418
2,786 30,570
9. IMPAIRMENTS OF VARIOUS ASSETS 9. ZIHEE WM
2013 2012
2013% 20124
RMB'000 RMB'O00
AR T AR T
Impairment on investment in an B QR B 3% B R E (B 7E23)
associate (note 23) 16,242 —
Impairment of loans fo an associate BYBERFNEFTRE
(note 23) (Bt 7£23) 72,000 —
Impairment of frade receivables B 5 FE W R IR RUE (M 5£26)
(note 206) 53,878 18,000
Impairment of prepayments, deposits — TEfTEIE « 1R & & H th fE U K18
and other receivables (note 27) BB (B 5E27) 61,016 494,726
Impairment on goodwill (nofe 22) 2R E (B 5E22) 2,966 —
Impairment on infangible assets B EEME R 18)
(note 18) 7,400 —
213,502 512,726
10. FINANCE COSTS 10. B %5 A
2013 2012
20134 20124
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETR ARBT T
Inferest expenses on borrowings wholly 78 7 T 4F N 78 B8 18 09 8 ;L&Y
repayable within five years: M BRI
— Interest-bearing loan —sTBEX 263 5,387
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Notes to the Financial Statements B ¥% R % Bfi 5

For the year ended 31 December 2013 #; £ 201
11.

3FI2A3IRIEFE

LOSS BEFORE TAX 1. BB Al e
The Group's loss before tax is arrived at after charging/ AEENRBAEEEHNER A GEA) T
[crediting): BIH:
2013 2012
20134 20124
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARB T AREFTT
Cost of inventories sold HEGFTEMRA 3,513 5,286
Staff costs (including directors’ BIXA(BEESEHH
remuneration):
Wages and salaries TEEF & 11,062 17989
Equity-setled share option expense RS EBRERX = 10,697
Pension scheme contributions RIK JF%H t 3K
— Defined contribution scheme M E 524 /82
Other staff benefits ﬁfﬂé‘\lhﬂ A 424 Q62
12,010 30,430
less: Staff costs capitalised W EEAMEBEIRAR (223) (2,890
11,787 27,534
Auditors’ remuneration =T A & 584 634
Amortisation of infangible assets BIVEE#E g 17
Amortisation of prepaid land lease FEf L3 A B KA
payments o 3 28
Depreciation of items of property, plant ¥ % « & 5 & &% &
and equipment BEEE 8,783 10,676
less: depreciation capitalised BB E (3,117) (3,412)
5,666 7,264
Foreign exchange loss bE H & 18 968 507
Operating lease rentals for office PRRAELEHE 5,315 9189
loss of inventories FEEE 856 933
loss on disposal of property, plant and HE®E « B E &
equipment RiBERE - /4
Written-off of property, plant and MEWE  BER
equipment Bg 1,797 23,591
Impairment of various assets (nofe Q) %18 & = R E (K EE9) 213,502 512,726
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 # Z2013F12A31B IEFE

12. DIRECTORS" AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID 12.
INDIVIDUAL EMOLUMENTS
(a) Directors’ and Senior Management's

Emoluments

N
(a)

EERR

—_
=

=]

EEEM

For the year ended 31 December 2013

BZE2013F12A31HLEE
Salaries,
allowances  Retirement Equity settled

I M T 44 e 3 R B

2

and other benefits  share option Total
Notes Fees benefits scheme expense  emoluments
e 2ER  BAKER EREE
Bt &% we Hftr F 2 A BRERX MewE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRE AR®TR AR%®TR AR®TR AR%TxR
Executive directors: WiTES
Mr. Zhu Hongjun RAERE (i = 445 = = 445
M. Liv Hongyu AR E (i - 422 - - 422
Ms. Zhang Cuiwei RERZ LT (ii) - 422 — — 422
Mr. Zhang Jianzhong REBREE (i) - 41 - - 41
Mr. Xiong Wenjun AR B A iv] - 83 - - 83
Non-executive directors: FRiTES
Mr. Chan Chi Yin BB TE (xv) = 28 = - 28
Mr. Wang Dong TREE (xv) - 28 - - 28
Mr. lee, Warren Wa Lun TEMBEE vi) - 38 - - 38
Independent non-executive directors: BUFHPTES
Mr. Liu Yuguan AERAAE (iv) = 10 = - 10
Mr. lei Zhaochun BREFELE [viii) - 10 - - 10
Ms. Deng Guiping HeETat [ix) = 10 = = 10
Mr. Chung Wai Man BERLE v) — 227 — - 227
Mr. lam Tin Faat MRELE v) - 234 - - 234
Mr. Mak Ka Wing, Patrick ERERAE (x) — 72 — - 72
Mr. Pak Wai Keung, Martin HE®REE [xi) - 35 1 - 36
Mr. Lu Zhiwei BEELE (i) - 38 - - 38
Chief executive officer TR B
Chen Jianhong BRZA TE (xii) — 1,461 — — 1,461
= 3,603 1 = 3,604
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 #H ZE2013F12A31HIEFE

12. DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID 12. EEHW N AL H 5 EE W
INDIVIDUAL EMOLUMENTS (Continved| N KA
(a) Directors’ and Senior Management's ) EERESEEEMES®

Emoluments (Continved)

For the year ended 31 December 2012
HZE2012F12A31HIEFE

Salaries,
allowances  Refirement Equity settled
and other benefits share option Total
Notes Fees benefits scheme expense  emoluments
e ooRMRk  RIKER Ba#E
B & e H A A & FHEl BRERX Mewam

RMB'000 RMB'O00  RMB'O00 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTE AR® TR ARBTRT AR®TRT AR¥TR

Executive directors: WITES
Ms. Chen Tao fRF 2+ (xiii) - 1,897 — 8,063 9960
Mr. Lin Yuhua MEZFELLE (xiv) — 581 - - 581
Mtr. Lico Yuanshi BRELE (xiv) - 507 — — 507
M:r. Xiong Wenijun REXX B E (iv) — 453 — — 453
Non-executive directors: FEMITESE
Mr. He Ji fa] 5B 5 A4 (vii) - - - - -

Independent non-executive directors: BV FFHMITEE

Mr. Deng Huiging HESLE (xvi) - 51 - - 51
Mr. Chu Ho Hwa, Howard KREBERE (xiv) — 145 — — 145
Mr. Liv Yuquan 2 EREHE (iv) — 101 — — 101
Ms. leung Yee Shuen 2 & e/ e (xviii) — 200 4 — 204
M:r. lei Zhaochun EREFRE (xix) — 43 — — 43
Ms. Deng Guiping BEFZE (ix) - 19 - - 19

Chief executive officer TR B
Mr. Cheung Hung RBEE [xx) - 755 - - 755

- 4,752 4 8,063 12,819

Notes: Bt 3 -

[l Appointed on 17 April 2013 (i) M2013F 4178 EEE

[i)  Appointed on 30 April 2013 (i) M2013F 4308 E LT

[ii)  Appointed on 30 August 2013 [i)  M20134F8RA30HEZ T
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 # Z2013F12A31B IEFE

12. DIRECTORS” AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
INDIVIDUAL EMOLUMENTS (Continued)
(a) Directors’ and Senior Management's

Emoluments (Continved)
Notes: (Continued)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(i)

(x)

(i)

(xii)

(i)

(xiv)

[xv)

(xvi)

Removed as a director on 6 February 2013
Appointed on 6 February 2013

Appointed on 6 February 2013 and resigned on 30 April
2013

Resigned on 29 March 2012

Appointed as a director on 30 July 2012 and removed
on 6 February 2013

Appointed as a director on 26 October 2012 and
removed on 6 February 2013

Appointed as a independent non-executive director on 6
February 2013, re-designated as a non-executive director

on 17 April 2013 and resigned on 13 June 2013

Mr. Pak Wai Keung, Martin was appointed as an
independent non-executive director on 17 April 2013
and resigned on 1 June 2013. He was appointed as the
chief financial officer of the Company on 1 June 2013.

Mr. Chen Jianhong was appointed as the chief executive
officer of the Company on 23 January 2013 and
ceased fo be the chief executive office of the Company

on 29 November 2013

Ms. Chen Tao retired as a director on 22 May 2012.
She was also the chairlady and chief executive officer of
the Company up to 22 May 2012 and 1 June 2012
respectively. Her emoluments disclosed above included
those for services rendered by her as the chairlady and
chief executive officer

Retired on 22 May 2012

Appointed on 6 February 2013 and resigned on 17 April
2013

Resigned on 4 July 2012
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12. HFH WMWK L4 R REE M
INLIEACY
o) EERESEEEMSw

MEEE: (8)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

(x)

xi)

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)

R2013F2R6RREEFTRG

M2013F2RO6BEZ T

201352 R 6R % & £ & #2013
FARAS0HEHE

20129 3A29H B (£

R2012F /7R3 0HEZEREER
M2013F2R0HER %

R2012F10R20R BRI REER
M2013F2R0HER %

20132 R6REZ ERBILIEH
TEE - R2013F4R1/BHE R
FHMITESF - RN20135F6A13RH
B

B85 % &£ R2013F4R17B B %
ERBIFENTES - RMN2013F
OATEEHE - R N20135F6A1H &
ZERARFEEMBEE

PR 22 41 %5 4 M2013F 1 A23R %
ERERAITHAE - WH2013F
NAREERRRITHR AL —
B o

PR% 2 T R2012F 5220 B £ &
EB - RTAARAEREHRITH
BE - DRI EZE2012F5A228 &
201256 1B RIE - A ERERE
LI BEREEEERITH
BEMREHRREZHE

2012958228 R{E

20132 BOREZE R 20134
4RV77HEHE

201297 RAB BHE



Notes to the Financial Statements B ¥% R % Bfi 5

For the year ended 31 December 2013 #H ZE2013F12A31HIEFE

12. DIRECTORS" AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID

IN DlVIDUAL EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Directors’ and Senior Management's

Emoluments (Continved)
Notes: (Continued)

[xvii) Refired on 21 May 2012

[xviii] Appointed as a direcfor on 27 June 2012 and resigned
on 31 August 2012

[xix] Appointed as a director on 30 July 2012 and removed
on 6 February 2013

[xx]  Mr. Cheung Hung was appointed as the chief execufive
officer of the Company on 27 June 2012 and resigned
on 23 January 2013

Five Highest Paid Individual Emoluments

Four (2012: one) of the five highest paid individuals of
the Group were directors whose emolument is set out in
the above. For the year ended 31 December 2013, the
remaining one [2012: four) employee’s emoluments of the

}\ WT}H é(zz«"ﬁ
EEREaEEEME®

(a)

(b)

B et ()

12, #5355 I X T4 B s 0B B A

[xvii] R2012F5R21HRE

[xviii) R2012F6R27AEEZEREER
2012468 A31H BH (T

[xix) R2012F7R30BBEZEREER
R20135F 26 E B %

[xx) 3R ER2012F60R2/BHEZ T
RARBITREE - R20135F1A23

BB -

IEBRaFHEERAANE

AEBRAREHATEENA (2012
F:—R)EF HMD#HREX-
B E2013612A31A L FF - ARQF
Hep—2Q012F mA)EENH S

Company were as follows: LUNE
2013 2012
20135 20124
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR TR AR T T
Salaries, allowances and other e EMK
benefits in kind H b A &5 592 4217
Equity-seftled share option expense — HE % 4 B R IR R X - 2,990
Retirement benefits scheme R ARTE T F B4 5K
contributions 12 22
604 /229

TEEEREZRARLA
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Notes to the Financial Statements B8 ¥% R % Bfi ¥

For the year ended 31 December 2013 # Z2013F12A31B IEFE

12. DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID 12. BEFME LA RS HEB M
INDIVIDUAL EMOLUMENTS (Continved) N EXCS
(b) Five Highest Paid Individual Emoluments b) IEEEHFEEBAMES @

(Continued)
Their emoluments fell within the following bands:

BEZHMLELT :

Number of employees

EBE®E
2013 2012
2013% 20124
Emolument band: HrneE
Nil-HK$1,000,000 0Z%1,000,0007% 7T 1 1
HK$1,000,001-HK$1,500,000 1,000,0017% 7T £1,500,000
BT = 1
HK$1,500,001-HK$2,000,000 1,500,0017% 7t £ 2,000,000
BT = 1
HK$3,500,001-HK$4,000,000 3,500,001/ 7T 4,000,000
BT = 1
1 4
(c) No emoluments have been paid by the Group fo the (c) REZ2013FK20124612A318 LM

Directors or the five highest paid individuals as an
inducement fo join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office during the two vyears
ended 31 December 2013 and 2012.

BFE AEEYERARFEME
BEEFMATHRERSHFALIMN
M ERRSIEREMAREE LR
MAREEEER - SERBEEN
g -

13. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 13. Fr 5B B £
2013 2012
20135 20124
RMB’000 RMB'O00

AR¥T ARET T

Current — the PRC BV ER — AR B
— Charge for the year —FEEM 410 3,704
— Underprovision in prior years —BEFEEBTR = 3,722
Deferred tax iR RE 7R 18 4,481 727
4,891 8,153
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Notes to the Financial Statements B ¥% R % Bfi 5

For the year ended 31 December 2013 #H ZE2013F12A31HIEFE

13.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

Under the law of the PRC on Enferprise Income Tax (the "EIT
law”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT law, the tax
rate of subsidiaries of the Company in the PRC is 25% for
both years.

The Group is subject fo income fax on an enfity basis on
profits arising in or derived from the jurisdiction in which
members of the Group are domiciled and operate.

The Company is a tax exempted company registered in
Cayman lIslands and has registered in Hong Kong as non-
Hong Kong company. The Company conducts substantially all
of its business through its PRC subsidiaries.

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made as
the Group had no assessable profits derived from or eamed
in Hong Kong during the period.

The reconciliation between the income tax for the year and
the loss before tax multiplied by the tax rate in the PRC is as

13. P45 B B 52 o)

REFECEMSTE(EEMRBHIED
REXRMEFABERMAL - ARBRHE
ZHBRBRNMIEFEZREE RB25%

AREBARAEBKE QB EMMEEZE
BHERAEREMELNRBZF AR
B GNIRERBEEMRAEHR -

ARRR—RARAEHEEMARH AT -
YREBEIMAS—FEFEBFBRF - AAF
BEREPEMBAREEEBAMMES -

HRASRERBALERERTELNERE
REVEH EIERTOEH - WL EBIEHEFE
GUREE 0k 3 - I

FRFREH IR BB R A5 5T 2 B AT &
BT

follows:

2013 2012
2013% 20124
RMB’000 RMB'O00
AR® TR ARBFIT
loss before tax b BRI ES 18 (251,414) (568,216)

Tax at the applicable tax rate of BASEENRREANERGFE
companies within the Group FriS Ryt 18 (62,854) (142,054)
Expenses not deductible for fax AR A 2 61,491 148,874
Tax loss not recognised RIERMIAEE 6,254 1,333
Tax at the Group's effective rafe ERASBEERBERAENTIE 4,891 8,153

At 31 December 2013, the Group has unused fax losses of
approximately RMB30,349,000 (2012: 5,333,000) available
indefinitely for offset against future profits. No deferred tax
assef (2012: nil) has been recognised in respect of such tax
losses, due fo the unpredictability of future profit streams.

R2013F12A31H - AEBEBERPHBH A
B B 49 A K #30,349,0007T (20124 :
5,333,000) - A #t LA K 84 R SR AE o 4
Fhaz B IA B 1R RE SRR AE A & B2 (20125 -
) E R AR KH R AR -
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Notes to the Financial Statements B8 ¥% R % Bfi ¥

For the year ended 31 December 2013 # Z2013F12A31B IEFE

14. TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE LOSS FOR THE
YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE
COMPANY

The consolidated total comprehensive loss atiributable  to
owners of the Company for the year ended 31 December
2013 includes a loss of approximately RMB257969,000
(2012: RMB419,240,000), which has been dealt with in the

financial statements of the Company [note 36).

15. LOSS PER SHARE

(a) Basic loss per share
The calculation of basic loss per share attributable to
equity holders of the Company is based on the loss for
the year aftributable to equity holders of the Company
of approximately RMB256,305,000 (2012:
RMB576,369,000) and the weighted average number of
1,947,812,000 (2012: 1956,296,000) ordinary shares

in issue during the year.

(b) Diluted loss per share
The effects of all potential ordinary shares are anti-
dilutive for the year ended 31 December 2013 and
2012.

16. DIVIDEND
The Directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend

for each of the years ended 31 December 2013 and 2012.
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14, A A 6 B A N FE AL A 4 B
4 TH s 1

15.

16.

BE2013F12A31H L FEARRAEB AR
EERATEBRAEEERBROARE
2579690007t (20124 : A R¥419,240,000
7T) + BTN AR 6 B 7 ek M Be 32 (B &

36) -

(a)

(b)

i i 15

BREXEE
ARAEEHBAREERERNER
TIRBEARNRREREARGFEE
BAHOANRE256,3050007T (20124 :
AR#576,369,0007T) RFRNE T
T3 AR hn #E S 15 801,947,812,000 4%
(20124 11956,296,000/%) & & 15
TT

BREEER

# 220134 &2012412A318 1k &
B AEBREERIROABREBTY
%2 o

=

JBe 18,
EEW T EZAREE2013F K2012F124
JALFEEFRMEMBRE -



Notes to the Financial Statements 81 #% R & fii 5%

For the year ended 31 December 2013 & ZE2013F12A31H L F[E
17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

17. W3 ~ B Xk i

Leasehold
improvement
Plant and  and Office Motor Mining  Construction
Buildings machinery  equipment  vehicles infrastructure in progress Total
BER HELEER
B e BARRE "E REEE ERIR A&t
RMB'O00  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'O00  RMB’000
ARBFTT ARBTT ARETT ARBFTT ARETT ARY%TT ARETL
31 December 2013 2013%12A318
COST: A
At 1 January 2013 20131418 9,195 35,243 7,801 8,617 53,834 85,297 199,987
Exchange realignment [z R = = (104) (17) = — (121)
Additions NE 63 = 196 422 = 3,896 4,575
Transfers B = = = = 3,433 (3,433) -
Disposal of a subsidiary [note 38) i BB 2 A (P 5538) — - — - (1,260) - (1,260)
Wiite-off 4 - - 5,138) - - - (5138
At 31 December 2013 #2013 12A31H 9,258 35,243 2,755 9,022 56,007 85,758 198,043
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION AND R ER
IMPAIRMENTS: WE:
At 1 January 2013 M2013F1A1H 803 7,449 4,781 5,591 1,278 = 19,842
Exchange realignment EX AR = = (34) (3) = = (37)
Provided during the year FNEE 452 2,148 2,428 3,745 10 - 8,783
Disposal HeE = =
Wite-off i = = (3,341) = = - B34
At 31 December 2013 #M2013F12A318 1,255 9,597 3,834 9,273 1,288 = 25,247
CARRYING AMOUNTS: PRTEE :
At 31 December 2013 2013 12A318 8,003 25,646 (1,079) (251) 54,719 85,758 172,796
31 December 2012 R2012%12A318
COST: A
At 1 January 2012 20121818 8,199 35,243 945 8,700 45,780 111,492 210,359
Exchange realignment [z - - 1 - - 7 8
Additions wNE 264 - 3,865 539 - 9171 13,839
Transfers R 732 - 3,018 - 8,054 (11,804) -
Disposal e - - - (622) - — 622)
Write-off 85 - - (28) - - [23,569) (23,597)
At 31 December 2012 R2012412A318 9,195 35,243 7,801 8,617 53,834 85,297 199,987
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION: REtHE:
At 1 January 2012 2012461818 399 3,668 563 3,503 1,236 - 9,369
Provided during the year FNEE 404 3,781 4,224 2,225 42 — 10,676
Disposal & - - - (197) - - 197)
Write-off i 8 - - (6] - - - (6)
At 31 December 2012 M2012412A31H 803 7,449 4,781 5,531 1,278 - 19,842
CARRYING AMOUNTS: FREE :
At 31 December 2012 R2012412A318 8,392 27,794 3,020 3,086 52,556 85,297 180,145
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 #H Z2013F12A318 L FE
17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Confinved)  17.

The amount of depreciation capifalized during the year ended

18.
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IEN Y & & AC )
MREZE 2013 12A31A I FEARBE AL

31 December 2013 was RMB3,117,000 (2012: rEREAEARESI117000 (20124 : A
RMB3,412,000). R#3,412,0007T) °
INTANGIBLE ASSETS 18. fEJE & A
Mining rights
iR
RMB'0O00
AR T
COST: R
At 1 Janvary 2012 and 31 December 2012 R2012F 1 /A1HR2012F 12431 H 71,259
Disposal of a subsidiary (nofe 38) & B B A A (MY E38) (8,474)
At 31 December 2013 2013412 A31H 62,785
ACCUMULATED AMORTISATION AND Rt #ERRE:
IMPAIRMENT
At 1 January 2012 20121 A1H 1,289
Amortisation for the year F N 8H 17
At 31 December 2012 and 1 January 2013 MR2012F12 A31H K2013%F1A1H 1,306
Amortisation for the year F A 3
Impairment loss AR B R 7,400
At 31 December 2013 2013412 A31RH 8,709
CARRYING AMOUNTS: BREE:
At 31 December 2013 201312 A31H 54,076
At 31 December 2012 MR20124F12A31H 69053

The mining rights represent rights for the mining of marble

reserves in the Zhangjiaba Mine which is located in Jiangyou
County, Sichuan Province, the PRC. The Mine is operated by

the Company’s indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary, Sichuan
Jiangyou Jinshida Stone Co., lid. ("Sichuan Jinshida”). The local
government granted mining permits to Sichuan Jinshida for a

term of 10 years ending 1 February 2021.

RERERRERSBUANKEAFE
EVRER o RZ B LU AL R AR BT )11 0T &
HARRBEEZEWNB LR ME)IIE SR
FEAOFARQA(EISREDKSE - i
TR T )1 & B 2 2 B OF MO PR A& 7T
AIRE - B2021F2H18EIH -



Notes to the Financial Statements B ¥% R % Bfi 5

For the year ended 31 December 2013

18.

B E2013F12A831HIEFE
INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continved)

The Group carried out reviews of the recoverable amount of
its infangible assets in 2013. The Group's infangible assefs are
used in the Group’s sale of marble and marble related
products cash generating unit (the “Sichuan Jinshida CGU").
The recoverable amount has been determined based on a
value in use calculation, with reference to the valuation
prepared by an independent professional valuer, Greater
China Appraisal limited. That calculation uses cash flow
projections based on the financial budgets covering a 5 year
period approved by the management. For the periods affer
the financial budgets the growth rate of the production
capacity is assumed to be slowed down steadily unfil the
maximum capacity allowed under the license. The growth rate
of cash flow in the long run are extrapolated using a sfeady
growth rate of 3%. The pretax discount rate used for
estimating the value in use is 26.74%. Other key assumptions
for the value in use calculations relate to the estimation of
cash inflows/outflows which include budgeted sales and gross
margin, such estimation is based on the Sichuan Jinshida
CGU's past performance and management’s expectations for
the market development. Management believes that any
reasonably possible change in any of these assumptions
would not cause the aggregate carrying amount of Sichuan
Jinshida CGU 1o exceed the aggregate recoverable amount of
Sichuan Jinshida CGU.

The impairment fest results in the recognition of an impairment
loss on intangible assets of RMBZ400,000 (included in
“Impairments of various assets’), which is expensed in the

consolidated  statement of profit or loss and other

comprehensive income.

18.

Y & E @)
AEER2013FEHNEETLEE 2R KD
T AKEZETLEERNAKEEAE
Ak AEAEBEMRSELEM (T
CRERCELBEMDZHE - AIkE S
HORBEREBEAEET EH2RE
VEEMEMEEFEERARBH NG
B -AEERAZASRERGEHIANERE
B EcMBERAERELFRRRE
o EEDFFAEANRSERA - JI
REVHEERSHENERERRER
FHE -HenBRENERXABEE
REI%HH - fHaHEREEMAORATR
BERB2074% - stRIEMEEZEMER
RESEBRSRA S MH 2G5 BIER
BHEBELENE  ARMAIRED)
CHRERCELBUZBAERANEERE
HMIZERRZEAEL - EEERGER
ZEBRZEMNAEAELESY K188
FuleREReELEU L REAER
Bo)leREReELBEU 2 ROES
LR

HENREREREBLEEZREBEA
R #7400,0007T (FATZHEERED -
ERNGaBakEdermEERPIHE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 #H ZE2013F12A31B IEFE

19. PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS 19. FHAF 1 Hb FH S 206
2013 2012
2013%F 20124
RMB’000 RMB'O00

AR TR AR®ETT

Carrying amount at 1 January RIATHREREE 2,395 2,363

Additions NE = 60

Amortisation for the year FREH (33) (28)

Carrying amount at 31 December RI2A3TE R BRE B 2,362 2,395

Prepaid land lease payments represent the acquisition cost of AN HEERBRENPEKEEAE LM

state-owned land use rights in the PRC, which is held under a BRI R A - AR L i AR IR B 40
medium term lease. FA -

20. PAYMENTS IN ADVANCE 20. BT HIHE

2013 2012

20134 20124

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥T ARBTT

Payments to strategic partners in Yunfu ¥ )% 8BS B B 13K — 310,000
Payments for mining-related property, ~ BERBEMRBEWE - BE R

plant and equipment R e #) 15F K = 141,726
less: impairments BB E — ([451,726)
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 & ZE2013F12A31H L F[E
20. PAYMENTS IN ADVANCE (Continved)

December 2012, the Group
entered info a series of strategic cooperation agreements with

During the year ended 3]

four independent stone business entities, namely Yunfu Kailong
Stone Material Co., Ud* (EEHIEAMBERAF]), Yunfu
Zhijing Stone Co., ltd* (EEHHEAMBRAF), Yunfu
Huihua Stones Co., lUd*. (RFMEZEAMERAF) and
Yunfu Chengjiu Stone Co., ltid*. (EEF MK AN BRQF)
[collectively referred to as the “Strategic Partners’] to jointly
develop and expand stone material processing capacity in
Yunfu,
distribution network for stone products. Pursuant to  these

Guangdong  Province and to develop national
agreements, the Group had made payments in advance
aggregating fo RMB310,000,000 to the strafegic partners
through Guangzhou Junqi Investment Management Co., Ltd*.
(BN RIREERBRAF]), on independent third party.

The amounts were fully impaired as at 31 December 2012.

During the year ended 31 December 2012, the Group
engaged Guangzhou Zhongling Dredging Co., Lid*. (BN
EEVRBR AT,
import mining equipment and made a payment of
RMB94,726,238 to Zhongling Dredging through Shenzhen
Yuyoufa Trading Co., Ud* [FINTHTHEEBESBRAF), an
independent third party. The amount was fully impaired as af
31 December 2012.

"Zhongling Dredging”] as an agent fo

December 2012, the Group
engaged Yunfu Hengji Earthwork Engineering Co., lid*. &%
MEELTAFTIREBERAT Earthwork”) for the
construction of mining infrastructure of platform No. 3 to No.
5 at Zhangjiaba Mine. As at 31 December 2012, the revised
confract sum of construction confract was approximately
RMB47,320,000. The Group made a payment in advance of
RMB47,000,000 to Hengiji Earthwork during the Period
through Helaichun Construction and Design Co., lid*. (B§2K%&
BEXFTAMRAA), an independent third party. The amount
was fully impaired as at 31 December 2012.

During the year ended 31

(“Hengji

* The English names are for identification only

20.

TH AT 3K EH o)
AEBREZE2012F12A31HIEFERNE
MBS AV ESERE  NEEHYRA
MERAR - EFMBEEAMABRAT -
EETMEEAMARARMNEZFTHILA
MERAA(GRABBEEHDITIY—X
TIBBE S EE  MERBABERIERER
BEFZAMMIEARERZEEAM
EmDEfs - BREZE WS AEEDE
BREMNERMKEEEERERARN(—RE
NEZF)RAEREHESINBNRIBEESFA
A R #310,000,0007T © &% 2% 38 B KR2012
FI12A3BBERME -

REEBRBE2012F12A31R IEFE R
AEMNPREZBERAR(PEREERDR
AORBRENE  ABBRITHE
HESAERAR(BBILE=TT)XMNA
R#94,726,238 T FHZBR - ZHKIEE
2012612 A3 BB EURE °

REBREZE2012F12A831H IEFE A
AESTEELASTIRAERAB(EE
TAFTDRERFFREILIFESHRFEER
PSR E R - M20126F12H318  &1{&
AR ERNNANRERBORARE
47,320,0007T - REBRBMAKL B R EE
ERFABRAB(—BBEILE=T)XMHA
R¥47000000t 2 BN KRB TFEE LA
7o #ZAIA L R2012412A318 & #UR
=

* RXAEERE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 # Z2013F12A31B IEFE

21.

SUBSIDIARIES

The list below gives the particulars of principal subsidiaries of
the Group which, in opinion of the directors, principally affect
the operating results and net assets of the Group. To give full
details of subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors,

result in particulars of excessive length.

Name of subsidiary

Place of
incorporation/
registration

21. B &g 2w

= o

Nominal value of
issued and paid-up
share/registered
paid-up capifal

Percentage of
equity inferests
attributable to
the Company

TRENAEEEEMBEATNFE - &
SRR RFRAFHARENKEEREAR

BEFEBREEXE - EFER R =4
FEMBARKSERREHRNEHNBRIT

Principal activities

BERTEER
Gl AV Bt zmEE, ARBENE

N NG A i 3t B AM#eElREs #HEEHL TB2ER

Directly held:

HERH:

Kingstone Industrial Investment the BVI US$! 100% Investment holding
Limited

CHEXEREBRAA RBRAEE 17T REER

Indirectly held:

GREEE R

Kingstone (HK) Group Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 100% Investment holding

ehFEBEEERQA HB 10,0007 7T REZERK

Kingstone (Guangzhou) Mable  the PRC US$40,134,739 100% Processing and trading of
Co., ld. construction materials
("Kingstone Guangzhou”)

eA(BMAXRBERAT ] 40,134,739% 7T MIT K EEEEME
(T&aEIM]D)

Sichuan Jiangyou Jinshida Stone  the PRC RMB10,000,000 100% Mining, processing and
Industry Co., Lid. ("Sichuan trading of construction
Jinshida")* materials

MINThEeRHEAERERAR TE ARH FER - I K
epllEa:s3=3)) 10,000,000t BEEEEMH

Jiangyou Kingstone Prosperous the PRC US$1,250,000 100% Inactive
Marble Co., Ld.

IHehERAELAERAR FHE 1,250,000 7T BEEK

*

The English name are for identification only.
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 #H ZE2013F12A31HIEFE

22. GOODWILL 22. W&
2013 2012
20135 20124
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARB TR ARBTT
At cost: N
At beginning and end of the R & B 4
reporting period N R 2,966 2966
IMPAIRRMENTS: VERIEE
At beginning of the reporting period R #R &5 Hi 4 - -
Impairment loss ERIEN SR 2,966 -
At end of the reporting period NET RS 2,966 -
CARRYING AMOUNTS: BREE -
At end of the reporting period ISR - 2966

Goodwill arose on the acquisition of Sichuan Jinshida which
represented the excess of the cost of the business combination
over the Group's inferest in the net fair value of Sichuan
Jinshida's identifiable assets and liabilities as at the date of the
acquisition.

FERNKRBOISREREL  BEKS
O RO B TR R SR B B 7)1 2 B S O R
BEMOAEMNEERBBERAAFENE
= H) BEE e
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22. GOODWILL (Continued) 22. I’:ﬁ%w

Impairment testing of goodwill

For annual impairment testing, goodwill has been allocated to
the Sichuan Jinshida CGU. The basis of the recoverable
amount of Sichuan Jinshida CGU and the major underlying

assumptions are summarized below:

The recoverable amount of Sichuan Jinshida CGU has been
determined based on a value in use calculation, with
reference to the valuation prepared by an independent
professional valuer, Greater China Appraisal Limited. That
calculation uses cash flow projections based on the financial
budgefs covering a 5 vyear period approved by the
management. For the periods after the financial budgets the
growth rate of the production capacity is assumed to be
slowed down steadily until the maximum capacity allowed
under the license. The growth rafe of cash flow in the long
run are extrapolated using a steady growth rate of 3%. The
pre-tax discount rafe used for estimating the value in use is
22.71%. Other key assumptions for the value in use
calculations relate to the estimation of cash inflows/outflows
which include budgeted sales and gross margin, such
estimation is based on the Sichuan Jinshida CGU's past
performance and management’s expectations for the market
development. Management believes that any reasonably
possible change in any of these assumptions would not cause
the aggregate carrying amount of Sichuan Jinshida CGU to
exceed the aggregate recoverable amount of Sichuan Jinshida

CGU.

The impairment tfest results in the recognition of an impairment
loss of goodwill of RMB2,966,000 (included in “Impairment
of various assets”), which is expensed in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.
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EHMEMEEFEERARABHNMGE -
AERRAZRERERHDAEEEH
B BRECRERFHM)AELE - &
ZHFABATNRSERR  HRRY
BEERSHEHNERERIEEL N
Zo-BERNERENERXUBEERE
3%MEH o fhEHEREEMAAOB AR X
R2271%  sTEEREEZHEMLEIEZER
BRBEERA/MH 2G5 BEREEH
EBLEMNE - BRMGFIREDIIEE
ERCELABNZBERBAREEEBYM
BERAAEL BEEEBREENZS
R ZEMEEAEED K HrEeBHMm
NeRzReELSUZ REAERBN
NeREReELBEM 2R REIASER -
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 #H ZE2013F12A31HIEFE

INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE/LOANS TO
AN ASSOCIATE/AMOUNT DUE TO AN

23.

23. ﬁAH%ﬁ‘

=

AT IR/ B0 A
3K/ HE 4 02 24 7

ASSOCIATE
2013 2012
20134 20124
RMB'000 RMB'O00
AR TR AR T
Non-current assets EREBEE
Share of net assets DIREEFE 10,703 10,703
Goodwill on acquisition Uit B B ) i 5,539 5,539
16,242 16,242
less: impairment (nofe a) AR E (W 5Ea) (16,242) —
= 16,242
Current assets REBEE
loans to an associate M E RNRER 80,000 80,000
less: impairment (note b) AR E (M FEb) (72,000) —
less: reclassified to other receivable BB BT M EREIE
(note f) CiRED) (8,000) -
— 80,000
Current liabilities )ﬁﬁﬁfi
Amount due to an associate JFE 5B = R R SRIB — 3,217
Notes: B 5E
(@)  The Group evaluates investment in an associate for impairment (o) MWMEABERELD FERRETIRBEINL

when circumstances indicate that carrying value may not be
recoverable, such as due to loans defaults, significant under
performance relative to historical or projected operating
performance, and significant negative indusiry in economic
frends.

The associate, Guangdong Jiapeng Construction Co., Lid
hod defaulted the

repayment ferms of the loans. The Group has taken legal

["Guangdong  Jiapeng Construction”),

actions to recover these loans since October 2012. The
Directors are of the opinion that a full provision for impairment
losses should be recognised so as to reflect the recoverable
amount of investment in the associafe.

Wt R RTE R E B RIS R
FURB 2 1R 2 18 A R A 1 P B £
B AKERAEE AR RE A
#Ff -

BERREREBERERAR(EERE
BERDERERNERZGR - AEEA
2012 10 AR —ERBUEETH - k@
FHER EFRBREZEREARES
BREE  BEUARRKESATNKRENH]
YE e -
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INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE/LOANS TO
AN ASSOCIATE/AMOUNT DUE TO AN
ASSOCIATE (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

23.

(b)

loan to an associate are secured by the trade receivables of
the associate and bear interest at the rate of 7.216% per
annum.

On 9 August 2013, the Group entered info an agreement with
an independent third party debt collector to assign the loans of
RMB80,000,000 in aggregate at a consideration of
RMB40,000,000 (the “Assignment Agreement’). The
Assignment Agreement is guaranteed by Guangdong Huaxia
Financing Guarantee Co., lid. (EREERERERBR A E])
Details of the Assignment Agreement have been announced by
the Company on @ August 2013. Pursuant fo the Assignment
Agreement, the independent third party will be entitled fo the
rights, title, interest and benefits in and to the loans upon full
settlement of the consideration of RMB40,000,000 in
accordance with the payment schedule in the Assignment
Agreement.

As at 31 December 2013, the independent third party failed
to setfle the consideration of RMB40,000,000 in accordance
with the payment schedule and the Group only received
RMB8,000,000 from the independent third party. Impairment
loss of RMB72,000,000 has been recorded on the loans to

the associate for the year ended 31 December 2013
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23. ﬁ"H%ﬁ

NEIBBE /1 \ﬁj
K/ Ao B 4 A )

=

3

B aE: (8)

(b)

& RBER T E AR E SRR
HIAER &E%‘JZEZQ OEFE -

M2013F8H0R - AEBEEBIE=7
WEAFTZIH#E RERBEARE
400000007t # & BE ;X A R ¥
80,000,0007T ([ ek 1) - #E
EREERELRBERATELER - AR
ETEEQQO]3$8HQEI“%$§;E¥EWJE§Z§$

CRBEEBE BUE=HikEE
’ré% ZHMHF?E\%QZQEZHKE/\EM
40,000,0007t# - =B ER 2 HEF -
FREME  RmMA & -

M20135F12A8318 B R =7 RagiR
R B ) 3R A (B A R #40,000,000
T MAREEZEBIE=FTWIARYE
8,000,0007T * B £2013F12431H IEF
B RBEAREFREHSAEBEAR
#72,000,0007T ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 #H ZE2013F12A31HIEFE

INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE/LOANS TO
AN ASSOCIATE/AMOUNT DUE TO AN
ASSOCIATE (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

23.

(c)

(d)

(e)

*

The amount due to the associate is unsecured, interest-free and

has no fixed repayment ferms.

Particulars of the associate are as follows:

Nominal value of
issued and
Place of

incorporation/

23. ﬁ"%ﬁ%’\jﬂﬁﬁ%ﬁ/ I B

A7

0

K/ WA Bk 2 o ] AR )

B e ()

(c)

(d)

J& < Bk 5 A A
?ﬁ?ﬁEf&W\gﬂ

RERERR 28

BE AR BAT:

paid-up share/ Percentage of equity
registered paid-up interests atfributable

Company name registration capifal to the Group Principal activities
BEITRHR
Rl avd Bz EE, NEEEN
NGIEZ R BRI P N ERAI FEXEK
Guangdong Jiapeng  the PRC RMB10,000,000 49% Design and construction of
Construction architecture decoration and curtain
Co, lid wall, wholesale and retail of
construction materials, and
construction machine rental
services
B e & FE AR BEEMREBORRETL  #t
ARAT 10,000,0007T BRTEREMBARZEKSE
HER®

As at 31 December 2013, the Group's subsidiaries, Kingstone
Guangzhou and Sichuan Jinshida were defendants in legal
cases initiated by AB{E# (the "Plaintiff”). The Plaintiff granted
loans of RMB15,000,000 to a former owner of Sichuan
Jinshida and the loans were secured by the former owner's
35% equity interest in Sichuan Jinshida. Kingstone Guangzhou
acquired the 35% equity inferest from the former owner
subsequently. The Plaintiff sought for the reinstatement of its
security against the 35% equity inferest in Sichuan Jinshida, an
economic loss of RMB8,000,000 and for the repayment of the

loans.

As a result of these legal cases, Kingstone Guangzhou's 49%

equity
Construction

inferest in an associate, Guangdong Jiapeng

together with Sichuan Jinshida's loan o
Guangdong Jiapeng Construction amounting fo

RMB25,000,000 were sealed by a court in the PRC.

The English names are for identification only

le]

*

R2013F12A318 » AEBEHB AR &
BENMNEDIGHEABERE(BIRS
ADBEREZRENEEA - REAR
MR ENIEBABRTARE
15,000,000 2 B EFRARTHEB AR
)1 B MSSBE R EIIR - 2R EN
Hig WERBA ANISLEZR - REAS
SARIE U )| & B M 35%AE R IR - A
8% AR #8,000000T UANREEE
e

MRETERFL - SREMREE R F
ERFEER E!’JAQ%%@ ER)
ERTEREBERNER  aARE
25,000,0007T + # 4 BlA BT R 4 -

R AWERER -
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 # Z2013F12A31B IEFE

23. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE/LOANS TO
AN ASSOCIATE/AMOUNT DUE TO AN
ASSOCIATE (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

() Following the Group's assignment of the loans to the associate
to the independent third party, the management considered the
investment in Guangdong Jiapeng Constfruction is no longer
treated as associate because the Group is not in a position fo
exercise any significant inflence over the financial and
operating policies of Guangdong Jiapeng Construction or fo
parficipate in its operations. The Group's investment in
Guangdong  Jiapeng Construction  has been classified as
available-for-sale investment in  the consolidated financial
statements and the balance of loans to an associate of

RMB8,000,000 has been classified as other receivables.

24. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENT

=

23. ﬁ"%ﬁ’ NG/ B \ﬁ?

3K/ WA T8 2 26 7 O

B aE: (8)

fl AEBREEOBEZLATNERTBILE=
TROEEERRNERZBEZRNK
ETBRBEARBERARNNEE AR
AEBTERERUHERZBRR ZH
BREBRRTEEAZENAALH
HEBIZUE AEEREREZEER
MIREEREAPBERERD BAAHH
ERE - MABEARFEHNERESRA
R ¥8,000,0007T B % 4 /& H il & U 5%
g o

24. WG B E

2013 2012
20134 20124
RMB’000 RMB'O00

AR¥T ARETT

Transfer from investment in an associate B REEE N B RIR & E & &
and carrying amount as af RI2A3TEHMEBE

31 December

Unlisted equity securities represented the Group's 49% equity
interests in Guangdong Jiapeng. Management considered the
Group is notf in o position fo exercise any significant influence
over the financial and operation policies of Guangdong
Jiapeng Construction and  the investment in  Guangdong
Jiapeng Construction is classified as availableforsale financial
assefs. The details are more fully disclosed in note 23 fo the
consolidated financial statements.
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25.

26.

INVENTORIES 25. # 8
2013 2012
20134 20124
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR® T ARMT T
Marble blocks and slabs KIE A Fo ok AR M 4,050 8,007
Materials and supplies RS EEE 1,191 1,382
5,241 9,389
The cost of inventories recognised as an expense includes BRABAXZEFEXRASAEERMATEE
RMB856,000 (2012: RMB®33,000] in respect of write-downs AR FEMNAREE56,0007T (20124F -
of inventory to net realisable value. A R #933,0007T)
TRADE RECEIVABLES 26. B 5 ME WK IH
2013 2012
2013%F 20124
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARE TR AREF T
Trade receivables g5 EMFRIE
Current porfion — BNEfEE 104,057 118,841
Non-current portion — JERNEAEE - -
less: impairment (nofe 9) B B (B 5E9) (53,878) (18,000

50,179 100,841
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 #H Z2013F12A318 L FE
26. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)

An aged analysis of frade receivables, as at the end of the
reporting periods based on the goods delivery date, and net
of impairments, is as follows:

B 5 W sk I (a0
RBEHR  REGRRGAL - BHE
Y 3RO (30 B AL Y BR e D AT T -

2013 2012

20134 20124

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR TR AR T

Within 30 days 30HA 3,216 —
Over 1 year [ 46,963 100,841
50,179 100,841

The Group's trading terms with ifs cusfomers are mainly on
credit. The credit period is generally one month. Except for
cerfain customers developed by the Group at the beginning of
its commercial operation were granted for a credit period of
18 months. In view of the fact that the Group sells most of its
products to several major customers, there is a high level of
concentration of credit risk. The Group seeks to maintain strict
control over ifs outstanding receivables to minimise credit risk.
Trade receivables are non-interest-bearing.

As at 31 December 2013, trade receivables with ageing of
over one year of RMB46,963,000 (2012: RMB100,841,000)
were past due but not impaired. These trade receivables were
secured by cerfain properties. The Group has been taking
legal actions to recover these trade receivables.

116 China Kingstone Mining Holdings Limited ~ Annual Report 2013

AEBEEARFNEZBRREIEREEN
A BRAKREREREAXEERDER
METEFPERTISEAGEMNI  F8
H—RA—EA BRAKERETEIE
EPHEEARMBOER  FEERRSEHK
FER - ARBROEE E K EERBKK
HERBERENAZREREEERAR - &
SEMFRER TS -

20134124318 » A R #46,963,0007T
(20124 : AR™100,841,0007T) BR B2 iE8 18
1F2BZREFRAEBHEBH - HEE KRR
8 - ZFEHRUGIRRE TYEEER -
AEE-BERIUERTH  NKRKEZEFE
Z W RIE -



Notes to the Financial Statements B ¥% R % Bfi 5

For the year ended 31 December 2013 #H ZE2013F12A31HIEFE

27. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES

Defails of the prepayments, deposits and other receivables are

27. WM BRI ~ B KA
M WALk T
B HIE - RS R H MR RIE R 3 E

as follows: e
2013 2012
20134 20124
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBFR AR T T
Prepayments for the purchase of raw B E R KK
materials SEENE 61,049 63,744
Deposits b geia 6,242 2,313
Deposits paid for development of sales &t 3% 2 o8 & 48 4% X 1+ 49
networks e — 43,000
Others (note a E A (Fff 7 a) 10,102 1,760
less: impairments (note b) AR E (T sEDb) (61,016) (43,000)
16,377 67,817
Note (a):  Amounts include loans to Guangdong Jinpeng Construction Mitla): SHEBEANERZBEESRHNOE
of RMB8,000,000. Guangdong Jinpeng Construction was A RM8,000,0007T © R 552
an associate of the Group and the Group's investment in RBARENEENF] - NERERZ
the associate has been reclassified as availablefor-sale BMEAFMBREERFRNEN T
investiment during the year. The details are more fully RABEEZRE - FBEREEHE
disclosed in note 23 to the consolidated financial WMARMFE23IE T BME -
statements.
Note [b): During the year ended 31 December 2012, the Group Mizk(b): B E2012F12A31BIEFER - K

made prepayments of RMB63,489,000 in aggregate fo
four independent entities, namely First Stage Global
Limited ("First Stage”’), Ace Profit Llimited ("Ace Profit"),
Dalateqi Jianfeng Trading Co., ltd.* GENFHEZEERHE
AR A7) and Ordos City Yushengda Trading Co., Lid.*
(BRI EREHERREME AR for purchase of
raw materials. Except for the prepayments of
RMB11,937,000 [equivalent to HK$15,000,000) paid to
First Stage and Ace Profit which were assigned fo an
independent third party at a consideration of
RMB2,473,000 (equivalent to HK$3,000,000) and such
consideration of RMB2,473,000 has been received by the
Company during the year, the remaining prepayments of
RMB61,016,000 were considered to be irrecoverable and
the amounts were fully impaired during the year ended 31
December 2013.

The English names are for identification only.

SE MBI E R BFist Stoge
Global Limited ([First Stagel) * Ace
Profit Limited ([Ace Profitl) + EH 51
rEBERRATRSESITHELRE
EHEARBEETAFTDIFHAHRAR
#63,489,0007T 1) FET FRIAL B B
JRH#E o BR M First Stage & Ace Profit
% AR ¥11,9370007T (8 & »
15,000,0007% 7T) B9 A FRIB AR (B
A R #2473000L(B8 & R
30000008 L) EETBILE=T
BARTREFANEBBMZREARE
2,473,0007THh - SR T BV FEAT FRIE A
RH#61,016,0007T# 4R AT A E -
ZeENBE2013F12A31HIEFE
WA EURE -

* RXAEERE -
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28. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 28. Bl KBl FHY
2013 2012
20134 20124
RMB'000 RMB'000

AR TR AR®ETT

Cash and bank balances B e KIRTITH 6% 30,315 28,159

The Group's cash and bank balances are all denominated in REBNE S RRITHEREDUAT I TG
the following currencies: &:

2013 2012

20134 20124

RMB'000 RMB'000

AR®BETT ARBET T

Cash and bank balances: Re RRITES

RMB AR 24,693 13,372

HK$ BT 5,560 1,995

us$ ET 62 12,792
30,315 28,159

The RMB is not freely convertible into ofher currencies, ARBAAEHABREMES  HERIE

however, under the PRC’s Foreign Exchange Control (hEARKMBIMNEEIRIGH) RAEE

Regulations and  Administration of  Seftlement, Sale and EEMNEEERT) ~AEBEEER

Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is EREETIEEBNRT  SARER

permitied fo exchange RMB for other currencies through banks BRELEY -

authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents RehkReEBYWERERRERAAEE

approximate fo their fair value. # o
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For the year ended 31 December 2013
29. TRADE PAYABLES

Trade payables are non-interestbearing and are normally

B ZE20135F12A31H L FE

seffled in 180 days. An aged analysis of trade payables,
based on the invoice date, is as follows:

29.

¥ 5 A i
BREAHEARE  —HRRIBOBANE
ff - RIFEBEEH - BREMARENRE
SIS -

2013 2012
2013% 20124
RMB’000 RMB'O00
AR T AR T
Outstanding balances with ages: BERUTHRIKRHARERERR
Within 180 days 180H A 71 415
Over 180 days 180B A £ 1,322 1,280
1,393 1,695
30. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 30. JAth B A SR 0E K FE EHE A
2013 2012
2013%F 20124
RMB'000 RMB'O00
AR® T AREET T
Advances from customers EEENMNR 10 10
Payable relating to: BTN 51 3% I8 75 8 &Y 5 R OR
Construction contracts BEAH 9,352 0,799
Taxes other than income tax B (TS BB IN) 1,918 3,769
Payroll and welfare TERBEF 4,405 5,131
Rental He — 1,333
Interest payable & A5 7 2, 262 —
Acquisition of an associate g iR /NE] 1,500 1,500
Deposits received Bl ® 110 100
Payable for rehabilitation deposit BEENRIERS 268 920
Provision for litigation B RA R A 3,524 3,130
Others (note) EH b (M) 15,316 1,478
36,665 27170
Note: Amounts include RMB8,000,000 received from an independent Wit ¢BeEaBLEF - A REEAEREAK

third party being part of the consideration for assignment of the
Group's loans to an associate fo the independent third party.
The consideration received will be offset against the loans to
an associate upon the rights, fitle, interest and benefits in and
to the loans are fully transferred to the independent third party.
The details are more fully disclosed in note 23 to the
consolidated financial statements.

SEABERRZERTBLF =728
SR E ARKES,000,0007T ° BUHRE K
REFRZHEN - AR - Bm M B2
BRETBIEF=-FTREANBERRNZE
HIEH - FERNEAV B RRH F23E
TERE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 # Z2013F12A31B IEFE

31.

32.

33.

INTEREST-BEARING LOAN 31. Wt &K
2013 2012
20135 20124
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARETT
Unsecured inferest bearing loan EEMGEER
— Non-current — 3EBDHR 19,698 =
As at 31 December 2013, the unsecured loan of MR2013F12A31H  EBEHFERARE
RMB19,698,000 (HK$25,000,000) bears interest at a fixed 19,698,0007T (25,000,000 Jv) #2 & & &
rate of 15% per annum. The loan was granted by an MEISEFRE  EFRABILE=HMN2013
independent third party on 29 November 2013 and is FNAWQEET  EFHARAQB KM
repayable in eighteen months following the resumption of B Pk 18 B E 121818 A sk 1 2824 1E A
frading of the Company’s shares on the Stock Exchange or in N ABRFEERE -
the twenty-fourth month, whichever is earlier.
The carrying amount of the inferest bearing loan approximate ARERZEEHESREAABERLD -
fo their fair value.
PROVISION FOR REHABILITATION 32. 162 43 fh
RMB'000
AR¥ETTT
At 1 January 2013 2013 1A1H —
Provision made during the year FREAE 2,428
As at 31 December 2013 #2013 12H431H8 2,428
DEFERRED INCOME 33. WA

The deferred income balance represents government grants in
relation to certain machinery with a useful life of 10 years.
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For the year ended 31 December 2013
34. DEFERRED TAX

The movements in deferred tax assets are as follows:

B ZE20135F12A31H L FE

34, 3R % BiIH
EEBBEENEBWT

Unrealised

profit from

inter-group
transactions Others Total

SERRFHH
REIRFE HAth &5
RMB'O00 RMB'O00 RMB'O00
AREFTT AR®FT ARBTT
At T January 2012 R2012F1A1H8 7058 179 /237
Charged fo consolidated profit or loss B 47 & 18z H1 k& (727) — (727)
At 31 December 2012 R2012F12 A31H 6,331 179 6,510
Charged to consolidated profit or loss B 4r & 18 2 1 k& (6,331) — (6,331)
At 31 December 2013 MR2013F12A31H — 179 179

The movements in deferred tax liabilities are as follows: FREREEENEBNT

Fair value

adjustments arising

from acquisition of

a subsidiary

AU HEH B A A

FTEENARE

EEES

RMB'000

AR T

At 1 January 2012 and 2013 R2012F KX 2013F1A1H /123
Disposal of a subsidiary (note 38] HE—KHTB 27 (M :E38) (1,811)
Charged to consolidated profit or loss B 4% & 18 @ 1 & (1,850)
At 31 December 2013 % 2013F12H31H 3,462

Deferred tax assets and liabilities related to the PRC
subsidiaries have been provided at an enacted corporate
income tax rate of 25%. &

BRATENMBRARNEEHREER AR
B 1R B R M A b 3 AT 1S B TR R25% 5t 12 8
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 # Z2013F12A31B IEFE

35. SHARE CAPITAL 35. A
Number of shares
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each FREEOINE T ZEBK ‘000 RMB'000
% 7 & B
T % AR T
Authorised: ERE
At 31 December 2013 and 2012 R2013F K 2012F12 A31H 5,000,000 420,875
Issued and fully poid: BEITRHR:
At 31 December 2012 R2012412H31H 1,947,812 164,106
At 31 December 2013 R2013412H31H 1,947,812 164,106
During the vear, the movements in the Company's share RER  NATIRASEENWOT -
capital were as follows:
Number of Share premium
shares in issue Issued capifal account Tofal
BETRMHEA BREIRA 175 B 5 Ch
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBT ARBTF ARBF
At 1 January 2012 R201246171R 1996,771,000 168,086 867035 1,035,121
Redemption of shares BERR [48.959,000) (3.980) [25,064) [29,044)
At 31 December 2012 and 2013 2012 K% 2013%F12A318 1947812,000 164,106 841971 1,006,077

During the year ended 31 December 2012, the Company
redeemed 48,959,000 of its own ordinary shares on Stock
Exchange. Those redeemed shares were cancelled and
accordingly, the issued share capital of the Company was
reduced by the nominal value of these redeemed shares. The
premium paid on the redemption of shares of

RMB25,064,000 (including share redemption costs of
RMB254,000) was debited to the share premium account.
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For the year ended 31 December 2013

B ZE20135F12A31H L FE

36. RESERVES

(a)

(b)

Capital reserve

For the year ended 31 December 2010, the holding
company has made additional capital injections
aggregating to US$21 million. However, the Company
has not issued new ordinary shares to the holding
company and temporarily recorded the capital injection
in the capital reserve. Pursuant to a written resolution of
the sole shareholder on 24 January 2011, the directors
of the Company are authorized fo allot and issue a total
of 1,499999999 shares credited as fully paid ot par
to the holders of shares on the register of members of
the Company af the close of business on 24 January
2011 (or as they may direct) in proportion fo their
respective shareholdings (save that no shareholder shall
be enfitled to be allofted or issued any fraction of a
share] by way of capitalization of the sum of
HK$149,99909990 standing to the credit of the share
premium account of the Company and the shares to be
allotted and issued pursuant fo this resolution shall rank

pari passu in all respects with the existing issued shares.

Contributed reserve

It represents the aggregate amount of the consideration
of RMB24,480,000 paid to the former owners of
Sichuan Jinshida by the uliimate confrolling shareholder
fo obtain the control over Sichuan Jinshida by 14 March
2008 after nefting off the investment cost of
RMB10,000,000 paid by the Group on the acquisition
of the entire equity interest in Sichuan Jinshida from the
ultimate controlling  shareholder pursuant to  the
reorganisation, as if the acquisition had been completed
from the beginning of the year ended 31 December
2010. The corresponding liability of the investment cost
of RMB10,000,000 payable to the uliimate controlling
shareholder arising from the acquisition pursuant to the
reorganization was classified as a current liability as at
31 December 2009 and the balance was seftled in

November 2010.

36. fifi

()

(b)

BB
REZ2010F12A31HIEFE - R
ARACEHRBEINEIESRK2IBE X
JT o R 0 AR A I M AR A F
THERER  WERSTERENGE
EHRAR o RIEME— R ERR2011F]
A2BEMEERZR  ARAESFE
REmARARRRMEERENE
IR A 8114909909990/% T & &1k -
FE LA R20114F 1 A24 B & 3 05 ) 45
REF (HIRREMIET) B ARR R
REMOBDHEARRESBNE
Bt mmEREERETEHR
1,4990909009% A BRI & & & Ik 17
(PR 4 P SR B M JE e B Sk B 1T (MR
TWRMD) MBBEARBZRES TR
BERBFETOROBESTHERAD
BITBRNERRFEES -

BB
BARBERKERBERSDEY
PO 1| 2 B 5 A 422 ) 4 T 70 2008 4F 3 A
148 AR PO & B Z B AT A A A
B BB ARM24,480,0007T » &40
BRASEERBREREARNZRERR
SR EE T )1|  B 22 2 B AR T S A Y
RERAANRE10,000,0007T » 408
YiE = IEE N & £2010F12A31H
LHFERRKTER - BRBEEHEETT
WBEEMESNEMNZRZERR
R E KA ARM10,0000007T #
1B B & R2009F12A318 5 8
RREBAE - MEAERER201041]
HBE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 # Z2013F12A31B IEFE

36.

37.

RESERVES (Coninved 36. fiff i )
Company ¥/
The amounts of the Company's reserves and the movements RRREZE2013F12A3NB L FER FE
therein for the year ended 31 December 2013 are as CRENETHNEFHOT
follows:
Foreign
currency
Share  Accumulated Capital Share option  translation
premium losses reserve reserve feserve Total
HEBRE
kg  ZHEE  EAEE BRERE A% ag
RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'OOO ~ RMB'OO0  RMB'0O00  RMB'000
ARBTL ARETT ARETR ARBTIL ARETT ARETR
At T January 2012 201261718 867,035 (81,319) - 49,843 (42975) 792,584
Redemption of shares el (25,064 - - - - (250064]
Forfeiture of share options R R - - (356 - (356]
Equity-seffled share option arrangements BRAERRERH - - - 11,053 - 11,053
Total comprehensive loss for the year FEZEERAE - (419,240) - - 2756 (416,484)
At 31 December 2012 #201212A318 841971 (500,559) - 60,540 (40,219) 361,733
Total comprehensive loss for the year FEZEERAE - [257969) - - (2.746)  (260,715)
At 31 December 2013 H2013F 124318 841971 (758,528 - 60,540 [42965) 101,018
SHARE OPTION SCHEME 37. W BB AE s

Pre-IPO share option scheme and 2011 Option

Scheme

The Company has adopted the Pre-IPO share option scheme
(the “Pre-IPO Option Scheme’) and a share option scheme (the
"2011 Option Scheme”) on 24 January 2011 for the purpose
of giving its employees, direcfors, advisers, consultants and
business partners an opportunity to have a personal stake in
the Company and help motivate them to optimize their future
performance and efficiency and/or to reward them for their
past confributions, fo aftract and refain or otherwise maintain
on going relationships with such employees, aduvisers,
consultants and business partners who are significant fo and/
or whose confributions are or will be beneficial to the

performance, growth or success of the Company.
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 #H ZE2013F12A31HIEFE

37. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

Pre-IPO share option scheme and 2011 Option

Scheme (Continued)

The exercise price and exercise period of those share options
outstanding under the Pre-lPO Option Scheme as af 31
December 2013 and 31 December 2012 are as follows:

Exercise price

37. Vi JBEhE A o)
BRAMBEREREFTE X201
FERETE @

72013412 4318 R20124 128318 © %
ERERARBERBERESZETNER
ITEMBRENITEEMITEROT

Number of options per share Exercise period

BREHE BRITEE (aRES !

'000 HK$

Tt BT

40,000 0.60 From 18 March 2012 to 17 March 2016

B201243H18H £ 20166 3H17H

The exercise price and exercise period of those share options

outstanding under the 2011

Exercise price per

Option  Scheme as af

December 2013 and 31 December 2012 are as follows:

2013512 4318 k20124124318 - %
31 FR201F B RS 8IIE T 15 R 1T 1E BB AX
RRTTEEMITESWT

Number of options share Exercise period

BRERE BRITEE 1T

‘000 HK$

T4 BT

7,800 1.38 Three tranches in proportion of 50%, 25% and 25%

exercisable form 4 November 2011, 4 November 2012
and 4 November 2013 to 3 November 2021,
respectively.

% 5 #250% ~ 25% X% 25% &) LBl 2 YE =t + 5 BRI H 2017
F11848 - 2012F11 A48 X 2013F11 4B 220214
1MASBRAIF171F -
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37. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Confinved) 37. WEHREST & e

The Group recognized a share option expense of HK$NIl and
HK$12,316,000 (equivalent to RMB Nil and RMB10,101,000
respectively) for the Pre-lPO Option Scheme, and a share
option expense of HK$Nil and HK$1,171,000 [equivalent to
approximately RMBNIil and RMB952,000 respectively) for the
2011 Option Scheme during the year ended 31 December
2013 and 31 December 2012 respectively. For the forfeiture
of 12,200,000 share opfions in year 2012, a share opfion
expenses of HK$437000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB356,000) was reversed for non-vested share options
during the year ended 31 December 2012.

As at 31 December 2013, the Company had 47,800,000
share options oufstanding under the share option schemes. The
exercise in full of the outstanding share options would, under

the present capital structure of the Company, result in the issue

of 47.800,000 additional ordinary shares of the Company.

At the date of opprovo| of these financial statements, the
Company had 47,800,000 share options outstanding under
share option schemes, which represented approximately 2% of
the Company’s shares in issue as at that date.
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38. DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY 38.

On 23 January 2013, the Group enfered into equity transfer
agreements with an independent third party to dispose of its
100% equity interests in a subsidiary, Beichuan lida Mining
Co., Ud* (b1 NWEBZEBR AT aof a consideration of
RMB10,500,000. The consideration was satisfied by cash.

i B B 2 )

M20135F1A238 AEBERBIE=7
A BREER G - HEER B A
L)1 R B R A F100%2 B - 18
BRARMKI05000007T * AR & Xt °

RMB'000
ARBTTT

Cash consideration RERE

10,500

The value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of Beichuan
lida as at the date of disposal were as follows:

NDENATBRNEERBBERHERN
MWEELWT:

RMB'000
ARBETT
Infangible asset — mining right BILEE — RIEE 8,474
Property, plant and equipment ME - BERRE 1,260
Deposits g 1
Deferred tax liabilities BEHRIBRE (1,811)
Net assets BEFE /924
Cash consideration RERE 10,500
Net assets disposed of BEHEEEFE (7924)
Gain on disposal of interest in a HERMB AR ERE 2 W
subsidiary 2,576

Analysis of the cash flows in respect of the disposal of a
subsidiary is as follows:

ERALENBARMNASREDNWT :

Cash consideration ReNRE 10,500
Cash and cash equivalents disposed B HER G KRB EEEY

of —
Net inflow of cash and cash FAREEZMERERENR S

equivalents included in the cash MReZEEYRAFE

flows from investing activities 10,500

* The English name is for identification only

o OERXERERBR
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39. COMMITMENTS 39. A&
Commitments under operating leases REMAORE
As lessee EREEA

AEERKEHOLTHFHEAE T L RE
FTORBEBEBRNTF2EISE WAEE

The Group leases certain land premises and buildings under
operating lease arrangements, with leases negotiated for terms

ranging from 2 fo 15 years with an option for renewal after REBAREH  ERAAERKESER
that date, at which time all terms will be renegotiated. B o
At each end of reporting period, the Group had total future REREHR  XEEEFRETIHE

REBHENORKRERSBENDIH

minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating

leases falling due as follows: BT :
2013 2012
2013%F 20124
RMB'000 RMB'O00
AR TR AREEF T
Within one year —FR 4,657 7363
In the second to fifth years, inclusive F_Z2FRF (BIEEREMSF) 685 5,670
Over five years HF#& 490 587
5,832 13,620
40. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 40. B TT R 5
(@) Key management compensation ) EEEEEMS
2013 2012
2013%F 20124
RMB’000 RMB'O00
AR® T AREFIT
Salaries, wages and other benefits e TENKEMET 3,603 4,752
Pension costs — defined confribution  BIRES KA — FREMERK
scheme &l 1 4
Equity-setled share option expense BaEEBRERX - 8,063
3,604 12,819
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40. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continved)
(b) As detailed in note 23, as at 31 December 2013, the

loans to an associate included in the Group's current
assets totaling RMB8,000,000 (as at 31 December
2012: RMB80,000,000) are secured by the tfrade
receivables of Guangdong Jiapeng Construction, bear
interest at the rate of 7216% per annum and were
repayable within one vyear. Guangdong Jiapeng
Construction had defaulted the repayment terms of the
loans during the year 2012. The Group did not receive
inferest income from the loans during the year ended 31

December 2013 (2012: RMB3,480,000).

41. LITIGATIONS

(a)

As at 31 December 2013, the subsidiaries, Kingstone
Guangzhou and Sichuan Jinshida, were defendants in
legal cases initiated by BFEH#E (the “Plainfiff’). The
Plaintiff granted two loans of RMB8,000,000 and
RMB15,000,000 to a former owner of Sichuan Jinshida
and the loans were secured by the former owner's 35%
equity inferest in Sichuan Jinshida. Kingstone Guangzhou
acquired the 35% equity interest from the former owner
subsequently. The Plaintiff sought for the reinstatement of
its security against the 35% equity interest in Sichuan
Jinshida an economic loss of RMB8,000,000 and for the
repayment of the loans.

legal proceeding,

As a result of the

Guangzhou's  49% equity inferest in an associafe,

Kingstone

Guangdong Jiapeng Construction together with Sichuan
Jinshida's loan to  Guangdong Jiapeng Construction
amounting to RMB25,000,000 were frozen by a court
in the PRC.

40. BA#E T R 5 o)

41.

(b)

o T
= F

u

20 B SE23 0T & 4t - H20135F 124
SIE  ARENRBEEAMBIEDN
MBERAERGHEARE
8,000,0007T (42012412 H31H : A
FR#80,000,0007T) T i & R 5= 5 22
REOEHREWRIBBEM - RERN XK
T216BFE - WEAR—FAER - B
REBEZRXNR202FEARBTE
M EEER - B 22013512431
BIEFER - ANEE ISR
M EH A (20124 - A E¥3,480,000

JL) °
/S
R2013F12A318 B AR €A E
MR & FERRMERE (BIREAD
BRAEZRGOFEA REAM
M) &R ENRTBEEARTREER
Bl A A RS 000000T M AR
15,000,0007¢ -+ 7 LART#EA A A )|
DRFGEMISLERERT - @REME
BUEERI B AMSS%IER - REA
SRIE) || & B IER 35U R -
& a5 A R#8,000,0007T © WA K&

rdh SO 25 X
BEER-

BRNETTERFD - SOABEMREE
NAEREIEZERNIO%E D - ER
mERERTERRBRERNE
A EHARK25000,0007T - #H
B % e 3R 4 e
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 # £20135F12A31HILFE
41. LITIGATIONS (Continued)

(b)

As at 31 December 2013, the Company’s subsidiary,
Sichuan Jinshida, was involved in a legal case initiated

by £ E R (the "Applicant’).

On 25 January 2010, the Applicant as the lender, the
borrower (the “Borrower”), and Sichuan Jinshida as one
of the guarantors, among others, entered into a loan
agreement (the “loan Agreement”’) pursuant to which the
Applicant agreed to lend to the Borrower for the amount
of RMB39,000,000 and, among other guarantors,
Sichuan Jinshida have agreed to guarantee the due
performance of the Borrower's obligafion under the Loan
Agreement. On the same date, Guangzhou Notary,
Guangdong Province* (R & B MM E MR FEE) has
notarized the loan Agreement [“Notarized Document’)
for the purpose of rendering the loan Agreement being
capable compulsory enforcement.

The Borrower failed to meet its obligation under the loan
Agreement, the Applicant thus applied fo the Court for
compulsory enforcement of the Notarized Document
against, among other guarantors, Sichuan Jinshida and
the Execution Order was granted.

On 13 June 2013, Sichuan Jinshida submitted an
application on objection to execution* ["BAITEZE R &F
£") to the Court for dismissal of enforcement of the
certain enforcement procedures and the Group was not

informed of any progress thereafter.

Pursuant to an execution order dated 25 September
2013 (the “Execution Order”) granted by Guangzhou
Infermediate People’s Court*, Guangdong Province (ER
BREMNTHRARER) (the “Court”), the Court ordered
that Sichuan Jinshida’s bank account be frozen for an
amount of RMB79,497246. On 27 September 2013,
RMB435,800 was sequestrated from the account of
Sichuan Jinshida by the Court in accordance with the
Execution Order.

The Board considers that the aforesaid claim cannot be
substantiated and the Group is taking actions to apply
for withdrawal of the aforesaid legal case and the
directors consider such legal case would not have any
material impact on the consolidated financial statements.

* The English names are for identification only
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42. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 42, RAFR1I2HA3THZ BRI E
THE COMPANY AS AT 31 DECEMBER

2013 2012
2013% 20124
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR TR ARETTT

NON-CURRENT ASSETS FEREBEE
Investments in subsidiaries KRB ARMWIEE — -
Due from subsidiaries JiE U B BB R B) FRIA 293,147 526,066
293,147 526,066
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Structured deposits R R e - -
Prepayments, deposits and other TERFIE e R HAaER A
receivables 253 12,192
Pledged deposit EHEAER - -
Cash and cash equivalents BehIReZEEY 32 6,499
285 18,691
CURRENT LIABILITIES RBEE
Other payables and accruals H i JE A 5038 K fE 5T B 4,371 Q10
Due fo subsidiaries AW B AR RIE 4,239 18,008
8,610 18,918
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES RBAEEFHE (8,325) (227)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT HWEERRSERE
LIABILITIES 284,822 525,839
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES kREBEE
Interest-bearing loan SREX 19,698 -
NET ASSETS EEFE 265,124 525,839
EQUITY =
Issued capital B 1T RR A 164,106 164,106
Reserves 11 101,018 361,733
Total equity B R 265,124 525,839
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fil §% & 3 i &

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR

LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

A 4 2 e At 2 i e A R

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31BLLEE
2009 2010 2011 2012 2013
20094 20104 20114 20124 20135
RMB'O00 RMB'O00 RMB'O00 RMB'O00 RMB’'000
ARETTT ARETT ARBTT ARETT AR¥® TR
Revenue A - 6,615 289 424 16,062 7124
Profit/|Loss) before tax Br 7 B
IR (518) (56100 (25260 99557 (568216  (251,414)
Income tax (expense)/credit  FT 15 %t
(Bx),Fzt 241 4,205 (46,310) (8,153) (4,891)
Profit/[Loss) for the year FEFES
(B 18) (5,369) (21,055) 53,247 (576,369) (256,305)
RMB cents RMB cents RMB cents RMB cents RMB cents
ARES  ARES AR5 ARES  AR%®S
Basic eamings/(loss| per FREAR
share EF(EE) N/ATEB NATHEEB 2.58 (29.46) (13.16)
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF AR A BB R VLR
FINANCIAL POSITION
As at 31 December
M12A31H
2009 2010 2011 2012 2013
20094 20104 20114 20124 20135
RMB'O00 RMB'O00 RMB'O00 RMB'O00 RMB’'000
ARETTT AREFT ARBTT ARETT AR TR
Non-current assets ERBEE 50,455 117,247 372,783 278,211 229413
Current assets MENEE 6,092 101,147 888,765 286,206 102,112
Total assets wEE 56,547 218,394 1,261,548 564,417 331,525
Current liabilities mEAaE 44,675 21,093 143,750 32,082 38,058
Non-current liabilities EmEaE 4,513 207 194 7317 25,782
Total liabilities waE 49188 Q1,300 143,044 39,399 63,840
Net assets/Total equity SREE AR /.359 127094 1,117,604 525,018 267,685
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